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AS AT 11 APRIL 2006
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Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is currently
engaged in four major sectors of business: infrastructure & utilities, consumer products, retail
services and technology.

Infrastructure & utilities sector includes management and operation of the Capital Airport
Expressway, the Shenzhen Shiguan Road and the operation concession of a water treatment plant
in Beijing and Weifang in China.

Consumer products sector includes manufacturing, distribution and sale of beer and wine. Yanjing
Brewery, currently operates 19 brewery production plants in 15 cities in China and has become
one of the leading brewery group in China. Its major subsidiaries, namely Yanjing Brewery Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 000729) and Fuijian Yanjing Huiquan Brewery Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600573), are
listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Shanghai Stock Exchange, respectively. This
sector also includes a wine production plant located in Beijing operated by Shunxing Winery.

Retail services sector represents the operation of department stores in Beijing and other major
cities in China such as Chengdu, Chongqing, Guangzhou, Wuhan, Changsha and Baotou, etc. by
Beijing Wangfujing Department Store (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed on The Shanghai Stock
Exchange. (stock code: 600859).

Technology sector includes various kinds of operations. Beijing Development , which is listed on
The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
(stock code: 154), is currently engaged in internet-related business service, information technology
solutions for both hardware and software, the operation of multipurpose electronic payment cards
system, on-line medical insurance and social security insurance system business. Xteam Software
International Limited, one of its subsidiaries which is listed on The Growth Enterprises Market
("GEM") of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 8178), is currently engaged in sale of
computer software and provision of related services.

Biosino Bio-Technology and Science Incorporation, an associate of the Group, is listed on the
GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, (stock code: 8247) and principally engaged in manufacture,
sale and distribution of in-vitro diagnostic reagents and a pharmaceutical product in China. Another
company namely Ever Source Scientific and Technology Development Co., Ltd. is currently engaged
in construction and installation of geothermal energy system. Save as disclosed above, the Group

also takes part in other various new technology initiatives.
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Turnover for the year amounted to HK$11 billion, representing an increase of 13.8% over last

year.
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Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$570.4 million, representing
an increase of 13.3% over last year.
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Basic earnings per share amounted to HK$0.92, representing an increase of HK$0.11 over last year.

A final dividend of HK20 cents per share is proposed for 2005.
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| CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT |

| am pleased to announce that Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) have registered
a sound growth in respect of each of its performance indicators
for the year 2005. Profit attributable to equity holders increased
by HK$ 67 million to HK$ 570 million, representing a growth of
13.3% over that of 2004. Earnings per share increased by 13.3%
over that of 2004 to HK$ 0.92. The Board of Directors
recommended a payment of final dividend of HK 20 cents per
share.

The growth was mainly driven by three factors. Firstly, Beijing
Yanjing Brewery Company Limited (“Beijing Yanjing”) and Beijing
Wangfujing Department Store (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Wangfujing”)
achieved rapid growth in operating revenue due to expanded
market share through acquisitions & mergers. Secondly, during
the year, the Company successfully aligned its assets portfolio
and effectively materialized capital gains through disposal of
certain businesses such as Beijing Sanyuan Foods Co., Ltd. (“Sanyuan Foods"), Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Maglev Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Maglev”), Beijing Enterprises (Tourism)
Limited (“BE Tourism”), Beijing Qin Chang Glass Company Limited (“Qin Chang Glass"”) and
Beijing Western Food Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Western Food”). Such disposals collectively contributed
gross exceptional profit of approximately HK$ 217 million to the company and helped relieve
pressure on profit growth. The Company also took the chance to make provision for the goodwill
of poor-performing businesses and laid the foundation for future growth. Lastly, riding on the
interest rate trend, we have timely adjusted our capital strategy and considerably reduced our
finance cost.

\

Yi Xi Qun

During the year 2005, the Group adopted the following multiple measures to accelerate realization
of its strategic objectives of building core competitiveness with focus on urban energy services:

Firstly, the Company further aligned our assets portfolio, achieved orderly exit of non-core
businesses and divested itself of various poor-performing assets. During the year, the disposals of
the Company’s equity interests in operations such as Sanyuan Foods, Beijing Maglev, BE Tourism,
Qin Chang Glass and Beijing Western Food were completed.

Secondly, we continued further research of development strategy. The Company is going to
transform itself into a top utilities conglomerate in China with urban energy services as its core
business as its strategic objective for the next few years.

Thirdly, through our investment platforms, we proactively pursued investment opportunities focusing
on infrastructure and utilities projects especially toll roads, water treatment, environmental protection
and clean energy, and achieved certain degree of success. In the beginning of 2006, we duly
signed relevant agreements and set up a business vehicle to carry out Capital Airport Expressway
north line project. Now, the project, which is scheduled to open in October 2006, is in smooth
progress. Also, Water Treatment Plant 10 BOT Project has got a forceful push, as the counterparties
have started to negotiate the core issues. As for energy sector, research and feasibility studies on
utilization of clean energy like natural gas had been conducted.
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Fourthly, we have initiated the share reform plan of Beijing Yanjing and Wangfujing, both are
A-share listed companies, and achieved substantial progress thereon. Currently, the share reform
plan of Beijing Yanjing has been submitted to the relevant authorities for approval. In addition, as
the Company has arranged to divest itself of Wangfujing recently, Wangfujing’s share reform will
not be implemented under the Company.

The pros of the above mentioned share reform plan and disposal will outweigh its cons. Firstly,
upon completion of the share reform plan of Beijing Yanjing, the Company‘s equity interests in
Beijing Yanjing will become tradable shares to fairly reflect the value. Beijing Yanjing will be able
to retain its listed status for financing purposes in A-share Market, which is surely beneficial to its
business expansion. Secondly, the disposal of Wangfujing will help the Group to defuse the loss
incurred by Wangfujing's share reform plan, and an exceptional gain of approximately HK$ 180
million is expected to be derived from such transaction to cover the major loss incurred by the
share reform of Beijing Yanjing. The disposal is also expected to bring a cash flow of over HK$ 970
million for future acquisitions. What's more important is that such disposal will help further realize
the Company’s strategic objective to divest itself of non-core businesses in an orderly way,
representing a big progress on its course of strategic transition.

Fifthly, we have further strengthened our management efforts to build management base. During
the year, the Company was committed to upscale its management level and corporate governance
capability. For this, we not only carried out continual reviewing and perfecting our internal rules
and practices such as financial, internal and risk controls, but also made great efforts in improving
team quality, implementing performance assessment, rationalizing management structure and
hierarchy and deploying of management information system and so on. All these help lay solid
foundation for further development of the Company.

Looking forward, the Group will take building itself into a top domestic utilities conglomerate as
its strategic objective and take urban energy services as its core business, gradually realize economy
of scale and strategic transition and improve its competitive capability. The Company continues to
aim to maximize its shareholders value and sustain long-term development by enlisting concerted
efforts of all management and staff members.

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all members from our constituencies for their
dedication and support in the past year!

7™ 0
Chairman

Hong Kong
11 April 2006
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Infrastructure and Public Utilities

Toll Roads
The traffic volume of Beijing Capital Airport Expressway increased by |
7.7 % to 45.96 million vehicles in 2005, a new record for the
Expressway. Average daily traffic flow was 125,918 vehicles which
was close to the designed capacity of 135,000 vehicles. The traffic
volume growth for Airport Expressway will be constrained without

expansion or extension to the criginal road structure.

The traffic volume of Shenzhen Shiguan Toll Road declined by 7.3 % to
10.07 million vehicles in 2005 mainly due to reconstruction work of
certain bridge structure along the toll road.

2 The revenue from toll road operations increased by 9.7% to HK$477
million comparing to last year. Segment net profits attributable to the
Group increased by 11.8% to 227 million.

Water Treatment Concession

Operating profit attributable to the Group remained steady at
approximately HK$128 million. The cash return from this water
treatment concession remained the major source of cash income =5
for the Group in the year 2005. pro

Consumer Products

Beer

The sales volume for Yanjing's brewery operations increased by 8.7% to

3.13 million tons in 2005, another record level for Yanjing. The turnover for

2005 was HK$4.556 billion, increased 30.4% comparing to last year. Yanjing

has an estimated market share of 85% in Beijing city and 12% on nationwide

. basis. The growth in the premium sector beer market was most encouraging,
sales volume increased almost 38% to 90,000 tons in 2005.

~1 The operating profit attributable to the Group increased by 4.7% to HK$134
f'g million. Also, the Group shared an exceptional gain of HK$12.23 million
1 through the exercise of convertible bonds of Yanjing Brewery by the Yanjing
{ Brewery's bondholders. The profit margin for Yanjing's beer products
remained steady mainly due to effective cost control measure.
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Yanjing has established and acquired 19 regional beer operations throughout the PRC and bear a
total operating capacity of 4.5 million tons. Yanjing is poised to maintain its leading position in the

China beer market and plans to become one of the top ten brewer in the world.
Retail and Tourism Services

Retail

The revenue of Wangfujing Department Stores jumped 45.3% to HK$4.737
billion mainly due to acquisition and opening of new stores in Beijing
and other provinces in the PRC. Wangfujing operates altogether 13
medium and large scale department stores in the PRC with a total floor
area of 299,043 square metres.

Riding on the strong turnover growth, net profit attributable to the
Group improved to HK$15.7 million. Some of the new stores have not
yet achieved economy of scale and are still suffering from operating
losses. Also, the operating profits derived from department store business
was largely offset by interest expenses and set up costs of new stores.

Tourism

The Group is transforming into a limited diversified conglomerate with
B focus on infrastructure and utilities business and supplemented by
| consumer products sector. In order to achieve this strategic goal, the
Group disposed of Jianguo Hotel last year. During the year, the Company
completed the disposal of Badaling Tourism Development Ltd. as well.
Only Longgingxia tourism site was left behind in this sector.

The tourism sector suffered a minor loss in 2005 due to the impairment provision for investment in
Long Qing Xia. The Group will ultimately withdraw from this sector in the future.

Technology

Information Technology

Beijing Development (Hong Kong) Limited remained the Group’s IT
application flagship. Its consolidated turnover almost remained unchanged
at HK$531 million in 2005. The Group share a net operating loss of
HK$19.56 million mainly due to provision against certain receivables of
services income derived in previous years. Beijing Development recently
secured major system integration provision contracts for Beijing Subway

system and is expected to drive revenue and profit growth in the future.
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Others

Ever Source Science & ‘2chnology .
Development Co., Limited engages in the

development and use Of the encrgy (heat) of

the earth’s surface. After five years' practice,

its development and use of surface energy

(heat) is applied to buildings located in

different geologicai conditions, area and

functions. At present, its products for surface o —
heat gathering are under proprietary intellectual property - jhts protection, standardized, and
produced in large scale. '

Since 2005, Ever Source Science & Technology Development Co., Limited has been establishing
regional energy service companies as franchised operations to promote the use of surface energy

(heat) as a first alternative strategic energy resource for heating.

Formerly an engineering contractor, Ever Source Science & Technology Development Co., Limited
is in the process of transformation into a product supplier and a technology service supplier using
an integrated technology platform as support, while sales, construction works, operation services,
and supply of parts and accessories are carried out by regional companies.

The business turnover of Ever Source Science & Technology Development Co., Limited has
undergone a significant fall as a result of operation mode adjustments. In 2005, a net operating
loss of approximately HK$30 million of Ever Source Science & Technology Development Co.,
Limited was attributed to the Group. Given the implementation of the strategy of using the
surface energy as a heating substitute, its business is expected to improve in the near future.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overall analysis of results HKS billion

f2- 1

Turnover of the Group was approximately HK$11 billion for the 04 7 Y

year, increased 13.8% comparing to last year. The strong growth

o
1

was driven by merger of Shuang An and Dong An department
stores with Wangfujing Group in Beijing, opening of new department

stores by Wangfujing Group as well as expansion of regional 47
operations by Yanjing Brewery. 2+
O 06 T 200
Turnover 1

Hk$ milion | Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for year 2005 increased
8007 oo 2 by 13.3% to HK$570.4 million. Earning per share was up the same extent
s01 to HK$0.92. The healthy growth in net profit was helped by
400 - deconsolidation of loss making dairy business since the beginning of
200 2005. During the year, the strong revenue growth of the Capital
Expressway and turnaround of Wangfujing’ retail business helped to
2007 drive the operating profit growth of the Group.
100
2004 2005
. Profit attributable to shareholders

Overall gross profit margin was steady at 27% mainly due to steady product price and materials
costs. Selling and distribution costs increased significantly also due to consolidation of results of
Shuang An and Dong An department stores as well as Huiguan Beer.

Exceptional Profits

During the year, the Group completed the sale of equity interests in Sanyuan Foods and Badaling
Tourism Development Ltd and several other smaller projects and altogether derived gross
exceptional gain of approximately HK$217 million. The Group also took the chance to make
provision for the diminution in value of goodwill attributing to certain non performing assets and
diminution in value of some other investment projects. The net exceptional gain attributable to
the Group was approximately HK$128 million.
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Cashflow and Financial Position

2005 year end 2004 year end
i HKS$ million HK$ million

| Cash 3,558 4,195
Short-term loans 2,505 2,100
Long-term loans 922 2,293
Net cash/(debt) 131 (198)
Net debt equity ratio N/A 2.5%

Cash position decreased by approximately HK$637 million mainly 00~ HK$ million

due to early partial repayment of the outstanding syndicated loans.

Total bank borrowings including long term loans declined by a 100
greater extent of HK$966 million due to receipt of certain proceeds
from disposal of Sanyuan Dairy and Badaling Tourism Development
Ltd. Net cash position (cash netting off bank loans and convertible -100 °
bond) was HK$131 million at end of 2005.

-200 (198)

3007 2004 2005
Net cash/(debt)

2005 year end 2004 year end

B HKS$ billion HK$ billion
| Non-current assets 12.04 10.88
Current assets 7.58 8.51

Current liabilities 6.0 5.32

Net current assets 1.58 3.19

Non-current assets increased by approximately HK$1.16 billion mainly due to merger of Shuangan
i, and Dongan department stores as well as consolidation of Huiquan Beer upon acquisition of its
i controlling interests. Current assets at end of the year decreased significantly by HK$921 million
mainly due to exclusion of relevant assets of Sanyuan upon completion of sale of its equity
interests and transfer of prepaid expenditure to fixed assets by Yanjing Brewery. Current liabilities
increased by HK$676 million mainly due to consolidation of Huiquan Beer and merger of Shuang
An and Dong An department stores. Net current assets of the Group was HK$1.58 billion at end
of 2005.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group has initiated the share reform plan of Beijing Yanjing Beer Ltd., an A share listed
company in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Details and potential financial impact of the initial
share reform plan was announced in a separate announcement on 31 March 2006. Upon completion
of the share reform plan, the Group’s equity interests in Yanjing will become tradable shares and is
likely to be more valuable.

On 31 March 2006, the Group entered into conditional sale and purchase agreement to sell the
entire 50.13% controlling interests in Wangfujing department Stores Ltd. The details of the
transaction was announced in a separate announcement on 3 April 2006. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group is expected to derive exceptional gain of approximately HK$180 million.
Also, the Group will completely withdraw from the retail and tourism sector and focus its future
resources on the development and operation of utilities and infrastructure projects in Beijing area.

CAPITALISATION

Shareholders’ equity increased to approximately HK$8.44 billion while minority interests amounted
to approximately HK$4.06 billion as at 31 December 2005.

PROSPECTS

Upon completion of disposal of controlling stake in Wangfujing Department Stores Ltd, the Group
will become more focused on infrastructure and utilities sector. In the mean time, the Group will
remain committed to brandname beer business, continue to develop the national brandname.

In the toll road business, the Group has committed to invest and construct the northern extension
of the Beijing Capital Expressway. The new extension is expected to expand total traffic volume
and bring in additional revenue.

As regarding utilities business, the Group is in the process of feasibility study of new water
purification project in Beijing. Also, the Group is pursuing possibility of investing in pipeline gas
business in Beijing and neighbouring provinces.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YI Xi Qun, aged 58, is the Chairman of the Company and Beijing Holdings Limited. He
graduated from Beijing Chemical Institute in 1975 and later obtained a postgraduate degree in
economics and management engineering from Tsinghua University. From 1986 to 1987, Mr. Yi was
in charge of the Beijing Municipal Government Economic Structure Reform Committee and from
1987 to 1991, he served as the Chief Executive Officer of Xicheng District of Beijing. Since 1991,
Mr. Yi has been an assistant to the Mayor of Beijing as well as Director of the Economic and
Foreign Trade Commission of Beijing Municipality and the Management Committee of the Beijing
Economic and Technology Development Zone. Mr. Yi has in-depth knowledge and a wealth of
experience in macroeconomic and microeconomic management. Mr. Yi joined the Group in
December 1999.

Mr. ZHANG Hong Hai, aged 53, is a Vice Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Beijing University in 1982 and subsequently obtained a
postgraduate qualification in business studies at the International Business School of Hunan
University and was awarded the title of Senior Economist. Mr. Zhang has worked for the Beijing
Municipal Government for many years. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhang was the director
of the Foreign Affairs Office of the People's Government of Beijing Municipality and Hong Kong
and Macao Affairs Office of the People’s Government of Beijing Municipality. He also served as
Vice President of the Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Zhang initially worked
as Deputy General Manager and was then promoted to Vice Chairman and General Manager of
Beijing International Trust Investment Limited during the period from 1990 to 1998, and has
accumulated extensive experience in corporate management. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in
December 2003.

Mr. LI Fu Cheng, aged 51, is a Vice Chairman of the Company. Since 1983, he has held the posts
of Deputy Secretary and Secretary of the Yanjing Brewing Factory, and then the Chairman and
General Manager of the Yanjing Group. Mr. Li has many years of experience in the brewery
industry. Mr. Li joined the Group in April 1997.

Mr. BAl Jin Rong, aged 55, is a Vice Chairman of the Company. He is also the Vice Board
Chairman and General Manager of Beijing Enterprises Group Holdings Company Limited and
Chairman of Beijing Gas Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Bai graduated from Beijing Normal University in
1985 and had worked as the Deputy Director and Director of the Policy Research Office of Beijing
Chemical Industry Group, the Deputy Director of the Beijing Economic Structure Reforms
Committee, the Executive Director and Executive Vice President of the Company, the Deputy
Director of Beijing State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission. Mr. Bai has
many years of experience in economics, finance and enterprise management. Mr. Bai rejoined the
Group in June 2005.
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Mr. GUO Ying Ming, aged 62, is an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated from the
Beijing Foreign Trade Institute in 1967. Since February 1989, he has served as General Manager,
Vice Chairman and Chairman of Beijing Holdings Limited. Prior to that, from 1985 to 1988, he
held the posts of Chairman and General Manager of China Resource Products (U.S.A.) Limited,
the strategic investment company of the Beijing Municipal Government in the USA. He has
extensive experience in international economics, foreign trade and enterprise management. From
April 1997 to February 2000, Mr. Guo was the Vice Chairman and President of the Company. Mr.
Guo rejoined the Group in December 2002.

Mr. LIU Kai, aged 52, is an Executive Director and a Vice President of the Company. Mr. Liu is
responsible for the general management of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Investment Management
Co., Ltd. He graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering
in 1979, and later obtained a postgraduate degree in domestic economics and management from
the State Administration Institute. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as a Senior
Executive of the Beijing Transportation Bureau and the Beijing Transportation Corporation. Mr. Liu
has many years of experience in economics and management. Mr. Liu joined the Group in January
2001.

Mr. ZHENG Wan He, aged 54, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zheng graduated
from the Beijing Economic Institute in 1982. Since November 1984, he has held various posts
within Wangfujing Group including the Deputy General Manager of Beijing Wangfujing Department
Store and later the Vice Chairman and General Manager of Beijing Wangfujing Department Store
(Group) Co., Ltd. He has many years of experience in economics, retail business and enterprise
management. Mr. Zheng is presently the Vice Chairman of China Department Stores Association
and China Chain Stores Association and an executive member of China United Commerce
Association. Mr. Zheng joined the Group in April 1997.

Mr. LI Man, aged 47, a former Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li obtained his bachelor
degrees in philosophy and economics from Beijing Normal University and Beijing Polytechnic
University respectively. Mr. Li served as Deputy Chief Executive of Beijing Yanqing County
Administration Academy and Executive Deputy Principal of Beijing Science and Technology
University, Yanging County Branch since 1996. Mr. Li is presently the director of Beijing Badaling
Special Zone Administrative Centre, the General Manager of Badaling Tourism Company and the
General Manager of Badaling Tourism Development Company. He has indepth-knowledge and
experience in hotel management and tourism business. Mr. Li joined the Group in August 2001
and resigned in December 2005.
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Mr. GUO Pu Jin, aged 52, is an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated from the
political education faculty of Capital Normal University in 1976 and later finished his postgraduate
studies at Capital Trade and Economics University. Mr. Guo was previously the Chief Executive
Officer of Da Xing District of Beijing and is currently the Chairman of Beijing Capital Expressway
Development Company Limited. Mr. Guo has many years of experience in government affairs and
corporate management in China. Mr. Guo joined the Group in April 2004,

Mr. ZHOU Si, aged 49, is an Executive Director of the Company. He is also the Deputy General
Manager of Beijing Enterprises Group Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Beijing Normal University in 1978 and Tsinghua University in 1998. From 1984 to 2003, he was the
Chief Officer of the General Planning Division and subsequently the Head and Deputy Director of
the Planning Division of Beijing Municipal Management Commission. Since 2003, he has been the
Managing Director of Beijing Gas Group Co., Ltd. He has extensive experience in economics,
finance and enterprise management. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in June 2005.

Mr. E Meng, aged 47, is an Executive Director and a Vice President of the Company. Mr. E
graduated from China Science and Technology University with a master’s degree in engineering.
He is a PRC senior accountant with the qualifications of PRC certified accountant, asset appraiser,
certified real estate appraiser and tax appraiser. From 1988 to 1997, he was the Deputy Director
of Beijing New Technology Development Zone and concurrently acting as the Director of the
Department of Financial Auditing, the General Manager of Investment Operation Company, the
chief accountant of Beijing Tianping Accounting Firm and the Deputy Director of the State-owned
Assets Management Office of Beijing Haidian District. Mr. E has extensive experience in economics,
finance and enterprise management. Mr. E joined the Group in November 1997.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, Ambrose, aged 58, holds a bachelor of law degree from the University of
London and is a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong, a China-Appointed Attesting
Officer and a Notary Public. Mr. Lau is also a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference and the Selection Committee For the First Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") and a Non-official Justice of the
Peace. He was the President of the Law Society of Hong Kong from 1992 to 1993. Mr. Lau was a
member of the Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR and the Legislative Council of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lau joined the Group in April 1997.
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Dr. LEE Tung Hai, Leo, GBS, LLD, Jp, aged 84, is the Chairman of Tung Tai Group of Companies and
an independent non-executive director or a non-executive director of several publicly listed
companies in Hong Kong. He is a member of a number of public services committees and heads
many social service organisations, including as an Adviser of the Advisory Board of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals, Chairman of Association of Chairmen of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals,
Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong Association and Vice President of China Overseas Friendship
Association. He served as a Standing Committee member of the eighth and ninth Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference National Committee; an Adviser on Hong Kong Affairs to the
Hong Kong & Macau Affairs Office of the State Council and Xinhua News Agency, Hong Kong
Branch; a member of the Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region; and a member of the Selection Committee of the First Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Dr Lee has been honoured with awards by different governments,
including Cavaliere di Gran Croce of Italy, O.B.E. of Great Britain, Chevalier Legion d'Honneur of
France, Commandeur de I’'Ordre de Leopold !l of Belgium and Gold Bauhinia Star of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government of the People’s Republic of China. Dr. Lee has
extensive experience in business management. Dr. Lee joined the Group in April 1997.

Mr. WANG Xian Zhang, aged 63, graduated from the Northeast Finance & Economics University,
China in 1965. He has been involved in the insurance industry since 1970, and was Chairman of
the Board and President of China Life Insurance Company Limited, Vice Chairman and Vice
President of The People's Insurance Company of China, Vice Chairman and President of China
Insurance H.K. (Holdings) Company Limited, Chairman of The Ming An Insurance Company (Hong
Kong), Limited, Chairman of China Reinsurance Company (Hong Kong) Limited, a Director of
several financial institutions such as Bank of China, CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited, Top Glory Insurance
Co. (Bermuda) Ltd. Mr. Wang is now President of the Insurance Association of China and Vice
President of the Insurance Institute of China. Mr. Wang joined the Group in April 1997.

Mr. WU Jiesi, aged 54, holds a doctorate degree in Economics. He conducted post-doctoral
research work in theoretical economics at the Nankai University in the PRC and was conferred the
professorship qualification by the Nankai University in 2001. During the period from 1984 to 1995,
Mr. Wu worked at the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China in a number of positions, including
as the President of Shenzhen Branch. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Wu was Vice Mayor of Shenzhen
Municipal Government and from 1998 to 2000 he was the assistant to the Governor of Guangdong
province. He was the Chairman of Guangdong Yue Gang Investment Holdings Company Limited
and GDH Limited, the Honorary President of Guangdong Investment Limited and Guangdong
Tannery Limited. At present, he is the managing director and chief executive officer of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited, an independent non-executive director of China Insurance
International Holdings Company Limited, a non-executive director of China Water Affairs Group
Limited and an independent director of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. He has extensive experience
in finance and management. Mr. Wu joined the Group in July 2004.
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Mr. Robert A. THELEEN, aged 60, is the Chairman, founder and Co-Chief Executive Officer of
China Vest, Ltd., a Shanghai-based Merchant Bank. Mr. Theleen was a pioneer in the private
equity investment industry in China where, in 1982, he launched one of the first venture capital
funds investing in China. Mr. Theleen is also a Trustee of the Asia Foundation and an active
member of the business community in Shanghai where he resides. He was educated at Duquesne
University and at the American School of Management in the United States where he obtained his
master's degree in business administration in 1970. He is also a member of the Advisory Board of
the Hopkins-Nanjing Center in Nanjing, China. Mr. Theleen joined the Group in July 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIANG Xin Hao, aged 41, is a Vice President of the Company. Mr. Jiang graduated from
Fudan University in 1987 with a bachelor’s degree in law, and then in 1992 with a master’s degree
in law. Mr. Jiang was a lecturer at Beijing University between 1992 and 1995. From 1995 to 1997,
Mr. Jiang was a Deputy General Manager of Jingtai Finance Company in Hong Kong, and
subsequently a Director and Vice President of BHL Industrial Investment Company. From 1997 to
February 2005, Mr. Jiang was a Director and the Chief Executive Officer of Tramford International
Limited, a public company listed on Nasdag. Mr. Jiang was a Manager of the investment
development department of Beijing Holdings Limited and a General Manager of Beijing BHL
Investment Center between May 2000 and February 2005. He served as a Policy Analyst of the
Chinese State Commission of Restructuring Economic System from 1987 to 1989. Mr. Jiang has
many years of experience in economics, finance and corporate management. Mr. Jiang joined the
Group in February 2005.

Mr. TAM Chun Fai Jimmy, aged 44, is the Financial Controller and the Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Tam graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree
in accountancy and is a regular member of Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam has extensive experience in auditing and
corporate advisory services with major international accounting firms. He was involved in floatation
and audit work of a wide variety of businesses, including electronics, electrical appliances, athletic
shoes manufacturing, banking, insurance, securities and property development. Mr. Tam joined
the Group in April 1997,
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial statements. During the year, the
Group discontinued its hotel operations and its tourism operations in Badaling Great Wall, a
scenic area in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), further details of which are
included in note 52(b)(v) to the financial statements. There were no other changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2005 and the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 38 to 186.

An interim dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share was paid on 9 November 2005. The directors
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.20 per ordinary share in respect of the year
to shareholders on the register of members on 15 June 2006. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the balance sheet.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, and assets, liabilities and total equity of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on pages 187 to 188. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment properties of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
~ respectively. Further details of the Group's investment properties are set out on pages 189 to 190.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share options and the Group’s convertible bonds during
the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in notes 35 and 38 to the financial

statements, respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's
listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out
in note 36(b) to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,

respectively.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2005, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of Section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$5,183,578,000,
of which HK$124,500,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the
Company'’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$4,839,497,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS

n the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers and purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s turnover and total
purchases for the year, respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yi Xi Qun (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hong Hai (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Li Fu Cheng (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Bai Jin Rong (Vice Chairman) (appointed on 17 June 2005)
Mr. Guo Ying Ming

Mr. Liu Kai (Vice President)

Mr. Zheng Wan He

Mr. Li Man (resigned on 23 December 2005)
Mr. Guo Pu Jin

Mr. Zhou Si (appointed on 17 June 2005)

Mr. E Meng (Vice President) {appointed on 17 June 2005)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Ambrose

Dr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo

Mr. Wang Xian Zhang

Mr. Wu Jiesi

Mr. Robert A. Theleen

In accordance with articles 96 and 105(A) of the Company's articles of association and the
recommendation of the board of directors, Messrs. Bai Jin Rong, Guo Ying Ming, Guo Pu Jin,
Zhou Si, E Meng, Lee Tung Hai, Leo and Wang Xian Zhang will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each of the five independent
directors of the Company, and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 15 to 19 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Yi Xi Qun has a service contract with the Company for a term of five years commencing on
1 June 2003 with an unexpired period of approximately 29 months as at 31 December 2005. This
service contract, which was entered into before 1 February 2004, is exempt from the shareholders’
approval requirement under Rule 13.68 of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) which has taken effect since 1 February
2004.

Each of Messrs. Zhang Hong Hai, Liu Kai and E Meng has a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 3 December 2003, 16 January 2004 and 17 June 2005,
respectively, with respective unexpired periods of approximately 11 months, 12 months and 29
months as at 31 December 2005.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments
are determined by the Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group as well as the recommendation of
the remuneration committee. Further details of the Company’s remuneration committee are set
out in the corporate governance report on pages 31 to 35 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2005, the interests and short positions of the directors and the chief executive in
the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations: '

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company and Beijing Development
(Hong Kong) Limited, an indirectly held subsidiary of the Company, are separately disclosed in
note 35 to the financial statements.

Long positions in shares of associated corporations:
Percentage of the

Number of associated
Name of ordinary corporation’s
Name of director associated corporation shares held issued share capital
Mr. Li Fu Cheng Beijing Yanjing Brewery 30,628* 0.0030
Company Limited
("Yanjing Brewery”)@
Mr. Zheng Wan He Beijing Wangfujing 45,738* 0.0116
Department Store
(Group) Co., Ltd.®
@ All these associated corporations are indirectly held subsidiaries of the Company

# All interests are directly beneficially owned by the directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXEC TIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND U DERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 Decembe ,, 05, none of the directors or the chief executive
had registered an interest or short position indt Je shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporatic\h?v that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise n fied to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQU!.:E SHARES OR CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

During the year, Mr. Li Fu Cheng, a director of the Company, received 10,209 bonus shares of
Yanjing Brewery based upon the 20,419 shares of Yanjing Brewery that he owned.

Apart from the foregoing and save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share option
scheme disclosures in note 35 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other

body corporate.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

On 6 September 2005, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with Canfort
Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Holdings Limited (“BHL"), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, to conditionally dispose of the Company's 63.75% equity
interest in it RIERM B ZHEMTEEBR 2 F] (Beijing Enterprises Holdings Maglev Technology
Development Co., Ltd.}("Beijing Maglev") to Canfort Investment Limited for a cash consideration
of RMB38,190,000 (approximately HK$36,721,000). Beijing Maglev is a Sino-foreign joint venture
established in the PRC and principally engaged in the research and development of magnetic
levitation technology and provision of related services.

On the same date, Space Express Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an equity transfer agreement with Beijing Holdings (BVl) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of BHL, to conditionally dispose of its 100% equity interest in Beijing Enterprises (Tourism) Limited
("BE Tourism”) to Beijing Holdings (BVI) Limited for a cash consideration of RMB336,835,000
(approximately HK$323,880,000). BE Tourism is an investment holding company and the major
asset of which is its 75% equity interest in It R JVZERER D ER 2 7] (Beijing Badaling Tourism
Co., Ltd.), which is a Sino-foreign-joint venture established in the PRC and principally engaged in
the operations of tourism businesses in Badaling Great Wall, a scenic area in Beijing, the PRC, and
a hotel in Yanging County, Beijing, the PRC, and the holding of a 36.25% equity interest in Beijing
Maglev.

Contract terms of the above two transactions have been reviewed by an independent board
committee comprising all the independent non-executive directors of the Company, who has
confirmed that the transactions were fair and reasonable as far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned. Further details of the transactions undertaken in connection with these contracts
during the year are included in note 52(b)(v) to the financial statements.

b
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. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
- INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2005, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:
Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

Person Percentage
having a of the
Directly Through security Company'’s
beneficially controlled interest in issued share
Name Notes owned corporations Shares Total capital
Modern Orient Limited 100,050,000 - - 100,050,000 16.07
Beijing Enterprises
Investments Limited  (a) 273,950,000 100,050,000 - 374,000,000 60.08
BHL (b) - 374,000,000 - 374,000,000 60.08
Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft 82,105,500 - 12,624700 94,730,200 15.22
Notes:
(a) The interest disclosed includes the shares owned by Modern Orient Limited. Modern Orient Limited is held

directly as to 100% by Beijing Enterprises investments Limited. Accordingly, Beijing Enterprises Investments

Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Modern Orient Limited.

(b) The interest disclosed includes the shares owned by Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited and Modern Orient
Limited. Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited, the holding company of Modern Orient Limited, is held indirectly
as to 72.72% by BHL. Accordingly, BHL is deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Beijing Enterprises

Investments Limited and Modern Orient Limited.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Short positions:
Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

Person Percentage
having a of the
Directly Through security Company's
beneficially controlled interest in issued share
Name Notes owned corporations Shares Total capital
Beijing Enterprises
Investments Limited  (a) 60,000,000 - - 60,000,000 9.64
BHL (b) - 60,000,000 - 60,000,000 9.64
Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft 20,395,000 - 1,939,000 22,334,000 3.59
Notes:
(a) Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited lent 60,000,000 shares of the Company it owned to Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft on 30 November 2005.
(b) The interest disclosed includes the shares owned by Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited. Beijing Enterprises

Investments Limited is held indirectly as to 72.72% by BHL. Accordingly, BHL is deemed to be interested in the

shares owned by Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2005, no person, other than the directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief executive's interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group during

the year are set out in note 52 to the financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (iv) within the
prescribed limits as set out in the waiver letters in respect of connected transactions granted by
the Stock Exchange to the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Details of the significant events after the balance sheet date of the Group are set out in note 53
to the financial statements.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules, the following
disclosures are included in respect of the Company’s syndicated loan facility, which contains
covenants requiring performance obligations of the Company’s holding companies.

In 2001, the Company obtained a five-year US$180 million syndicated loan facility. The loan
agreement includes certain conditions imposing specific performance obligations on the Company’s
holding companies, among which are the following events which would constitute an event of

default on the loan facility:

1. If the beneficial interest in more than 50% of the entire issued capital of the Company
ceases 1o be owned by persons or entities controlled by the Beijing Municipal People’s
Government of China; or

2. If any of the Company’s holding companies stops or suspends payments to its creditors
generally, or is unable to or admits its inability to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due, or is declared or becomes bankrupt or insolvent.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the

directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

7™ 0

Chairman

Hong Kong
11 April 2006
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GENERAL

Saved as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) for the
year ended 31 December 2005.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by
directors of the Company (the “Directors”). All the members of the board of Directors (the
“Board”) have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2005. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior management of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition and role

The Board comprises of ten Executive Directors and five Independent Non-executive Directors.
The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development of the Group, while the
management is principally responsible for the Group’s business operations. The Board also monitors
the financial performance and the internal controls of the Group's business operations.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules to appoint at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors. In addition, at least one Independent Non-executive Director
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications or financial management expertise in
accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director an annual confirmation or
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company still
considers such Directors to be independent.

During the year, more than four Board meetings {of which two were regular semi-yearly meetings,
others were irregular meetings) were held. This deviates from code provision A.1.1. The Directors
consider it is more efficient to hold Board meetings to address emerging issues as appropriate.
Sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that there is efficient communication among the

Directors.
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The individual attendance of each director is set out below:

Independent

Regular Board irregular Board Board Committee

Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings
Mr. Yi Xi Qun 2/2 2/2 -
Mr. Zhang Hong Hai 2/2 2/2 -
Mr. Li Fu Cheng 2/2 2/2 -
Mr. Bai Jin Rong™* 171 11 -
Mr. Guo Ying Ming 2/2 1/2 -
Mr. Liu Kai 2/2 2/2 -
Mr. Zheng Wan He 2/2 2/2 -
Mr. Li Man (resigned on 23 December 2005) 2/2 2/2 -
Mr. Guo Pu Jin 2/2 2/2 -
Mr. Zhou Si* 1/1 11 -
Mr. E Meng* 171 171 -
Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Ambrose 0/2 1/1 11
Dr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo 2/2 171 171
Mr. Wang Xian Zhang 1/2 071 LA
Mr. Wu Jiesi 0/2 11 11
Mr. Robert A. Theleen 1/2 0/1 11
* These Directors were appointed during the second half of the year 2005 and accordingly were only entitled to

attend two Board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2005.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman of the Company is Mr. Yi Xi Qun and the chief executive officer of the Company is
Mr. Zhang Hong Hai. The Company has complied with code provision A.2.1 which stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company (all are Independent Non-executive Directors) are
not appointed for specific terms, which deviates from the requirement of code provision A.4.1.
However, in view of the fact that they are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association, the Company considers that there are sufficient measures to
ensure that the corporate governance standard of the Company is not less exacting than that of
the code provisions.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 and the current members include:

Mr. Wu Jiesi - Committee Chairman
Dr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo
Mr. Liu Kai

The majority of the Remuneration Committee members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Company’s overall policy and structure for
the remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee ensures that no director of the Company or any of his associate is involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The Company has adopted the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with code provision B.1.3. A copy of the terms of reference is posted on

the Company's website.

In determining the emolument payable to Directors, the Remuneration Committee takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to determine the policy for the remuneration of
Directors and assess performance of Executive Directors and certain senior management of the
Company. During the year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held, the individual

attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of director Number of meetings attended
Mr. Wu Jiesi 171
Dr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo 11
Mr. Liu Kai /1

Compensation Policy

The objective of the compensation policy of the Company is to provide an equitable and competitive
compensation package so as to attract and retain the best employees to serve corporate needs.
The compensation package for each employee is structured to include: base salary which is fixed
to commensurate with market rate and each individual’s experience and ability; share options
granted with reference to an individual employee’s position, performance and ability to contribute
to the overall corporate success (the granting of share options is subject to shareholders’ mandates
as required and all applicable laws and regulations of relevant jurisdictions); and other customary
and/or mandatory benefits to employees, such as retirement fund scheme, insurance and paid
holiday, with reference to prevailing practices in relevant jurisdictions.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the auditors of the Company only provided audit services
to the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Dr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo - Committee Chairman
Mr. Wang Xian Zhang
Mr. Wu Jiesi

All Audit Committee members are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board considers
that each Audit Committee member has broad commercial experience and there is a suitable mix
of expertise in business, accounting and financial management on the Audit Committee. The
composition and members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted the written terms of reference which describe
the authority and duties of the Audit Committee in accordance with code provision C.3.3. A copy
of the terms of reference is posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the reporting of financial and other information to
shareholders, the effectiveness and objectivity of the audit process. The Audit Committee also
provides an important link between the Board and the Company's auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the independence and objectivity
of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed financial reporting matters including a review of the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2005.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of director Number of meetings attended
Dr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo 2/2
Mr. Wang Xian Zhang L 2/2

Mr. Wu Jiesi 2/2

Iy
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DIRECTORS' AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged responsibility for reviewing the accounts of the Company prepared
by the Executive Board for the year ended 31 December 2005 and ensuring the accounts are
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. A statement by the
auditors about their reporting responsibilities is contained in the Auditors’ Report.

The Board confirmed that it has taken the same view from that of the Audit Committee regarding

the appointment of the external auditors.




ANNUAL REPORT 2005 90

| REPORT OF THE AUDITORS |

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

£ AR & F @ F H O

To the members

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited |

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 38 to 186 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare financial statements which give a true
and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility
to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those financial statements and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Companies Ordinance,

and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes an examination, on a test

basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Company’s and the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which
we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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OPINION

n our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2005 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group
for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

Ordinance.

A, A

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
11 April 2006
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Year ended 31 December 2005
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2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
TURNOVER 4
Continuing operations 11,000,613 8,779,956
Discontinued operation 10(a) - 885,684
11,000,613 9,665,640
Cost of sales {8,025,369) {7,005,9234)
Gross profit 2,975,244 2,659,706
Interest income 4 73,165 44,751
Other revenue and gains, net 4 447,642 362,779
Selling and distribution costs (1,166,479) {835,1006)
Administrative expenses (1,037,236) (1,095,343)
Other operating expenses, net (254,757) (225,923)
Fair value gains on investment properties, net 13,635 13,785
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5 1,051,214 924,649
Finance costs 6 (156,220) (138,048)
Share of profits and losses of:
Jointly-controlied entities 20(c) (26,892) 56,453
Associates 21(c) 21,793 51,175
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Continuing operations 809,908 1,018,762
Discontinued operation 10(a) 79,987 (124,533)
889,895 894,229
TAX ?
Continuing operations (175,086) (233,156)
Discontinued operation 10(a) - 3,687
(175,086) (229,469)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Continuing operations 634,822 785,606
Discontinued operation 10(a) 79,987 (120,846)
714,809 664,760
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Year ended 31 December 2005

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the Company:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Minority interests

DIVIDENDS
Interim
Proposed final

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic for profit for the year
Basic for profit from continuing operations
Diluted for profit for the year

Diluted for profit from continuing operations

2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
490,435 571,892
79,987 (68,704)
11 570,422 503,188
144,387 161,572
714,809 664,760
12
62,250 62,250
124,500 124,500
186,750 186,750
13
HK$0.92 HK$0.81
HK$0.79 HK$0.92
HK$0.90 HK$0.79
HK$0.78 HK$0.90
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2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 14 8,037,017 6,338,571
Investment properties 15 446,820 342,722
Prepaid land premiums 16 377,320 430,193
Goodwill 17 275,777 330,198
Other intangible assets 18 1,517,866 1,560,413
Interests in jointly-controlled entities 20 182,918 556,678
Interests in associates 21 248,849 590,869
Properties under development 24 - 132,032
Trade and bills receivables 28 33,202 69,310
Other receivables 29 313,782 176,881
Pledged bank balances 22 34,684 8,743
Available-for-sale financial assets 23 510,037 285,056
Deferred tax assets 40 67,772 62,747
Total non-current assets 12,046,044 10,884,413
Current assets:
Prepaid land premiums 16 12,684 8,176
Properties under development 24 322,301 -
Properties held for sale 25 39,406 62,990
inventories 26 1,574,923 1,239,969
Amounts due from customers for contract work 27 25,238 16,915
Trade and bills receivables 28 928,709 790,034
Other receivables 29 1,055,066 825,359
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 31 45,551 50,202
Taxes recoverable 37,415 20,167
Pledged bank balances 22 15,557 45,168
Cash and cash equivalents 32 3,508,055 4,141,464
7,564,905 7,200,444
Assets of a disposal group and non-current assets
classified as held for sale 33 19,319 1,304,733
Total current assets 7,584,224 8,505,177
TOTAL ASSETS 19,630,268 19,389,590
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31 December 2005

2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company:
Issued capital 34 62,250 62,250
Reserves 36(a)(i) 8,256,191 7,694,348
Proposed final dividend 12 124,500 124,500
8,442,941 7,881,098
Minority interests 4,064,052 3,720,099
TOTAL EQUITY 12,506,993 11,601,197
Non-current liabilities:
Bank and other borrowings 37 373,311 1,705,134
Convertible bonds 38 548,785 587,424
Other long term liabilities 39 32,682 8,466
Deferred tax liabilities 40 168,527 163,735
Total non-current liabilities 1,123,305 2,464,759
Current liabilities:
Trade and bills payables 41 1,165,555 765,782
Amounts due to customers for contract work 27 48,580 51,770
Other payables and accruals 42 1,839,417 1,544,281
Taxes payable 43 395,132 368,349
Bank and other borrowings 37 2,505,132 2,099,637
5,953,816 4,829,839
Liabilities directly associated with assets of
a disposal group and non-current assets classified
as held for sale 33 46,154 493,795
Total current liabilities 5,999,970 5,323,634
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,123,275 7,788,393
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 19,630,268 19,389,590

Yi Xi Qun

Director Director

Zhang Hong Hai
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| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY |

Year ended 31 December 2005

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Share Property Investment Exchange PRC Proposed
Issued premium  Capital revaluation revaluation fluctuation  reserve Retained final Minority Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  raserve  reserve  funds  profits  dividend Total interests  equity
Notes  HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKY'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000

(note 36(a) (note 36(a)
(i) (i)

At 1 January 2004 62,050 4839497 (351,281) 24837 - 396 603433 2226076 112,050 7,551,828 3,547,265 11,099,093
Exchange realignment - - - - - 382 - - - 382 29 651
Fair value adjustments of

available-for-sale financial assets - - - - (44,300) - - - - {44,300) - {44,300
Impairment of available-for-sale

financial assets recognised during

the year in the income statement - - - - 44300 - - - - 44300 - 44300 1

i

Total income and expense for the year “

recognised directly in equity - - - - - 382 - - - 382 269 651 :
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 503,188 - 503188 161,572 664,760 !
Total recognised income and

expense for year - - - - - 382 - 503,188 - 503570 161841 685,411
Capital contribution from minority interests - - - - - - - - - - 152890 152,890
Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 69389 69,389
Acquisition of minority interests - - - - - - - - - - (52,650) (52,650}
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries - - - - - 3 - 3 - - (43148 (43,148)
Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary - - 24654 - - - (26445 (22,010) - - (20715 (20,715
Disposat of interests

in jointly-controlled entities - - - (24837 - (09) (16440 27190 - - - -
Deemed disposal of interest in i

a jointly-controlled entity - - - - - - {65) 63 - - - - ‘
Disposal of interest in an associate - - - - - {2349 (66,059) 68,408 - - - - i
Deemed disposal of interest in an associate - - 1.219) - - - (218) 1437 - - - - “
Goodwill released upon disposal of i

interest in a jointly-controlled entity 203) - - 4075 - - - - o7 - - - - 5
Goodwill released upon disposal of

interest in an assaciate 21{a) - - 74,167 - - - - (7460) - - - -
Final 2003 dividend declared - - - - - - - - {112,050 {112,050} - {112,050)
Interim 2004 dividend 12 - - - - - - - (62,250) - {62,250) - {62250 |
Proposed final 2004 dividend 12 - - - - - - - (1245000 124,500 - - - ‘
Dividends paid to minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 04773 (94773)
Transfer to reserves - - 2.237 - - - 87798 (90,035 - - - -

At 31 December 2004 62,250 4,839,497 (210,685 - <F 32,087 620,601 2,412,648" 124,500 7,881,098 3,720,099 11,601,197
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Year ended 31 December 2005

Attributable to sharcholders ¢ 0
Share Property |nvestment Excha: Ho Proposed
lssced premium  Capital revaluation revaluation fluctua: ve Retained final Minority Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  rese s profits  dividend Total interests  equity
Notes HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HK$'000
(note 36(a) 34(3)
i) ) fi)
At1 January 2005 82,050 4839497  (210.685) - - 2401 2412648 124500 7884098 3720099 11,601,197
Exchange realignment - - - - -1 - - - 141984 72145 214129
Fair value gain on revaluation of a building
upon transfer to investment properties 14 - - - 1233 - - - - 123 B0 122
Gain on minority interest on deemed '
capital contribution - - 33589 - - " - - - 33589 (33.589) -
Total income and expense for the year
recognised directly in equity - - 33589 12332 - 419 - - - 187905 3893 224,841
Profit for the year - - - - - - 570422 - 570422 144387 714,809
Total recognised income and
expense for year - - 33589 1232 - 141,984 - 570422 - 758327 183323 941,650
Capital contribution from minority interests - - - - - - - - - - 8999  69.9%
Deemed capital contribution in respect of
an interest-free Joan from
a minority shareholder - - - - - - - - - - BT 82761
Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 457884 457884
Acquisition of minority interests - - - - - - - - - - 2490 (2490
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries - - {136,328) - - (4932) (21,458 157,788 - (4932 (361,386) {366,318)
Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary - - 15980 - - - (1680 (14,313 - - {14498 {14,498)
Disposal of interests in
jointly-controlled entities - - {2,217 - - (543 (8519 9488 - {4802 - (4802
Goodwill released upon disposal
of interest in a subsidiary 17 - - 79457 - - - - {79.457) - - - -
Goodwill released upon disposal of
interest in a jointly-controfled entity 2002} - - 118431 - - - - (118,431 - - - -
Final 2004 dividend declared - - - - - - - - {124,500) (124,500} - (124,500
Interim 2005 dividend 12 - - - - - - - (62,250) - {62,250) - (62,250
Proposed final 2005 dividend 12 - - - - - - - (1245000 124,500 - - -
Dividends paid to minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (11,643 (443
Transfer to reserves - - 17,099 - - (20) 121,360 (138439 - - - -
At 31 December 2005 62,250 4,839,497  (84,734) 12,332 -t 163,885* 712,257* 2,612,954 124,500 8442941 4,064,052 12,506,993
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$8,256,191,000 (2004: HK$7,694,348,000) in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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| CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT |

Year ended 31 December 2005

2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 889,895 894,229
Adjustments for:

Fair value gains on investment properties, net (13,635) (13,785)
Finance costs 6 156,220 138,048
Share of profits and losses of jointly-controlled }

entities and associates 5,099 (107,628)
Depreciation 5 594,861 592,985
Amortisation of operating concessions 5 102,605 101,367
Amortisation of management information systems 5 1,887 1,886 ;
Amortisation of licences 5 1,491 1,435 |
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 5 3,780 29,386 ‘
impairment of goodwill 5 59,658 17,512
Impairment of licences 5 12,000 -
Impairment of deferred development costs 5 5,870 -
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 5 1,083 44,300 |
Impairment on an amount due from an associate 5 4,500 474 j
Impairment on trade receivables 5 48,398 34,855 |
Impairment on other receivables 5 22,445 60,300
Interest income 4 (73,165) (44,751)
Investment income 4 (3,271) (3,053)
Excess over the cost of acquisition of |

a subsidiary and minority interests 4 (3,677) (35,767)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment, net 5 5,556 14,370
Gain on disposal of investment properties 4 (2,466) (238)
{Gain)/loss on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, net 5 (81,097) 6,433
Gain on deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary 4 {(14,498) (20,715)
Gain on disposal of interests in jointly-controlled entities 4 (120,273) -
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in !

a jointly-controlled entity 5 316 680 |
Gain on disposal of interests in associates 4 - (96,766)
(Gain)/loss on deemed disposal of an interest

in an associate 5 927 (369)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 4 (1,514) (6,298)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss, net 4 (2,074) (841)
Fair value losses on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss, net 5 4,132 4,570

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,605,053 1,612,619
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Year ended 31 December 2005

2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,605,053 1,612,619
Decrease in prepaid land premiums 64,049 15,709
Increase in properties under development (190,269) (11,058)
Decrease in properties held for sale 23,584 465,786
Increase in inventories (220,048) (305,424)
Increase in amounts due from customers for contract work (8,323) (10,165)
Increase in trade and bills receivables (143,136) (207,404)
Increase in other receivables (88,085) {302,687)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (6,871) (40,082)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 9,464 34,916
Increase in taxes recoverable (17,355) (1,240)
Increase in trade and bills payables 340,926 108,220
Increase/{decrease) in amounts due to customers
for contract work (3,190) 25,954
Increase in other payables and accruals 385,268 36,749
Increase/(decrease) in other taxes payable 49,008 (5,096)
Increase/(decrease) in other long term liabilities 24,216 (29,787)
Exchange adjustments 10,981 896
Cash generated from operations 1,835,272 1,387,906
Dividends received from jointly-controlled entities
and associates 25,405 98,978
Hong Kong profits tax paid (590) (712)
Mainland China income tax paid (201,078) (187,418)
QOverseas income tax paid (1,097) (486)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,657,912 1,298,268
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Year ended 31 December 2005
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2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 6, 14 (1,366,308) (1,058,061)
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 52,895 121,906
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 3,474 6,679
Purchases of other intangible assets 18 (2,668) (15,642)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 44 (77,326) 223,920
Acquisition of minority interests (1,874) (27,382)
Disposal of subsidiaries 45 80,675 (14,333)
Acquisition of and increase in investments in
jointly-controlled entities and associates (47,369) (258,166)
Proceeds from disposal of interests
in jointly-controlled entities and associates 392,277 355,722
Deposit paid for acquisition of interests in companies 29(a)(ii) (36,743) (156,827)
Net (increase)/decrease in amounts due from/to
jointly-controlled entities and associates 18,880 (7.422)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets (133,891) (10,828)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 1,814 41,512
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with maturity
of more than three months when acquired 677,737 (142,926)
Decrease in pledged bank balances 3,670 10,620
Interest received 58,132 44,751
Investment income received 3,271 3,053
Net cash outflow from investing activities (373,354) (883,424)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions from minority shareholders 19,917 80,870
New loans 2,500,426 2,886,896
Repayment of loans (3,536,684) (2,549,491)
Interest paid 6 (156,524) (139,152)
Dividends paid (186,750) (174,300)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (71,643) (94,773)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities (1,431,258) 10,050

40
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Year ended 31 December 2005

2005

2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (146,700) 424,894
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,507,843 3,083,000
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 56,431 (51)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 3,417,574 3,507,843
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 32 2,917,382 2,990,437
Cash equivalents 32 59,326 41,136
Time deposits 32 581,588 1,163,802
Cash and cash equivalents attributable
to the discontinued operation 10(b) - 134,597
3,558,296 4,329,972
Less: Pledged bank balances 22 (50,241) (53,911)
Time deposits with maturity of more than
three months when acquired (90,481) (768,218)
3,417,574 3,507,843
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2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 14 41,994 40,668
Investment properties 15 134,000 134,000
Interests in subsidiaries 19 5,059,879 5,915,236
Interests in jointly-controlled entities 20 (13,616) (789)
Interests in associates 21 46,168 145,247
Other receivables 29 139,944 4,055
Available-for-sale financial assets 23 141,437 80,462
Total non-current assets 5,549,806 6,318,879
Current assets:
Trade and bills receivables 28 4,844 3,742
Other receivables 29 236,080 178,477
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 31 34,629 37,091
Cash and cash equivalents 32 192,507 489,459
Total current assets 468,060 708,769
TOTAL ASSETS 6,017,866 7.027,648
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity:
lssued capital 34 62,250 62,250
Reserves 36(b) 5,059,078 5,357,018
Proposed final dividend 12 124,500 124,500
TOTAL EQUITY 5,245,828 5,543,768
Non-current liabilities:
Bank and other borrowings 37 - 1,400,850
Current liabilities:
Bank and other borrowings 37 664,775 -
Other payables and accruals 42 97,617 73,906
Taxes payable 43 9,646 9,124
Total current liabilities 772,038 83,030
TOTAL LIABILITIES 772,038 1,483,880
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,017,866 7,027,648

Yi Xi Qun
Director

Zhang Hong Hai

Director
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31 December 2005

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) were involved in

the following principal activities:

. production, distribution and sale of consumer products, including beer and processed
food products in Beijing and other provinces in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC")

o investment in transportation infrastructure, including the Capital Airport Expressway,

which connects the Capital Airport and the city centre of Beijing, and the Shenzhen
Shiguan Road and Bridge, which is loccated in Shenzhen Municipality, the PRC

. the provision of tourism services in Badaling Great Wall (discontinued during the year -
note 52(b}{v)) and Longgqingxia, scenic areas in Beijing

. the provision of hotel services in Beijing, the PRC (discontinued during the year -
note 52(b)(v))

. the provision of retail services in Beijing and certain other cities in the PRC

. investment in commercial and residential properties in Beijing and Hong Kong
° operation of a water puri%ication and treatment plant in Beijing
. property construction and development
. the provision of telecommunications and information technology (“IT”) related services
] construction of geothermal energy systems and provision of related installation services
o restaurant operaticns in the PRC, Thailand, Indonesia, Singapore and Malays.ia

As at 31 December 2005 and the date of approval of these financial statements, the immediate
holding company of the Company is Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and in the opinion of the directors, the ultimate
holding company is Beijing Holdings Limited (*BHL"), which is incorporated in Hong Kong.
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| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

31 December 2005

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for (i) the periodic
remeasurement of hotel and investment properties, and certain financial assets at fair value;
and (ii) a disposal group and non-current assets held for sale, which are stated at the lower of |
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, as further explained in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2005. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. This method involves allocating the cost of the business combinations
to the fair value of the assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the results and net assets

of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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31 December 2005

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The following new and revised HKFRSs are relevant to the Group and became effective in the

current year for the preparation of these financial statements:

. HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”

. HKAS 16 (Revised) “Property, Plant and Equipment”

. HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”

. HKAS 39 (Revised) “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
. HKAS 40 (Revised) “Investment Property”

. HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”

. HK-Int 4 “Leases — Determination of the Length of Lease Term

in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases”

The new and revised HKFRSs have had no material impact on the accounting policies of the
Group and the Company and the methods of computation in the Group’s and the Company’s

financial statements.
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I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

31 December 2005

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, which have been issued but
are not yet effective, in these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these HKFRSs are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006:

J HKAS 1 Amendment  “Capital Disclosures”

o HKAS 19 Amendment “Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures”

. HKAS 21 Amendment “Net Investment in a Foreign Operation”

. HKAS 39 Amendment “Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup
Transactions”

. HKAS 39 Amendment “The Fair Value Option”

. HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4  “Financial Guarantee Contracts”

Amendments
. HKFRSs 1 & 6 “First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Amendments and Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources”
° HKFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources”
. HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
o HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
. HK(IFRIC)-Int 5 “Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration
and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds”
. HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 “Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment”
. HK(FRIC)-Int 7 “Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”
The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2007. The revised standard will affect the disclosures about qualitative information about the
Group’s objective, policies and processes for managing capital; quantitative data about what
the Company regards as capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and the

consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 will replace HKAS 32 and has modified the disclosure requirements of HKAS 32
relating to financial instruments. This HKFRS shall be applied for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2007.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 regarding financial guarantee contracts,
financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured
at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 and (ii) the amount
initially recognised, less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18.

The HKAS 19 Amendment, HKAS 39 Amendment regarding cash flow hedge accounting of
forecast intragroup transactions, HKFRSs 1 and é Amendments, HKFRS 6, HK(IFRIC)-Int 5, HK
(IFRIC)-Int 6 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 do not apply to the activities of the Group. HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005 and
1 March 2006, respectively.

The HKAS 21 Amendment prescribes the accounting treatment on recognition of exchange

differences in respect of net investment in foreign operations.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption of the pronouncements listed
above will not have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements in the period of

initial application.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls more than half of
its voting power or issued share capital or controls the composition of its board of directors.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost

less any accumulated impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital contributions of the
joint venture parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and the basis on which the assets
are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group/Company, directly or indirectly, controls more than half of its
voting power or issued share capital or controls the composition of its board of directors;

(b)  a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group/Company does not have unilateral control, but
has-joint control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

{c) an associate, if the Group/Company does not have unilateral or joint control, but holds,
directly or indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital
and is in a position to exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d)  an available-for-sale financial asset accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, if the
Group/Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered

capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlied entity is a joint venture that is subject to joint control, resulting in none of
the participating parties having unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-
controlled entity.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Where
the profit sharing ratio is different to the Group’s equity interest, the share of post-acquisition
results of the jointly-controlied entities is determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio.
The Group's interests in jointly-controlled entities are stated in the consolidated balance sheet
at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of jointly-controlied entities, which was
not previously eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve, is included as part of the
Group's interests in jointly-controlled entities. Adjustments are made to bring into line any

dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included in the Company’s income statement to the
extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company's interests in jointly-controlled
entities are treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment

losses.

Associates
An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in which the
Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and

over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing
ratio is different to the Group’s equity interest, the share of post-acquisition results of the
associates is determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio. The Group's interests in
associates are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition of associates, which was not previously eliminated against the
consolidated capital reserve, is included as part of the Group’s interests in associates.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are treated as non-
current assets and are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESv(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(9)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any

individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates
represents the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the
net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2004

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as an asset,
initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. In
the case of jointly-controlled entities and associates, goodwill is included in the carrying amount
thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of

units. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

. represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for

internal management purposes; and

o is not larger than a segment based on either the Group'’s primary or the Group’s secondary
reporting format determined in accordance with HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
{group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill previously eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 “Business Combinations” in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve in the year of acquisition.
On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against the consolidated
capital reserve and is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves when all or part
of the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled
entities and associates, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the income statement.

The excess for jointly-controlled entities and associates is included in the Group’s share of the
jointly-controlled entities’ and associates’ profit or loss in the period in which the investments
are acquired.

Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required (other than inventories, construction contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties, goodwill and non-current assets/disposal group classified as
held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is

calculated as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of asssets (cantitaued)

An impairment loss is; recognisd. only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessin(y value ir u'se, the #stimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax dst:ount rat? that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and. the risks sp2 cific to tte asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the perriod in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is accounied for in accordance with the relevant accounting

policy for that revaliued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine: the recoverable amount of that asset, however not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
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unless the asset iss carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment

loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Property, plant: and equipment (previously referred to as “fixed assets”) and
depreciation o

Hotel property

Hotel property is an interest in a hotel building and its integral fixed plant which is collectively
used in the operation of the hotel. Following initial recognition at cost, the hotel property is
carried at a revalued amount which is the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation on such property and accumulated impairment losses.
Fair value is determined by reference to its open market value on the basis of annual professional
valuation performed at the end of each financial year. Accumulated depreciation as at the
revaluation date is eliminated agairst the gross carrying amount of the hotel property and the
net amount is restated to the reval 2d amount af the hotel property.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (previously referred to as “fixed assets”) and
depreciation (continued)

Hotel property (continued)

Changes in the carrying amount of the hotel property as a result of a revaluation are dealt with
as movements in the property revaluation reserve. If this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.

Depreciation of the hotel property is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the |
valuation of the hotel property over its estimated useful life of 40 years. |

On derecognition of the hotel property, the relevant portion of the property revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves,

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as
held for sale or-when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations”, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets
and disposal groups held for sale”.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of the item can
be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a

replacement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (previously referred to as “fixed assets”) and
depreciation (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of the expressway and related structures is calculated on the unit of usage basis
whereby the annual depreciation amount is determined based on the actual traffic volume for
the year to the projected total traffic volume of the expressway over the remaining unexpired

lease terms.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its estimated residual value

over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Buildings 2% to 10%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 5 to 10 years,
whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 5% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% to 20%
Motor vehicles 10% to 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (previously referred to as “fixed assets”) and
depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, structures, plant and machinery and other
property, plant and equipment under construction or installation and is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction, installation and testing as well as capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction or installation. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or investment properties when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold interest

under an operating lease for property which would otherwise meet the definition of an | ot
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for | 3
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs, and not depreciated. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in

the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in

the income statement in the period of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties or inventories, the
deemed cost of property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property at the
date of change in use is accounted for as follows:

(@)  any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the property is recognised in the
income statement in the period the change in use took place.

(b)  any resulting increase in the carrying amount is credited to the income statement, to the
extent the increase reverses a previous impairment loss for that property, or restores the
carrying amount of the property to an amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the property in prior
years; and any remaining part of the increase in the carrying amount is credited directly
to equity in the property revaluation reserve. On subsequent disposal of the property,
the relevant portion of the property revaluation reserve realised is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the income

statement.

When the Group completes the construction or development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value of the property at the completion date and its

previous carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and clisposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For
this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups {other than investment properties, deferred tax assets
and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying

amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by
the Group under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases, net
of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible

assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation |
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each balance sheet date. ‘

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the period the intangible asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant intangible asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Operating concessions

Operating concessions represent the rights to operate a water treatment plant and a toll road,
and to sell entrance tickets in a scenic area, and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis .
over the respective periods of the operating concessions granted to the Group of 20 to 40

years.

Management information systems
Management information systems are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over their

£ estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Licences

Licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5
te 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and deferred only
when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
arising from the projects so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development expenditure which does not meet

these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products, subject to a maximum of 20 years, commencing
from the date when the products are put into commercial production.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The
Group determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category “financial assets at '
fair value through profit or loss”. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses on investments held for

trading are recognised in the income statement.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the

loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
securities that are designated as available for sale or are not classified in any of the other two
categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value,
with gains or losses recognised as movements in the investment revaluation reserve, until the
investment is derecognised or untit the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in the investment revaluation reserve is included
in the income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and

used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined
by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date.
For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted

cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually essessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and |
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of !
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are recognised in profit or
loss and are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets carried at fair value

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from the investment
revaluation reserve to the income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is derecognised where:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” |
arrangement; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including
a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received

less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as
a liability in the balance sheet, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the
fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to
the conversion option that is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction

costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are appertioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the

instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development represent properties developed for sale and are stated at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the prepaid land premiums for land
together with any other direct costs attributable to the development of the properties, borrowing
costs and professional fees capitalised during the development period.

Properties under development which are expected to be completed within 12 months from the
balance sheet date are classified as current assets.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
all development expenditure, applicable borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined by reference to prevailing market prices on |
an individual property basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis, and in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts from variation
orders, claims and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the
costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed

construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated
total cost of the relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the percentage of completion
method, by reference to the recoverable costs incurred during the period plus the related fee
earned, measured by the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimate total cost of the

relevant contract.
Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from customer for contract work.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less

recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to customer for contract work.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.




ANNUAL REPORT 2005 = / &£

| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

31 December 2005

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result
of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain products are recognised
based on sales volume and past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to
their present value as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement, or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different
period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for

financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and cleferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match the
grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the income statement over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the income
statement by way of a reduced depreciation/amortisation charge.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases: z

(@)  from the sale of goods and pre-sale of properties under development for which the
agreements were entered into after January 2004, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods or the properties sold;

(b)  toll revenue, rental and hotel income, on an accrual basis; j
{c)  from the sale of completed properties, upon execution of the sale agreements;

(d)  from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion basis, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

(é) from the rendering of services, when the services are rendered;

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(g) from the trading of listed or unlisted investments, on the trade dates; and

{h)  other investment income, when the right to receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company, Beijing Development (Hong Kong) Limited (“Beijing Development”) and Xteam
Software International Limited (“Xteam”), each operates a share option scheme for the granting
of non-transferable options, for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards, to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the operations of the Group, the Beijing
Development group and the Xteam group, respectively. Employees (including directors) of the
respective groups receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments ("equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account
is taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares
of the Company, Beijing Development and Xteam (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending
on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settied transactions at each balance
sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents the movement in the

cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where
vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions
are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification,
which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settied award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested on or before 31 December 2003 and to those
granted on or after 1 January 2004. ]

Upon the exercise of share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company, {
Beijing Development or Xteam as additiona! share capital at the nominal value of the shares, i
and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded |
by the Company, Beijing Development or Xteam in the respective share premium accounts.
Options which are cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the r

register of outstanding options.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to certain of its employees under their employment
contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date for
the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and
carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required number of years of service to
the Group in order to be eligible for long service payments under the Employment Ordinance
in the event of the termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such payments
in the event that such a termination of employment meets the circumstances specified in the

Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long service payments expected to
be made. The provision is based on the best estimate of the probable future payments which
have been earned by the employees from their service to the Group to the balance sheet date.

Pension costs

The Group has joined a number of defined contribution pension schemes organised by certain
PRC provincial or municipal governments for certain of its employees, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions made are based on a percentage of
the eligible employees’ salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become

payable, in accordance with the rules of the pension schemes. The employer contributions vest

fully once made.

For those employees that have not yet joined a pension scheme, the Group has accrued for the
estimated future pension costs based on a percentage of their salaries. The related assets for
the purpose of discharging such liabilities are not separately held from those of the Group.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the empldyees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. |
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Foreign currencies
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and

items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates
ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign |
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance .

sheet date. All differences are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and |
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in the exchange fluctuation reserve relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries |
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash |
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits within the equity section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio.
The Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of

these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has
developed criteria in meking that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are
so significant that a property does not qualify as investment property.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill |
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill in aggregate
carried as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2005 was
HK$275,777,000 (2004: HK$330,198,000), details of which are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.
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3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a primary segment

reporting basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by

geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the products and services they provide. Each of the Group's
business segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the other business segments.

Particulars of the business segments are summarised as follows:

the brewery operation segment produces, distributes and sells brewery products;

the retail operation segment operates department stores in Beijing and certain other
cities in the PRC;

the expressway and toll road operations segment engages in the operation of the Capital
Airport Expressway, which connects the Capital Airport and the city centre of Beijing,
and the Shenzhen Shiguan Road and Bridge, which is located at Shenzhen Municipality,
the PRC;

the water treatment operation segment operates a water purification and treatment
plant in Beijing and sells purified water;

the telecommunications and IT related services and products segment comprises the
construction of broadband infrastructure, sale of software, the provision of Internet services
and IT technical support and consultation services;

the dairy operation segment produces, distributes and sells dairy products (discontinued
during the year ended 31 December 2004 - note 10); and

the corporate and others segment comprises the construction of geothermal energy
systems and provision of related installation services, tourism and hotel operations
(discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2005 - note 52(b)(v)), production,
distribution and sale of wine and processed food products, restaurant operations, property
construction and development, property investments and corporate income and expense
items.
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3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the segments
based on the location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on
the location of the assets.

(a) Business segments
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and

expenditure information for the Group’s business segments for the years ended
31 December 2005 and 2004:

Year ended 31 December 2005

Group
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
Telecom-
munications
Expressway and
and Water 1T related
Brewery Retail  tollroad treatment services and  Corporate Dairy
operation  operation operations operation  products and others Total  operation Eliminations Consolidated

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers 4,556,142 4510210 477,440 506,638 273,199 676,984 11,000,613 - - 11,000,613

Intersegment sales - - - - - - - - - -

Other revenue and gains, net 74424 107475 3,742 - 9,956 20318 2405 79,987 - 304,902

Total 4,630,566 4,617,685 431,182 506,638 283155 706,302 11,225,528 79,987 - 11,305,515
Segment results 387,883 131739 290577 166,595 (8,562) (206,452} 761,780 79,987 841,767
Interest income 73,165 - 73,165
Unallocated revenue and gains, net 142,740 - 142,740
Unallocated expenses (6,458) - {6,458)
Profit from operating activities 971,227 79,987 1,051,214
Finance costs (156,220 - (156,220)
Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly-controlled entities - (14179 - - (264)  (12,449) (26,892 - {26,892}

Associates {2,391) - (410) - @411y 25008 21,793 - 21,793
Profit before tax 809,908 79,987 889,895
Tax (175,086) - {175,086)

Profit for the year 634822 79,987 714,809

o F4
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) Business segments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2005 (continued)

Group
Discontinued
Continuing operaticns operation
Telecom-
munications
Expressway and
and Water I related
Brewery Retail  toll road treatment services and  Corporate Dairy
operation operation operations operation  products and others Total  operation Eliminaticns Consolidated
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'00D
Segment assets 7458097 1,474,409 1709479 1,238,023 435974 7,123,702 19,439,684 ~ (4,434,091} 15,005,593
Share of net assets of.
Jointly-controlled entities - 138,098 - - 44,649 13,681 196,428 - - 196,428
Associates 11,395 25,188 3,090 - 2129 211,404 253,206 - - 253,206
7,469,492 1,637,695 1712569 1,238,023 482,752 7,348,787 19,889,318 - {4,434,091) 15,455,227
Unatlocated assets 4,219.0M - - 4,219,011
Total assets 24,108,389 - {4,434,091) 19,674,298
Segment liabilities 1,777,389 622,744 445,648 458244 122,347 4,383,888 7,830,260 - (4434091 3,396,169
Unallocated fiabilities KRYARK]Y - - 37MA3%
Total liabilities 11,601,396 - {4,434,091) 7,167,305
Other segment information:
Depreciation 429,420 57,923 50,510 86 5491 §1.431 594,861 - - 594,841
Amortisation of other intangible
assets - - 31,346 71,259 2,312 1,066 105,983 - - 105,983
Impaisment losses on;
Segment assets - - - - - 81,308 81,308 - - 81,308
Unallocated assets 1,083

Capital expenditure 1,056,158 149,295 4,751 6,304 5011 142701 1,369.280 -

1,369,280
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2004
Group
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
Telecom-
munications
Expressway and
and Water [T related
Brewery Retail  toll road  treatment services and  Corporate Dairy
operation  operation operations  operation  products  and others Total  operation Eliminations Consolidated
HK$000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 = HK$'000  HK$'O00  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers 3494029 3021404 435371 490566 436399 902,187 8,779,956 885,684 - 9,665,640
Intersegment sales - - - - - - - - - -
Other revenue and gains, net 100,660 44,436 (1,815 - 1,942 72517 217,800 16,498 - 234298
Total 3594689 3065840 433556 490566 438341 974784 89977% 902,182 - 9,899,938
Segment results 405,008 130,100 262,321 194297 85429 (167.111) 910,150  (108,744) 801,406
Interest income 43,708 1,043 44,751
Unallocated revenue and gains, net 125,903 2,139 128,042
Unallocated expenses (49,550} - 49,550}
Profit/{foss) from operating activities 1,030,211 (105,562 924,649
Finance costs {130,338) (7.710) (138,048)
Share of profits and losses of:
Jaintly-controlled entities 5,799 17,647 - - (114) 55,982 671,714 (11,261 56,453
Associates 11,586 - - - 19,897 19,692 51175 - 51175
Profit/{loss) before tax 1,018,762 (124533) 894,229
Tax {233,156} 3,687 (229,469)
Profit/{loss} for the year 785,606 (120,846) 664,760
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cc  ued)

(a) Business segments (continued,
Year ended 31 December 2004 (cont d)

Group
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
Telecom-
munications
Expressway and
and Water [T related
Brewery Retail  toll road treatment services and  Corporate Dairy
operation  operation operations  operation  products and others Total  operation Eliminations Consolidated
- HKE000  HKE'000  HKE'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  WKS'000  HK$'000
Segment assets 5618295 1923479 1735445 1033965 953754 6398214 17,323152 1,153,079 {4938.888) 13,537,343
Share of net assets of:
Jointly-controlled entities - 225401 - - 43585 322843 591829 125113 - 716942
Associates 335,376 20,404 - - 140 194388 550,310 L - - 550,310

At B B PN g R

?g 6,013,671 2,169,286 1735445 1033965 597479 4915445 18465291 1,278,192 {4,938,888) 14,804,595
Eu
Unallocated assets 4,613,547 26,541 - 4,640,088
Total assets ) 23078838 1,304,733 (4,938,388} 19,444,683
Segment liabilities 1,464,257 97959 439.043 266,104 139,369 4,248,642 7537014 230,763 {4,938,386) 2,828,889
Unallocated liabilities 4751565 263,032 - 5014597
Totat liabilities 12,288,579 493,795 (4,938,368) 7,843,486
Other segment information:
Depreciation 331,957 91,923 48,866 74 3,887 45,732 528439 84,546 - 592985
Amortisation of other intangible assets - - 30,711 70,656 2,263 1,058 104,488 - - 104688
Impairment losses on:
Segment assets - - - - - 29,386 29,386 17512 - 46,898
Unallocated assets 44,300

Capital expenditure 649621 242801 8,809 - 40629 40554 982414 92,393 - 1074807
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue, and certain asset and expenditure information for
the Group's geographical segments:

Group

Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas Eliminations Consolidated
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'00C  HK$'000  HKS'000

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers 13,008 34,742 10,799,561 9445907 188,044 184,991 - - 11,000,613 9,465,640
Intersegment sales 4,642 10,367 - - 40,381 38,731 (45,023)  (49,098) - -
Other revenue and gains, net 1,445 12,660 302742 221,438 715 - - - 304902 234298
Total 19,095 57769 11,102,303 9467545 229,140 223722  (45,023)  (49,098)11,305515 9,899,938

Qther segment information:

Segment assets 4,861,816 4682945 14514771 13,730,766 63,097 42,520 (4,434,091) (4,938,888 15,005,593 13,537,343
Share of net assets of:

Jointly-controlled entities - 58 196428 716,884 - .- - - 198428 716942
Associates - - 253206 550,310 - - - - 253,206 550,310

4,861,816 4683003 14,964,405 14997960 43,097 62,520 (4,434,091} (4938,3888)15,455,227 14,804,595

Unatlocated assets 4,219,071 4,640,088
Total assets 19,674,298 19,444,683
Capital expenditure 1,972 8 1,366,037 1,072,045 1,21 2,754 - - 1,369,280 1,074,807

4. TURNOVER, INTEREST INCOME, OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS,
NET 9'

Turnover represents: (1) the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added
tax, consumption tax and government surcharges, and after allowances for returns and trade
discounts; (2) the aggregate of revenue from hotel operation, toll revenue and the value of
services rendered, net of business and consumption taxes and government surcharges; (3) an
appropriate proportion of contract revenue of construction contracts, net of value-added tax,
business tax and government surcharges; and (4) rental income.
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4.

TURNOVER, INTEREST INCOME, OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS,

NET (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, interest income, other revenue and gains, net is as follows:

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover
Brewery operation 4,556,142 3,494,029
Retail operation 4,510,210 3,021,404
Expressway and toll road operations 477,440 435,371
Water treatment operation 506,638 490,566
Telecommunications and IT related services and products 273,199 436,399
Corporate and others 676,984 902,187
Attributable to continuing operations reported
in the consolidated income statement 11,000,613 8,779,956
Attributable to the discontinued operation reported
in the consolidated income statement - Dairy operation - 885,684
11,000,613 9,665,640
Interest income
Bank interest income 58,132 44,751
Imputed interest income on interest-free other receivables 15,033 -
73,165 44,751
Other revenue
Compensation income 23,582 7,492
Rental income 44,633 37,452
Service income 15,866 1,013
Investment income 3,271 3,053
Government grants* 63,438 66,788
Sale of raw materials 2,995 15,117
Indemnification from a related company recognised
as income — note 52(b){}) 2,700 19,500
Others 58,321 51,370
214,806 201,785
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4. TURNOVER, INTEREST INCOME, OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS,
NET (continued)

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$’000
Gains, net
Excess over the cost of acquisition of a subsidiary
and minority interests 3,677 35,767
Gain on disposal of investment properties 2,466 238
Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, net 81,097 -
Gain on deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary ® 14,498 20,715
Gain on disposal of interests in jointly-controlled entities ¢ 120,273 -
Gain on disposal of interests in associates * - 96,766
Gain on deemed disposal of an interest in an associate - 369
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets _ 1,514 6,298
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value :
through profit or loss, net 2,074 841
Foreign exchange differences, net 7,237 -
232,836 160,994
Other revenue and gains, net ‘ 447,642 362,779

The government grants represented government subsidies, corporate income tax and turnover tax refunds.
Turnover tax includes value-added tax, city construction tax and education surcharge. The government grants

are unconditional, except for certain grants must be utilised for the development of the Company's subsidiaries.

The gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries recognised during the year ended 31 December 2005 mainly
arose from the disposal of all of the Group’s equity interests in Beijing Enterprises (Dairy) Limited ("BE Dairy”),
which holds a 55% equity interest in Beijing Sanyuan Foods Co., Ltd. (“Sanyuan Foods”), and Beijing Western-
Style Food Co., Ltd. ("Western Food") during the year. Further details of the disposal of subsidiaries are set
out in note 45 to the financial statements.

The gain on deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary recognised during the year ended 31 December 2005
arose from the dilution of the Group’s equity interest in Beijing Yanjing Brewery Company Limited (“Yanjing
Brewery”), an indirectly held subsidiary of the Company, from 54.86% (2004: 55.45%) to 54.46% (2004:
54.86%) upon the exercise of convertible bonds of Yanjing Brewery by certain bondholders in exchange for
ordinary shares of Yanjing Brewery.

oo}
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4.

TURNOVER, INTEREST INCOME, OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS,
NET (continued)

Q The gain on disposal of interests in jointly-controlled entities recognised during the year ended 31 December
2005 arose from the disposal of all of the Group's equity interest in Beijing Enterprises (Tourism) Limited ("BE
Tourism”), which holds a 75% equity interest in Beijing Badaling Tourism Co., Ltd. (“Badaling Tourism”), and
IERBEEBER QT (Beijing Qin Chang Glass Company Limited) during the year.

# The gain on disposal of interests in associates recognised during the year ended 31 December 2004 mainly

arose from the disposal of a 20% equity interest in Siemens Communication Networks Ltd., Beijing (“Beijing

Siemens") to a joint venture partner of Beijing Siemens in April 2004.
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group's profit from operating activities is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost of inventories sold 7,499,733 6,123,409
Cost of properties sold 29,154 336,525
Cost of services rendered 496,482 546,000
Depreciation 14 594,861 592,985
Amortisation of operating concessions* 18 102,605 101,367
Amortisation of management information systems* 18 1,887 1,886
Amortisation of licences* 18 1,491 1,435
Research and development expenditure:
Current year expenditure 12,930 14,890
Less: Capitalised in deferred development costs 18 (2,197) (3,642)
10,733 11,248
Impairment arising during the year** 18 5,870 -

16,603 11,248




ANNUAL REPORT 2005 Il 7\J

| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

31 December 2005

5. PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued)

2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Impairment of property, plant and equipment** 14 3,780 29,386
mpairment of goodwill** 17 59,658 17,512
Impairment of licences** 18 12,000 -
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets** 1,083 44,300
Loss on disposal of property, plant and '
equipment, net*** 5,556 14,370
(Gain)/loss on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, net 45 (81,097) 6,433
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in |
a jointly-controlled entity 316 680 !
(Gain)/loss on deemed disposal of
interest in an associate 927 (369)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases }
of land and buildings 175,282 131,584 |
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums 16 12,028 9,693 ( :
Auditors’ remuneration 7.700 7,474 1 ‘
(Write-back of provision)/provision against inventories, net (8,377) 3,183 ;
Impairment on an amount due from an associate 4,500 474 .
Impairment on trade receivables 48,398 34,855 “
Impairment on other receivables 22,445 60,300 3
Fair value losses on financial assets (
at fair value through profit or loss, net 4,132 4,570
Employee benefits expense (excluding (
directors’ remuneration — note 7):
Wages, salaries and benefits in kind 893,723 642,307
Net pension scheme contributions 83,063 50,528
976,786 692,835 |
Foreign exchange differences, net (7,237) 1,094
Net rental income (40,382) (33,753)
Investment income:
Listed - (1,116)

Unlisted (3,271) (1,937)
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5. PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued)

* The amortisation of operating concessions, management information systems and licences for the year are

included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

** The impairments of deferred development costs, property, plant and equipment, goodwill, ficence and available-
for-sale financial assets for the year are included in “"Other operating expenses, net” on the face of the

consolidated income statement.

el Included in the proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2004 were compensations of HK$17,237,000 in aggregate received from third parties for those property,

plant and equipment that were demolished or given up.

Jii o 6. FINANCE COSTS

Group
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other loans

wholly repayable within five years 140,185 123,744
Interest on convertible bonds 6,755 7,193
Interest on other loans 3,975 8,215
Imputed interest on an interest-free

other loan from a minority shareholder 5,609 -
Total finance costs 156,524 139,152
Less: Interest capitalised in property, plant and equipment (304) (1,104)

156,220 138,048
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) and Section
161 of the Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group

2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees: ‘
Executive directors 560 640 l
Independent non-executive directors 550 540

1,110 1,180

Other emoluments for executive directors:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,087 5,103

Pension scheme contributions 335 260

6,422 5,363

7,532 6,543

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors were as follows:

2005 2004
HK$000 HK$'000
Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Ambrose 100 100 |
Dr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo 120 120 ;‘
Mr. Wang Xian Zhang 120 120
Mr. Wu Jiesi 110 100
Mr. Robert A. Theleen 100 100
550 540

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors
during the year (2004: Nil).
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors

Salaries,
allowances Pension

and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Year ended 31 December 2005
Mr. Yi Xi Qun - 2,341 97 2,438
Mr. Zhang Hong Hai - 1,623 88 1,71
Mr. Li Fu Cheng 80 - - 80
Mr. Bai Jin Rong 80 - - 80
Mr. Guo Ying Ming 80 - - 80
Mr. Liu Kai - 1,359 75 1,434
Mr. Zheng Wan He 80 - - 80
Mr. Li Man 80 - - 80
Mr. Guo Pu Jin 80 - - 80
Mr. Zhou Si 80 - - 80
Mr. E Meng - 764 75 839
560 6,087 335 6,982

Year ended 31 December 2004

Mr. Yi Xi Qun - 2,274 97 2,371
Mr. Zhang Hong Hai - 1,513 88 1,601
Mr. Li Fu Cheng 80 - - 80
Mr. Guo Ying Ming 80 - - 80
Mr. Liu Kai - 1,316 75 1,391
Mr. Zheng Wan He 80 - - 80
Mr. Guo Pu Jin 80 - - 80
Mr. Li Man 80 - - 80
Mr. Bao Zong Ye 80 - - 80
Mr. Wei En Hong 80 - - 80
Mr. Bi Yu Xi - - - -
Mr. Li Zhong Gen 80 - - 80
640 5,103 260 6,003

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year.
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2004: three) directors. Details

of the remuneration of the five highest paid employees for the year are set out below:

2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,387 7,887
Performance related bonuses - -
Pension scheme contributions 347 342
7,734 8,229

The number of the five highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

2005 2004

Number of  Number of

employees  employees

Nil — HK$1,000,000 1 -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2 2
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1 2
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 1 1
5 5
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9.

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The income tax provision in respect of
operations in Mainland China and overseas is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Group
2005 2004
HK$’'000 HK$'000

Continuing operations:
Current - PRC

Heng Kong 165 712

Mainland China 200,060 239,301

(Overprovision)/underprovision in prior years (23,765) 5
Current — Overseas 1,097 486
Deferred - note 40 (2,471) (7,348)
Tax charge from continuing operations 175,086 233,156

Discontinued operation:

Current — Mainland China, the PRC - 1,693
Deferred - note 40 - (5,380)
Tax credit from the discontinued operation - note 10(a) - (3,687)

175,086 229,469

Total tax charge for the year
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9. TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/{loss) before tax using the statutory
rates for the countries in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax expense/(income) at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group - 2005
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas Total
HKS$'000 % HKS'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Profit before tax 78,289 801,937 9,669 889,895
Tax at the statutory tax rate 13,701 17.5 264,639 33.0 2,901 300 281,241 31.6

Lower tax rate for specific

provinces or local authority - (159,062) (19.8) (2,009 (20.8) (161,071) (18.1)
Adjustments in respect of current ‘

tax of previous pericds 425 0.5 (24,190) (3.0) - - (23,765) (2.7)
Profit and losses attributable

to jointly-controlled entities

and associates 58 0.1 1,484 0.2 - - 1,542 0.2
income not subject to tax (40,652) (51.9) (48,478) {6.1) (150} (1.6) (89,280} (10.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax 19.480 249 55762 6.9 1,405 145 76,647 8.6
Tax losses not recognised

as deferred tax assets 1578 9.7 86,492 12.8 36 04 94106 10.6
Tax losses utilised from

previous periods - - (3,248) 0.4)  {1,086) (11.2)  (4,334) (0.5

Tax charge at the Group's
effective rate 590 0.8 173,399 21.6 1,097 11.3 175,086 19.7
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9.

TAX (continued)

Group - 2004
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %

Profit/(loss) before tax (141,952) 1,029,007 7174 894,229
Tax at the statutory tax rate (24,841) 339,573 33.0 2,152 300 316,884 354
Lower tax rate for specific

provinces or local authority - (85,686) (8.3) (1,530 (21.3) (87,216) 9.7)
Adjustments in respect of

current tax of previous periods - 5 - - - 5 -
Profit and losses attributable

to jointly-controlled entities

and associates 6,691 (33,831) (3.3) - - (27,140 (3.0}
Income not subject to tax (12,220) {72,567) (7.1) {86) (1.2) (84,873) (9.5)
Expenses not deductible for tax 20,917 19,179 19 307 43 40,403 45
Tax losses not recognised

as deferred tax assets 10,387 66,004 6.4 764 106 77155 8.6
Tax losses utilised from

previous periods {6) (4,622) 04) (1121) (156} (5,749 (0.6)
Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate 928 228,055 222 486 68 229,469 25.7

In accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC, certain of the Company’s

subsidiaries enjoy income tax exemptions and reductions.




ANNUAL REPORT 2005

I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

31 December 2005

10.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 6 December 2004, the Company publicly announced that it had entered into two separate
share transfer agreements on 3 December 2004 with It R=TE B EHR T E A 7 (“San Yuan
Group”), a related company, and BHL, the ultimate holding company, to conditionally dispose
of all its interest in BE Dairy, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as to 65.46% and
34.54% to San Yuan Group and BHL at cash considerations of RMB323,621,000 and
RMB237,392,000, respectively. The disposal transactions were approved by the shareholders of
the Company in the extraordinary general meeting held on 7 January 2005 and the Company

ceased to have control over BE Dairy since that day.

In accordance with the share transfer agreement entered into with San Yuan Group, the cash
consideration of RMB323,621,000 is to be settled by three instalments, with the first instalment
of RMB258,896,800, the second and final instalments of RMB32,362,100 each being due on
12 January 2005, 31 January 2006 and 31 December 2006, respectively. As at 31 December
2005, RMB216,630,000 of the first instalment had been settled and the remaining portion of
RMB42,266,800 was settled subseqguent to the balance sheet date in March 2006. The whole
second instalment, which has been overdue, remains unsettled as at the date of approval of
these financial statements. Despite this, in the opinion of the directors, no impairment loss on
the amount due is foreseen.

In accordance with the share transfer agreement entered into with BHL, the cash consideration
of RMB237,392,000 is to be settled by four instalments, with the first instalment of
RMB23,739,200, the second, third and final instalments of RMB71,217,600 each being due on
12 January 2005, 7 January 2006, 7 January 2007 and 7 January 2008, respectively. As at
31 December 2005, the first instalment had been fully settled but the whole amount of the
second instalment, which has been overdue, remains unsettled as at the date of approval of
these financial statements. Despite this, in the opinion of the directors, no impairment loss on
the amount due is foreseen.

The major asset of BE Dairy is its 55% equity interest in Sanyuan Foods, a company whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and principally engaged in the production
and sale of dairy products in Mainland China. Dairy operation represented a separate major
business segment of the Group and was solely undertaken by Sanyuan Foods. As at 31 December
2004, Sanyuan Foods was classified as a disposal group held for sale.

70
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

(a) The results of the discontinued operation dealt with in the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 are summarised as follows:

Group

2005 2004

HK$'000 HKS$'000

Turnover - 885,684

Expenses - (1,010,217)

Loss before tax of the discontinued operation - (124,533)

Gain on disposal of the discontinued operation 79,987 -

Profit/(loss) before tax from the discontinued operation 79,987 (124,533)

Tax:

Related to loss before tax of the discontinued operation - 3,687
Related to gain on disposal of the discontinued

operation - -

- 3,687

Profit/(loss) for the year from the discontinued operation 79,987 (120,846)
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

(b)  The major classes of assets and liabilities of the discontinued operation as at the balance
sheet date are as follows:

Group
2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets:
Property, plant and equipment 14 - 665,406 f
Investment properties 15 - 2,420
Prepaid land premiums 16 - 60,950 f
Goodwill 17 - 2,196
Interests in jointly-controlled entities - 125,113 |
Available-for-sale financial assets - 22,892 \ ‘
Inventories - 85,280 ‘ ;
Trade and bills receivables - 120,424 )‘
Other receivables - 81,650 ]
Taxes recoverable - 3,649 i
Pledged bank balances - 156 |
Cash and cash equivalents - 134,597 !
Assets of a disposal group classified ;
as held for sale 33 - 1,304,733 J
i
Liabilities:
Trade and bills payables - (64,171) ‘
Other payables and accruals - (166,592)
Bank and other borrowings - (262,281)
Deferred tax liabilities 40 - (751)
Liabilities directly associated with assets of ‘
a disposal group classified as held for sale 33 - {493,795)

Net assets attributable to the
discontinued operation - 810,938
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

(c)

The net cash flows of the discontinued operation dealt with in the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Group
2005 2004
HK$’'000 HK$'000

Net cash inflow from operating activities - 41,910
Net cash outflow from investing activities - (47,014)
Net cash inflow from financing activities - 7,183
Net cash inflow incurred by the discontinued operation - 2,079

Earnings/(loss) per share from the discontinued operation

2005 2004
Basic from the discontinued operation " HK$0.13 (HK$0.11)
Diluted from the discontinued operation N/A N/A

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts from the discontinued operation

is based on:
2005 2004
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company from
the discontinued operation HK$79,987,000 (HK$68,704,000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used
in the basic earnings/(loss)

per share calculation 622,500,000 622,500,000
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2005 dealt with in the financial statements of the Company, was HK$111,190,000
(2004: profit of HK$383,143,000) (note 36(b)).

12. DIVIDENDS

2005 2004 |

HK$'000 HK$'000 |
tnterim ~ HK$0.10 (2004: HK$0.10) per ordinary share 62,250 62,250
Proposed final - HK$0.20 (2004: HK$0.20) per ordinary share 124,500 124,500

186,750 186,750

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable
to shareholders of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for the year
attributable to shareholders of the Company, adjusted to reflect the effect of the convertible
bonds issued by Yanjing Brewery, a subsidiary of the Company, on the profit for the year
attributable to shareholders of the Company assuming the exercise or conversion of all
outstanding convertible bonds issued by Yanjing Brewery, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts for the year ended
31 December 2005 are based on the following data:

Earnings:

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000

(i) For profit for the year:

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders

of the Company, used in the basic earnings per
share calculation 570,422 503,188

Interest expense for the year relating to the liability
component of the convertible bonds of
Yanjing Brewery, net of current tax 4,526 4,819

Decrease in profit for the year of
Yanjing Brewery attributable to the Group,
as a result of the dilution of interest
in Yanjing Brewery assuming the exercise of all

the outstanding convertible bonds issued by
Yanjing Brewery (12,466) (14,077)

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders
of the Company, used in the diluted earnings per
share calculation 562,482 493,930
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Earnings: (continued)

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000

(if) For profit for the year from continuing operations:

Profit for the year from continuing operations
attributable to shareholders of the Company,
used in the basic earnings per share calculation 490,435 571,892

Interest expense for the year relating to the liability
component of the convertible bonds of Yanjing
Brewery, net of current tax 4,526 4,819

Decrease in profit for the year of
Yanjing Brewery attributable to the Group,
as a result of the dilution of interest
in Yanjing Brewery assuming the exercise of all
the outstanding convertible bonds issued by
Yanjing Brewery (12,466) (14,077)

Profit for the year from continuing operations
attributable to shareholders of the Company,
used in the diluted earnings per share calculation 482,495 562,634

Number of ordinary shares:

2005 2004

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year used in basic and diluted
earnings per share calculations 622,500,000 622,500,000

The exercise of the outstanding share options of the Company, Beijing Development and
Xteam, subsidiaries of the Company, during the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 did
not have a diluting effect on the Group’s basic earnings per share for these years.

1US




I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

31 December 2005

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Furniture,
Expressway fixtures
and related leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor ~ Construction Hotel
structures Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress  properties Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
fnote (a))  {notes fa), {note c)) {note (b))
{c) d),
{el}
Year ended 31 December 2005
At 31 December 2004 and
1 January 2005
Cost 1,205,746 2,963,825 413,991 3,986,313 373,732 243,089 540,049 - 9,726,745
Accumulated depreciation
. and impairment {167,671) (685,981)  (306,648)  (1,906,982) (201,798 (119,097) - - (3.388,174)
: 25 ; Net carrying amount 1038075 2,277,844 107,343 2,079,331 [UREY 123,992 540,049 - 63857
il ; Net carrying amount:
‘ At 1 January 2005 1,038,075 2277844 107,343 2,079,331 171,937 123,992 540,049 - 6,338,571
§= £ Acquisition of subsidiaries 4 - 377,047 1,705 445,436 8,089 8,572 109,135 - 949,984
S H Additions - 48,822 56,316 197,093 61,282 29,164 973,935 - 1,366,612
) Transter from construction
5 in progress - 625,748 49,177 458,739 32,829 3731 (1,170,230) - -
Transfer to investment properties 15 - (88,073 - - - - - - (88,073)
Transfer to non-current assets
held for sale 3 - (15,222) - - - - - - (15,222)
Depreciation provided
for the year {32,890) (95,525) (39103 (342117) (58,911 (26,315) - - (594,861)

Impairment during the year

recognised in the income

statement - (3,780} - - - - - - {3,780}
Fair value gain on revaluation

upon transfer 1o investment

properties - 12,712 - - - - - - 12712
Disposals - (11,303) (9.433) {7,070} {9,756) (5,590 (15,299) ~ (58,451
Disposal of subsidiaries 45 - (11,755) - (4,422) (402) (1,652) - - {18,231)
Reclassifications - 20,226 - {36,403) 16,131 4% - - -
Exchange realignment 21,064 56,808 2577 51,280 3,488 2,541 9998 - 147,756
At 31 December 2005 1,026,249 3,193,549 168,582 2,841,867 224,687 134,435 447,588 - 8,037,017

At 31 December 2005:
Cost 1,230,672 3,972,136 442,285 5,070,147 481,682 267,352 447,588 - 11,911,862
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (204,423) (778,587)  {273,703) (2,228,280) (256,995}  (132,857) - - (3,874,845)

Net carrying amount 1,026,249 3,193,549 168,582 2,841,867 224,687 134,495 447,588 - 8,037,017
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Group (continued)

Furniture,
Expressway fixtures
and related Leasehold Plantand  and office Motor  Construction Hotel
structures Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress  properties Total
Notes HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
(note ()} {notes (a), (note (c)) {note (b))
(e}, (d),
(el
Year ended 31 December 2004 '
At 1 January 2004:
Cost or valuation 1,204,937 2,883,608 345633 3942455 274 444 273,238 556,774 17759 9498848
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment {137,603) (562917 {292,324} (1731513 {136,047) {134,943) - - (3,001,347)
Net carrying amount 1087334 232069 53309 2204942 138,397 138,295 556,774 1775 6497501
Net carrying amount:
At 1 January 2004 1067334 2320691 53309 2204942 138,397 138,295 556,774 17759 6497501
Acquisition of subsidiaries 44 - 191,482 1,804 143424 7,668 9,267 985 - 354,630
Additions - 181,913 23,363 158,797 47378 31,520 616,194 - 1,059,165
Transfer from construction
in progress 809 155,644 64,397 212476 28,282 7,663 (529,271) - -
Transfer to investment
properties 15 - {16,544) - - - - (43,793) - (60,337)
Depreciation provided
for the year {30,068) (143,992) (26,199) (311,168) (48,439 33119 - - (592,985)
Impairment during the :
year recognised in the l
income statement - {28,370) - {1,018) - - - - {29,388) :
Disposals - (81.910) {8,481) {5,732) (1,284) (9,561) (25,074) (4,234) (136,276) ]
Attributeble to the discontinued
operation 10(b) - {292,472 - {306,554} - (1791 (34.944) (13,525 (665,409)
Disposal of subsidiaries 45 - 8,598 850) (75,838} (65) {2.162) (822) - (88,335)

At 31 December 2004 1,038,075 2,277,844 107,343 207933 171937 123992 540,049 - 6338501
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) The expressway and related structures, and buildings included above as at 31 December
2005 are held under the following lease terms:

Group
Hong Kong  Elsewhere Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Cost:
Long term leases 51,580 - 51,580
Medium term leases 43,500 5,107,728 5,151,228

95,080 5,107,728 5,202,808

(b) Construction in progress
Construction in progress represents the following major projects which remained
incomplete as at 31 December 2005:

Group

Expected year
Name of project of completion HK$’'000
Wangfujing Beixia 2006 189,550
Brewery production plants 2006 212,932
Other projects Various 45,106

447,588

(c) Certain of the above buildings, plant and machinery with an aggregate net carrying
amount at the balance sheet date of HK$275,857,000 (2004: HK$519,673,000) were
pledged to secure certain bank and other loans granted to the Group {note 37(d)(i)).

(d) Certain buildings of the Group and the Company were reclassified from investment
properties during the year ended 31 December 2000 at the then carrying amount of
HK$41,000,000, as valued on 31 December 1999 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on the open market value basis. Had the
carrying values of these buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their net carrying amounts would have been HK$34,380,000 (2004:
HK$35,304,000).
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31 December 2005

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(e) The impairment losses recognised during the year ended 31 December 2004 mainly
represent the write-down of certain properties in Hong Kong in the “Corporate and
others” segment to their recoverable amounts upon their being transferred to investment
properties during that year. The recoverable amount was based on fair value less costs
to sell and was determined based on valuations performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers. The valuations undertaken were
based on the open market value basis using the Direct Comparison Approach.

Company
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold  and office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Year ended 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004 and
1 January 2005:

Cost 42,319 10,008 5,354 2,056 59,737
Accumulated depreciation (4,248) (9,206) (4,565) {1,050) (19,069)
Net carrying amount 38,071 802 789 1,006 40,668

Net carrying amount:

At 1 January 2005 38,071 802 789 1,006 40,668
Additions 1,292 1,961 393 - 3,646
Depreciation provided for the year (972) (148) (323) (262) {1,705)
Disposals - {615) - - (615)
At 31 December 2005 38,301 2,000 859 744 41,994

At 31 December 2005:
Cost 43,611 5,038 5,747 2,056 56,452
Accumulated depreciation (5,220} (3,038) (4,888) {1,312) (14,458)

Net carrying amount 38,391 2,000 859 744 41,994

U0
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company (continued)

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold  and office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Year ended 31 December 2004

At 1 January 2004:

Cost 42,319 9,239 4,838 2,056 58,452
Accumulated depreciation (3,286) (9,129) (4,303) (789) (17,507)
Net carrying amount 39,033 110 535 1,267 40,945

Net carrying amount;

i At 1 January 2004 39,033 110 535 1,267 40,945
18 Additions - 769 516 - 1,285
Depreciation provided for the year (962) (77) (262) (261) (1,562)

At 31 December 2004 38,071 802 789 1,006 40,668

The Company's buildings are all situated in Mainland China and are held under medium term

leases.
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31 December 2005

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
Notes HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount
at 1 January 342,722 277,461 134,000 134,000
Transfer from buildings 14 88,073 16,544 - -
Transfer from construction
in progress 14 - 43,793 - -
Disposals (1,008) (6,441) - -
Attributable to
the discontinued
operation 10(b) - (2,420) - -
Fair value gains on
revaluation, net 13,635 13,785 - ~
Exchange realignment 3,398 - - -~
Carrying amount
at 31 December 446,820 342,722 134,000 134,000

(@  Investment properties of the Group as at 31 December 2005 are held under the following

lease terms:
Group
Hong Kong  Elsewhere Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Long term leases 49,650 - 49,650
Medium term leases 9,000 388,170 397,170
58,4650 388,170 446,820

The Company’s investment properties are all situated in Mainland China and are held
under medium term leases. ‘
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

{b) The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 50(a) to the financial statements. The
gross rental income received and receivable by the Group and the Company and related
expenses in respect of these investment properties are summarised as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
. Gross rental income 25,954 22,249 6,353 6,598
_ Direct expenses (4,534) {3,700) (582) (742)
g Net rental income 21,420 18,549 5,771 5,856
" (c) In the prior year, as at 31 December 2004, one of the Group’s investment properties with

a carrying amount at that date of HK$6,500,000 was pledged to secure a bank loan
granted to the Group (note 37(d)).

(d) At 31 December 2005, the investment properties were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie

Leung Limited and CB Richard Ellis Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers,

on the open market income capitalisation basis or the open market value basis using the
Direct Comparison Approach.
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31 December 2005

16. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS

Group
2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount at 1 January 438,369 445,719
Acquisition of subsidiaries 44 19,781 74,368
Additions 9,569 18,771
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale 33 (4,097) -
Amortisation provided for the year (12,028) (9,693)
Disposals (68,825) (24,787}
Attributable to the discontinued operation 10(b) - (60,950)
Disposal of subsidiaries 45 - (5,059)
Exchange realignment 7,235 -
Carrying amount at 31 December 390,004 438,369
Less: Portion classified as current assets (12,684) (8,176)
Non-current portion 377,320 430,193

All leasehold land of the Group as at 31 December 2005 are held under medium term leases.
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17. GOODWILL

The amount of the goodwill capitalised as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet, arising
on the acquisition of subsidiaries and minority interests, is as follows:

Group
2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January:
Cost 330,198 302,767
Accumutated impairment - (2,356)
Net carrying amount 330,198 300,411
Net carrying amount:
At 1 January 330,198 300,411
Acquisition of subsidiaries 44 8,916 27,052
Acquisition of minority interests 3,061 4,761
Reclassification from interests in jointly-controlled
entities as a result of the related jointly-controlled
entities becoming subsidiaries during the year 20(a) - 17,682
Impairment during the year recognised
in the income statement (59,658) (17,512)
Partial disposal of subsidiaries (7,764) -
Attributable to the discontinued operation 10(b) - (2,196)
Exchange realignment _ 1,024 -
At 31 December 275,777 330,198
At 31 December:
Cost 335,435 330,198
Accumulated impairment (59,658) -

Net carrying amount 275,777 330,198
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31 December 2005

17. GOODWILL (continued)

As detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group applied the transitional provisions
of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in respect of acquisitions of subsidiaries before 1 January
2001 to remain eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve.

The amount of goodwill remaining in the consolidated capital reserve, arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, is as follows:

Group

2005 2004 |
HK$’000 HK$'000 |

At 1 January:

Cost 429,693 429,693 |
Accumulated impairment (5,132) (5,132) }
Net carrying amount 424,561 424,561

Net carrying amount: ‘

At 1 January 424,561 424,561
Disposal of subsidiaries (79,457) -
At 31 December 345,104 424,561

At 31 December:

Cost 345,104 429,693
Accumulated impairment - (5,132)

Net carrying amount 345,104 424561
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| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

31 December 2005

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Carrying amount of the goodwill acquired through acquisitions has been allocated to the
relevant business units of the following individual business operations of the Group for
impairment testing as follows:

Group
2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
Continuing operations:
Retail operation (i) 34,520 33,822
Expressway and toll road operations (i) 21,687 21,687
Telecommunications and IT related
services and products operation (iii) 132,230 132,622
Geothermal energy systems operation (iif) 44,625 104,283
Others 42,715 37,784
275,777 330,198
Discontinued operation — Dairy operation 10(b) - 2,196
Total goodwill 275,777 332,394

{i) The recoverable amounts of the relevant business units in the retail operation have been
determined based on (a) the fair value of the assets and liabilities of the relevant business
unit less the costs 1o sell; and (b) a value in use calculation using a cash flow projection
which is based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of 5
years. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection is 16%, which reflects the
average discount rate for the relevant industry and the business risk of the relevant
business unit.
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

(it)

{iii)

The recoverable amount of the relevant business unit in the expressway and toll road
operations has been determined based on a value in use calculation. To calculate this,
cash flow projection is made based on financial budgets approved by senior management
covering a period of approximately 16 years, which represents the remaining period of
the operating right of the relevant business unit. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projection is 13.5%, which is based on the average discount rate for the toll road
industry and the business risk of the relevant business unit. No growth is expected after
the first five-year period in the cash flow projection.

The recoverable amounts of those business operations have been determined by reference
to business valuations performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
which are based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of 5
years. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection is 25%, which is determined
by reference to the average discount rates for the relevant industries and the business
risks of the relevant business units.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, an impairment loss of HK$59,658,000 (2004:
HK$17,512,000) has been recognised in the income statement for the goodwill attributable to

the Group's geothermal energy systems operation (2004: a business unit of the Group’s dairy

operation) as the senior management of the Group believes that the recoverable amount of

the relevant business unit is less than the carrying amount with reference to the business

valuation.

Based on the impairment testing of goodwill, in the opinion of the directors, no further
impairment provision is considered necessary for the remaining balance of the Group's goodwill.

1O
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17. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Key assumptions used in value in use calculations
The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:
. Budgeted turnover

Budgeted turnover are based on the following assumptions:

- in respect of the relevant business unit in expressway and toll road segment, based
on the traffic and toll revenue forecast; and

- in respect of the business units in other business segments, with reference to (i)
the expected growth rate of the market in which the assessed entity operates and
(ii) the expected market share of the assessed entity.

. Budgeted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the

average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements.

. Business environment

There have been no major changes in the existing political, legal and economic conditions
in the PRC and other locations in which the assessed entity carried on its business.
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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Group
Management Deferred
Operating  information development
concessions systems Licences costs* Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note (a)) (note (b))
Year ended 31 December 2005
At 31 December 2004 and
1 January 2005:
Cost 2,027,321 18,868 21,994 16,936 2,085,119
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (503,268) (5,974) (2,170) (13,294) (524,706)
Net carrying amount 1,524,053 12,894 19,824 3,642 1,560,413
Net carrying amount:
At 1 January 2005 1,524,053 12,894 19,824 3,642 1,560,413
Acquisition of a subsidiary - note 44 47,596 - - - 47,596
Additions - - 471 2,197 2,668
Amortisation provided for the year (102,605) (1,887) (1,491) - {105,983)
Impairment during the year
recognised in the income statement - - {12,000 {5,870) (17,870
Exchange realignment 30,650 212 149 31 31,042
At 31 December 2005 1,499,694 11,219 6,953 - 1,517,866
At 31 December 2005:
Cost 2,126,925 19,234 22,681 - 2,168,837
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (627,231) (8,012) (15,728) - (650,971)
Net carrying amount 1,499,694 11,219 6,953 - 1,517,866

10
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Group (continued)

Management Deferred
Operating  information development
concessions systems Licences costs* Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note {a)) (note (b))
Year ended 31 December 2004
At 1 January 2004:
Cost 2,027,321 18,868 9,994 13,294 2,069,477
Accumulated amortisation and
; impairment (401,901) (4,088) (735) (13,294) (420,018)
g .
; Net carrying amount 1,625,420 14,780 9,259 - 1,649,459
i
% Net carrying amount:
? At 1 January 2004 1,625,420 14,780 9,259 - 1,649,459
; Additions - - 12,000 3,642 15,642
Amortisation provided for the year (101,367) (1,886) (1,435) - (104,688)
At 31 December 2004 1,524,053 12,894 19,824 3,642 1,560,413

* Internally generated
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31 December 2005

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Operating concessions
(i) Pursuant to a concession agreement dated 13 July 1998 entered into between the
Company and Jt R B RK 22 8] (Beijing Municipal Water Company) (“Beijing
Water"”), the Company acquired at a consideration of RMB1.5 billion an operating
right from Beijing Water to operate a water purification and treatment plant, No. 9
Phase |, in Beijing and sell purified water, for a period of 20 years commencing on
24 November 1998. Beijing Water has guaranteed the Company a net cash inflow
of RMB210 million from the water purification and treatment business for each of
the years in the concession period. The concession right so granted was
subsequently transferred by the Company to Beijing Bei Kong Water Production
Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary set up by the Company for the purpose of
holding this concession right and engaging in the water purification and treatment |
operation.

As at 31 December 2005, the remaining amortisation period of this operating
concession is approximately 13 years.

(i)  Pursuant to a co-operative joint venture agreement dated 18 July 2001 entered
into between Hong Kong Zhong Ji Facility Investment Co., Ltd., a 96.5% indirectly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and EH T A& B ER A E (Shenzhen
Municipal Shiguan Road Company Limited) (“Shiguan Road Limited”) for the
establishment of Shenzhen Guanshun Road & Bridge Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Guanshun”), a 53.08% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company, and as approved

by the relevant government authorities, Shiguan Road Limited transferred to
Shenzhen Guanshun at a total consideration of RMB652 million an operating right
to operate the Shenzhen Shiguan Road and Bridge, which is located in Shenzhen
Municipality, the PRC, for a period of 20 years commencing on 12 April 2002.

As at 31 December 2005, the remaining amortisation period of this operating
concession is approximately 16 years and 4 months.
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Operating concessions (continued)

(i)  Pursuant to a concession agreement dated 17 June 1998 entered into between
Beijing Long Qing Xia Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (“LQX Tourism"), a 75%
owned subsidiary acquired during the year, and EESEE K EE K (Yanging
Longgingxia Management Office) ("LQOX Management”), LOX Tourism acquired at
a consideration of RMB60 million an operating right from LQX Management to sell
entrance tickets and provide tourism services in Longgingxia, a scenic area in
Beijing, for a period of 40 years commencing on 19 August 1998. An additional
concession fee is payable as determined by reference to the turnover of LQX
Tourism for an accounting year based on the following progressive rates:

HRG Turnover Concession fee rate

The portion exceeding RMB35 million
but less than RMB70 million, inclusive 20%

The portion exceeding RMB70 million
but less than RMB100 million, inclusive 30%

The portion exceeding RMB100 million 40%

As at 31 December 2004, LOX Tourism was a 75% indirectly owned jointly-controlled
entity of the Company and became a subsidiary of the Company upon the acquisition
of a 100% equity interest in an intermediate holding company of LOX Tourism by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2005, further details of which are
set out in note 52(b)(iv) to the financial statements. Following the acquisition, the
operation concession became an asset of the Group.

As at 31 December 2005, the remaining amortisation period of this operating
concession was approximately 32 years and 7 months.
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Deferred development costs

In 2002, government assistance of HK$4,710,000 was received from a government authority

of the PRC in relation to a technology development project undertaken by the Group
and was accounted for as a deduction in arriving at the carrying amount of the deferred

development costs as at 31 December 2004.

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost ' 3,711,852 4,100,247
Due from subsidiaries 2,480,986 2,890,020
Loans to a subsidiary 50,000 -
Due to subsidiaries (741,785) (813,280)
5,501,053 6,176,987
Impairment (441,174) (261,751)
5,059,879 5,915,236

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment. The loans to a subsidiary comprise two loans of HK$12 million and HK$38 million,

respectively, which are unsecured, bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum and are repayable in
November 2006. The carrying amounts of these amounts due from/to subsidiaries and loans to

a subsidiary approximate to their fair values.

l££
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Company name

Beijing Yanjing Brewery
Company Limited *

Fujian Yanjing Huiquan
Brewery Co., Ltd.
(“Yanjing Huiquan”) #2

EREE(REZE) RN
&R 12 7] (Baotou Yanjing
Brewery Company

Limited) ("Yanjing Baotou”)

RRRE (BAER) RH
ERAA
{Yanjing Brewery

(Guilin Liquan)
Company Limited)

ARREFEIAR
& f 22 & (Yanjing Brewery
(Chifeng) Company
Limited)

RRBE (8N ERE
{£ /2 &) (Yanjing Brewery
(Ganzhou) Company
Limited)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Nominal value

of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital

RMB1,019,446,039

RMB250,000,000

RMB193,219,374

RMB160,776,000

RMB153,070,200

RMB86,880,000

Company

Percentage of

attributable equity

interest held by
Group

- 54.46

- 28.52

- 42.76

- 41157

- 42.701

- 52.23

Principal
activities

Production and
sale of beer
Production and

sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name

RRRE (BB BRLA
(Yanjing Brewery
{Hengyang) Company
Limited)

AEERRARRAF
(Hunan Yanjing Brewery
Company Limited)

IREREEERELAT
(Jiangxi Yanjing Brewery
Company Limited)

BREE G BERAE
(Yanjing Brewery (Laizhou)
Company Limited)

ERBE(LRER)RG
A [ 2 B](Yanjing Brewery
{Shandong Wuming)
Company Limited)

AR E(RR)BRDA
(Yanjing Brewery (Xiangfan)
Company Limited)

RERRREERLDF
{Fujian Yanjing Brewery
Company Limited)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Nominal value

of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital

RMB180,660,000

RMB95,000,000

RMB129,511,385

RMB187,053,800

RMB83,499,643

RMB170,700,000

RMB140,000,000

Percentage of

attributable equity

interest held by

Company Group

51.06

50.45

41357

t

30.35°

53.18

52.51
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Principal
activities

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Percentage of
registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations registered capital interest held by  activities
Company Group

BR@E (HTIH) ERAR  PRC/ RMB133,350,000 - 40.841  Production and
(Yanjing Brewery Mainland China sale of beer
(Zhejiang Xiandu)

Company Limited)

EREE (RD)ERDA PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 5174  Production and
(Yanjing Brewery Mainland China sale of beer
{Changsha) Company
Limited)

EYERERBERE PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51.74 Production and
BB A7 (Changsha Huanan  Mainland China sale of beer
Yanjing Brewery Sales Co.,

Ltd.)

AEERRBBRAE PRC/ US$20,000,000 - 40.84"  Production and
(Beijing Yanjing Beverage Mainland China sale of beverages
Company Limited)

AREE (k) BRAF PRC/ RMB1100,000,000 - 54.27  Production and
(Yanjing Brewery (Xiantao) Mainland China sale of beer
Company Limited) ®

EREZBEERAT PRC/ RMB100,000,000 - 65.84  Production and
(Guangdong Yanjing Brewery  Mainland China sale of beer
Company Limited) ®

ERBEMEZI)EREL PRC/ RMB230,769,230 - 55.55  Production and
/2 8] (Yanjing Brewery (Qufu Mainland China sale of beer

Sankong) Co., Ltd.)
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name

ERERBE (BN ERDA
(Yanjing Huiquan Brewery
(Huzhou) Co., Ltd.) ?

Beijing Wangfujing
Department Store
{Group) Co., Ltd.
("Wangfujing") *

IREREEAREALT
(Beijing Shuang An
Department Store Co.,
Ltd.) ("Shuang An")

KBIFABEERRT
{Chengdu Wang Fu Jing
Department Store Co.,

Ltd.)

BNIRHAEAEER
& 47 (Guangzhou
Wangfujing Department Store
Company Limited)

REIRFABEEREIRAT
(Wuhan Wangfujing
Department Store
Company Limited)

RAIFRAEEERETLA
(Changsha Wangfujing
Department Store
Co., Ltd.)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Maintand China

Nominal value

of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital

RMB130,000,000

RMB392,973,026

RMB280,000,000

RM850,000,000

RMB10,000,000

RMB10,000,000

RMB 10,000,000

Company

Percentage of

interest held by
Group

28.461

- 50.1

35.077

- 50.1

- 50.1
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attributable equity  Principal

activities

Production and
sale of beer

Department
store operations

Department
store operations

Department
store operations
and property

development

Department
store operations

Department
store operations

Department
store operations

1 £0
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations registered capital interest held by activities
Company Group

BEIMAEEERMEELE  PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 50.1  Department
(Baotou Wangfujing Mainland China store operations
Department Store
Co., Ltd.)

EETIRFAEEREALT  PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 50.1  Department
(Chongging Wangfujing Mainland China store operations
Department Store Co,, Ltd.)

Beijing Capital Expressway PRC/ US$64,053,700 - 96 Operations of
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China an expressway

Shenzhen Guanshun Road PRC/ RMB217,500,000 - 53.08  Operations of
& Bridge Co., Ltd. Mainland China a toll road

Beijing Long Qing Xia Tourism  PRC/ RMB120,000,000 - 75  Operations

Development Co., Ltd. ? Mainland China of tourism
businesses

EERNEERAERLA PRC/ RMB118,685,285 10.41 68.65  Production
(Ever Source Scientific Mainland China and sale of
and Technology geothermal
Development Co., Ltd ) energy systems

IRABEFERUEERE PRC/ US$3,000,000 - 69.81  Licence holding
& & 1 7] (Beijing Mainland China
Enterprises Ever Source
(Beijing) Company Limited) ®

ERKERREREMLRT  PRC/ RMB2,483,160 - 35.60" Production and sale

{Beijing Ever Hot
Pumps Co., Ltd.)
("Ever Hot Pumps”)

Place of
incorporation/

Mainland China

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of

of machineries
for geothermal
energy systems
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

Nominal value

of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by

Principal
activities

Company Group

ETREBRREAAR PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 69.81  Installation of
ZEIRERRA Mainland China geothermal
(Beijing Ever Source energy systems
Environmental Equipment
Installation Co., Ltd.)
Beijing Bei Kong Water PRC/ US$1,000,000 100 100  Operations of a
Production Co., Ltd. ¢ Mainland China water treatment
plant
TR EKEERAF PRC/ RMB 100,000,000 - 99.9  Investment holding
(Beijing Beikong Mainland China
Waterworks Co., Ltd.)?
TREEEHEREERE PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 50.1 Property investment
f£ 22 7 (Beijing Hongye Real  Mainland China and development
Estate Development Co. Ltd.) }
Beijing Development Hong Kong HK$493,981,150 - 55.81  Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited * holding
Xteam Software International ~ Cayman Islands/ HK$37,584,718 - 30.75" Investment ‘
Limited ® Hong Kong holding l
FRTe (RE) BARM PRC/ US$3,000,000 - 30.75" Sale of computer
B[R 2 Bl (Xteam Software Mainland China software and
{China) Co., Limited) © provision of
related services
ERBAEERRBERM PRC/ RMB8,000,000 - 20.48"  Lease of

ER 27 ("Beijing Boda”) Mainland China underground

optical fiber pores
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Percentage of
registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations registered capital interest held by activities
Company Group
TRBERVERAEER PRC/ US$4,000,000 - 47.72' Property investment

[ 72 E](Beijing Development  Mainland China
Property Investment and
Management Co., Ltd )

TREHERLE PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 38.17t Provision of
(Becom Software Co., Ltd.) Mainland China management
information

system services

EREBEERRRRE PRC/ RMB 100,000,000 - 40.18"  Construction
ER 27 (Beijing Enterprises  Mainland China of information
Teletron Information networks,
Technology Co., Ltd.) ¢ provision of IT

technical support

and consultation

services

BEHEEARBERLA PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 22.88t Construction
(Hunan Education Information ~ Mainland China of information
Service Co., Ltd.) networks and

provision of T
technical support
services

TR BERTEEIR PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 30.75" Software
RIBRRE Mainland China development

{Beijing Enterprises VST
Software Technology Co., Ltd.)
{"VST Software")
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name

Beijing Enterprises
Holdings High-Tech
Development Co., Ltd.

Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Investment
Management Co., Ltd.
{"Investment Management”)

TREREEEFRAF
(Beijing Feng Shou
Winery Co., Ltd.)

TRIEEEEEER LA
(Beijing Shun Xing
Wine Co., Ltd.)

Beijing Enterprises
{Properties) Limited

Helken Industries Limited

ERBERPELEYRM
B & 12 € (Beifing Yanjing
Zhong Fa Biochemical
Technology Company
Limited)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

British
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

Nominal value

of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital

US$30,000,000

HK$61,100,000

US$2,700,000

RMB11,880,000

Us$160

HK$2

RMB40,00C,000

Percentage of
attributable equity

interest held by
Company Group
97.99 97.99
100 100
51 51
51 51
100 100
100 100

- 43,891
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Principal
activities

fnvestment holding

Provision of
management
and consultancy
services

Production and

sale of wine

Production and
sale of wine

Property investment

Property investment

Production and sale
of biochemical
products
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

T These entities are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s control over the entities.

* Domestic A shares of Yanjing Brewery are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The shares in Yanjing

Brewery held by the Group are legal person shares and cannot be traded on any stock exchange.
# Domestic A shares of Yanjing Huiquan and Wangfujing are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. All of the
shares of Yanjing Huiquan and approximately 194,594,400 shares (or a 49.52% interest) in Wangfujing held by

the Group are legal person shares and cannot be traded on any stock exchange.

T Shares of Beijing Development and Xteam are listed on the Main Board and The Growth Enterprise Market of

the Stock Exchange, respectively.
Q These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC Law.

) Acquired/incorporated during the year.

The principal subsidiaries acquired by the Group during the year include LQX Tourism and
Yanjing Huiquan, further details of the business combinations are included in notes 44 and
52(b)iv) to the financial statements.

The principal subsidiaries disposed of by the Group during the year included Sanyuan Foods,
Western Food and 3t ¥R R I SR ¥ K M % R B PR 22 §) (Beijing Enterprises Maglev Technology
Development Co., Ltd.) ("Beijing Maglev”), further details of these disposals are included in
notes 10, 45 and 52(b)(v) to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of net assets 196,428 591,829 - -
Due from jointly-controlled

entities 21,564 19,942 516 13,406

Due to jointly-controlled
entities (35,074) (55,093) {14,132) (14,195)
182,918 556,678 (13,616) (789)

(a) The amount of the goodwill capitalised as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet,
arising on the acquisition of jointly-controlled entities, is as follows:

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January - 17,682
Reclassification to goodwill arising on

acquisition of subsidiaries as a result
of the related jointly-controlled entities |
becoming subsidiaries during the year l
- note 17

(17,682)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December - -
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

(a)

(c)

(continued)

As detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group applied the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in respect of the acquisitions of jointly-
controlled entities before 1 January 2001 to remain eliminated against the consolidated
capital reserve.

The amount of goodwill remaining in the consolidated capital reserve, arising on the
acquisition of jointly-controlled entities prior to 1 January 2001, is as follows:

Group
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 118,431 159,188
Disposal of a jointly-controlled entity — note 52(b)(v) (118,431) (40,757)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December - 118,431

The amounts due from/to jointly-controlled entities are unsecured, interest-free and have

no fixed terms of repayment.

The following is a condensed summary of financial information of the Group's jointly-
controlled entities:

2005 2004
HK$000 HK$'000

SHARE OF RESULTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP

Turnover 166,432 961,800
Other revenue 10,350 151,648
Total revenue 176,782 1,113,448
Total expenses (199,551) (1,046,742)
Profit/(loss) before tax (22,769) 66,706
Tax (6,317) (10,253)
Minority interest 2,194 -

Profit/(loss) for the year (26,892) 56,453
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

{c)

(continued)

2005 2004
HK$‘000 HK$’'000
SHARE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP
Property, plant and equipment 9,172 469,528
Operating concession (note) - 36,034
Other non-current assets 187,277 93,338
Current assets 137,471 278,602
Non-current liabilities (97,560) (116,410)
Current liabilities (47,117) (176,302)
Losses in excess of investment costs not absorbed
by the Group 7.185 7,039
Net assets 196,428 591,829

Note: The operating concession as at 31 December 2004 was the operating concession of LQX Tourism to

sell entrance tickets and provide tourism services in Longgingxia, a scenic area in Beijing, for a period

of 40 years commencing on 19 August 1998. The operating concession became an asset of the Group

as detailed in note 18(a)(iii) to the financial statements.

I I
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities, which are all indirectly held by the Company,
are as follows:

Percentage of

Place of Ownership
incorporation/ interest
registration attributable  Voting Profit

Company name and operations Registered capital  to the Group power  sharing Principal activities

IRIR#ELESR PRC/ US$59,600,000 25.05 50 50 Provision of retail
MEERERAT Mainland China management
(Beijing Wang Fu Jing Retail services
Management Company Limited)

TRYEESBRETD PRC/ RMB 12,000,000 20.09 50 36 Provision of
ERAA Mainland China information
(Beijing Education network service
Information Network Service
Centre Co., Lid)

TRTERE-FEERRA PR/ RMB50,000,000 2 444 43 Operations of
(Beijing Municipal Mainland China contactless
Administration & multipurpose
Communications Card electronics
Co., Ltd) payment cards

Beijing Wang Fu Jing Yokado PRC/ U5§12,000,000 2004 4286 40 Operations of
Commercial Co., Ltd. Mainland China a chain network

of supermarkets

The above table lists the jointly-controlled entities of the Group which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other jointly-controlled entities would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost - - 46,168 141,742
Share of net assets 253,206 550,310 - -
Due from associates 9,573 41,033 - 3,505
Due to associates (8,956) - - -
253,823 591,343 46,168 145,247

Impairment for amounts due
from associates (4,974) (474) - -
248,849 590,869 46,168 145,247

As detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group applied the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in respect of the acquisitions of associates
before 1 January 2001 to remain eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve.

The amount of goodwill remaining in the consolidated capital reserve, arising on the
acquisition of associates prior to 1 January 2001, is as follows:

Group
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 150,402 224,569
Partial disposal of an associate - (74,167)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 150,402 150,402

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(¢)  The following is a condensed summary of financial information of the Group's associates:

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
SHARE OF RESULTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP

Turnover 186,803 446,024
Other revenue 4,355 5,046
Total revenue 191,158 451,070
Total expenses (168,162) (391,888)
Profit before tax 22,996 59,182
Tax (1,203) (8,007)
Profit for the year 21,793 51,175

SHARE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP

Property, plant and equipment 181,888 454,060
Other non-current assets 73,546 88,943
Current assets 194,290 248,089
Non-current liabilities (60,083) (21,169)
Current liabilities (132,884) (201,384)
Minority interests (3,551) (20,575)

Losses in excess of investment costs
not absorbed by the Group - 2,346
Net assets 253,206 550,310
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Percentage of

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Place of Nominal value Ownership
incorporation/ of issued and interest
registration paid-up capital/ attributable  Voting Profit
Company name and operations registered capital  to the Group power  sharing Principal activities
Beijing Peking University PRC/ RMB8C,000,000 2601 222 26.55  Production and sale
WBL Biotech Co., Ltd. ! Mainland China of healthcare
products
Biosino Bio-Technology PRC/ RMB70,017,528 3429 333 35 Production and
and Science Incorporation Mainland China sale of magnet
("BioSing"} * diagnostic and
pharmaceutical
products
IRBERSRN PRC/ RMB135,872,209 3827 364 3827 Production and
ROERAHE Mainland China sale of and
{BMEI Co., Ltd.J* mechanical
electrical
equipment
t The interest in this associate, which was previously directly held by the Company, was transferred to a
subsidiary of the Company during the year.
n The interest in BioSino is indirectly held by the Company. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 27 February

2006, the M shares of BioSino were listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. All of the

shares of BioSino held by the Group are legal person shares and cannot be traded on any stock exchange.

The directors do not consider it appropriate to disclose a value of the Group’s investment in BioSino based on

the published price quotation of BioSino’s listed H shares as such information would be misleading.

* 23.44% and 14.83% equity interests of this associate are directly held by the Company and indirectly held by a

wholly-owned subsidiary, respectively.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,

principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of

the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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22. PLEDGED BANK BALANCES

Group
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Pledged bank balances -- note 32 50,241 53,211
Less: Portion classified as current assets (15,557) (45,168)
Non-current portion 34,684 8,743

(@)  Short term pledged bank balances of HK$4,377,000 (2004: HK$23,785,000) were pledged
to banks to secure certain short term bank loans (note 37 (d)(ii)).

(b)  Short term pledged bank balances of HK$9,430,000 (2004: HK$21,383,000) and long
term pledged bank balances of HK$8,135,000 (2004: HK$8,743,000) were pledged to
banks as security for mortgage loans granted to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties held for sale.

(c)  Short term pledged bank balances of HK$1,750,000 (2004: Nil) and long term pledged
bank balances of FHK$26,549,000 (2004: Nil) were pledged to secure certain trade finance
facilities granted to the Group (note 41).

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-5ALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity investments

in Hong Kong, at fair value 250 250 250 250

Unlisted equity investments,
at cost 532,758 306,238 141,187 80,212
533,008 306,488 141,437 80,462
Impairment (22,971) (21,432) - -

510,037 285,056 141,437 80,462
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23.

24.

25.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(a)  The unlisted equity investments of available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December
2005 included the Group’s remaining 20% and 2.11% effective equity interests in Beijing
Siemens, a then 40% indirectly owned associate of the Company, and Sanyuan Foods, a
then 57.11% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company, respectively. Following the
Group selling its 20% and 55% equity interests in Beijing Siemens and Sanyuan Foods
during the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2005, respectively, as detailed in notes 4
and 10 to the financial statements, respectively, the carrying amounts of the remaining
effective equity interests in Beijing Siemens and Sanyuan Foods held by the Group,
which amounted to HK$90,763,000 and HK$27,903,000, respectively, at their respective
dates of disposal are accounted for as available-for-sale financial assets as the Group has
neither control nor any significant influence over the two companies and no longer
involves in any of their operating and financial decisions.

(b)  Certain unlisted equity investments of the Group and the Company are not stated at fair
value but at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, because they do not have a
qguoted market price in an active market, the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Group
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
At cost 322,301 132,032
Less: Portion classified as current assets (322,301) -
Non-current portion - 132,032

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The carrying amount of the Group's properties held for sale that are carried at net realisable
value was HK$28,713,000 (2004: HK$53,195,000) as at the balance sheet date.

As at 31 December 2004, certain of the Group’s properties held for sale with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$1,250,000 were pledged to secure certain bank and other loans granted
to the Group (note 37(d)).

18U
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26.

INVENTORIES
Group

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
Raw materials 1,181,061 963,351
Work in progress 112,234 84,508
Finished goods 180,007 112,585
Trading stocks 101,621 79,525

1,574,923 1,239,969

At 31 December 2005, none of the inventories was carried at fair value less cost to sell (2004
Nil).

. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

Group
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Amounts due from customers for contract work 25,238 16,915
Amounts due to customers for contract work (48,580) (51,770)
(23,342) (34,855)

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
less recognised losses to date 67,695 53,567
Less: Progress billings received and receivable (91,037) (88,422)

(23,342) (34,855)
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28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

29.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

The various group companies have different credit policies, depending on the requirements of
their markets and the businesses which they operate. Certain customers are allowed to settle
the construction contract sum by three annual instalments. Aged analyses of trade and bills
receivables are prepared and closely monitored in order to minimise any credit risk associated

with receivables.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the balance sheet date, based on the

invoice date and net of impairment, is as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
Within one year 769,933 755,437 4,844 3,742
One to two years 112,168 79,490 - -
Two to three years 66,728 15,651 - -
Over three years 13,082 8,766 - -
961,911 859,344 4,844 3,742
Less: Portion classified
as current assets (928,709) (790,034) (4,844) (3,742)
Non-current portion 33,202 69,310 - -
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
Note HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Prepayments 46,812 24,243 1,632 4,541
Deposits and other debtors 592,822 867,382 3,286 154,438
Due from holding companies 30 435,383 7,992 219,220 1,883
Due from fellow subsidiaries 30 29,108 - 29,108 -
Due from related companies 30 264,723 102,623 122,778 21,670
1,368,848 1,002,240 376,024 182,532

Less: Portion classified
as current assets (1,055,066) (825,359)

(236,080) (178,477)

Non-current portion 313,782 176,881

139,944 4,055

<L
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29. OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a) The non-current portion of other receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2005
mainly included the following:

()  the amortised cost of the amounts due from the ultimate holding company, an
intermediate holding company and a fellow subsidiary of the Company in an
aggregate amount of RMB267,997,000 (approximately HK$257,483,000) in respect
of their acquisitions of the Company’s equity interests in BE Dairy, BE Tourism and
Beijing Maglev. Further details of the transactions are set out in notes 10 and
52(b)(v) to the financial statements.

(i) an investment deposit of HK$36,743,000 paid by the Group for a new investment
in Mainland China.

(b)  The non-current portion of the Group's other receivables as at 31 December 2004 mainly
included the following:

(i an investment deposit of HK$61,715,000 paid for the acquisition of an additional
14.2244% equity interest in Yanjing Huiquan by Yanjing Brewery from other five

shareholders of Yanjing Huiquan. The acquisition of Yanjing Huiquan was approved

by relevant PRC government authorities and completed in March 2005, and Yanjing

Huiquan became a subsidiary of the Group since then.

(i) investment deposits of HK$95,112,000 in aggregate paid by the Group for certain
new investments in Mainland China.

{c) Included in the Group’s deposits and other debtors as at the balance sheet date is an
aggregate amount of HK$90,346,000 (2004: HK$139,759,000) paid in advance to related
companies arising from purchases of raw materials in the ordinary course of business of
the Group. The balances with the related companies are unsecured and interest-free.
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30.

31.

DUE FROM/TO HOLDING COMPANIES/FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES/
RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due from/to holding companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment, except that an aggregate amount of RMB421,336,000 (approximately
HK$404,824,000), being the amortised cost of the amounts due from BHL and Beijing Holdings
(BVI) Limited of HK$205,128,000 and HK$226,716,000, respectively, in respect of their respective
acquisitions of the Group’s equity interests in BE Dairy and BE Tourism, are repayable by
instalments as detailed in notes 10 and 52(b)(v) to the financial statements.

The amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment, except that an amount of RMB24,774,000 (approximately HK$23,821,000),
being the amortised cost of the amount due from Canfort Investment Limited of HK$25,705,000
in respect of its acquisitions of the Group’s equity interest in Beijing Maglev, is repayable by
instalments as detailed in note 52(b)(v) to the financial statements.

The amounts due from/to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment, except for an amount of RMB105,199,000 (approximately HK$100,999,000),
being the amortised cost of HK$106,991,000 of the amount due from San Yuan Group in
respect of its acquisition of the Company’s 65.46% equity interest in BE Dairy. Further details
of which are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

The balances with related companies of the Group included in deposits and other debtors and
trade and bills payables are disclosed in notes 29(c) and 41 to the financial statements,
respectively.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity investments in

Hong Kong 16,682 21,937 5,760 9,366

Unlisted equity investments in
Mainiand China - 290 - -
Unlisted fund 28,869 27,975 28,869 27,725
45,551 50,202 34,629 37,091

The above equity investments as at 31 December 2005 were classified as held for trading.
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32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALI NTS

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash and bank balances 2,917,382 2,990,437 24,685 83,168
Cash equivalents 59,326 41,136 59,326 41,136
Time deposits 581,588 1,163,802 108,496 365,155
3,558,296 4,195,375 192,507 489,459

Less: Pledged bank balances
-~ note 22 (50,241) (53,211) - -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,508,055 4,141,464 192,507 489,459

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances and time deposits of the Group
denominated in RMB arnounted to HK$2,745,914,000 (2004: HK$2,729,703,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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33. ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED
LIABILITIES

Group
2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale 10(b) - 1,304,733
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 19,319 -
Assets of a disposal group and non-current assets
classified as held for sale 19,319 1,304,733 ;
Liabilities directly associated with:
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale  10(b) - 493,795
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 46,154 -
Liabilities directly associated with assets of
a disposal group and non-current assets
classified as held for sale 46,154 493,795
The non-current assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2005 are certain buildings

and prepaid land premium of the Group in Mainland China with net carrying amounts of '
HK$15,222,000 and HK$4,097,000 at that date, respectively, that are to be sold by the Group |
at a total cash consideration of approximately HK$76,923,000. A deposit of approximately |
HK$46,154,000 had been received from the purchaser as at 31 December 2005. ‘
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34. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares
Company
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000

lssued and fully paid:
622,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 62,250 62,250

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share options issued under the schemes
are included in note 35 to the financial statements. No share options were granted or exercised

during the year.
35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company

The Company adopted & share option scheme (the “Old Scheme"), which became effective on
16 May 1997, for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The Old Scheme was terminated and
replaced by a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) effective 17 October 2005
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on the same date.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Company (continued)

All options granted under the Old Scheme either lapsed or were cancelled before the Old
Scheme was terminated on 17 October 2005 and the following sets out the movements of the
share options granted under the Old Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2005:

Number of share options J

Name or category At Cancelled At
of participant 1 January during 31 December
Notes 2005 the year 2005

Directors:
Mr. Li Fu Cheng (a) 200,000 (200,000) -
(b) 1,800,000  (1,800,000) -

2,000,000 (2,000,000) -

Mr. Zheng Wan He (a) 200,000 {200,000} -
(b) 1,800,000 (1,800,000) -

2,000,000 (2,000,000) -

Other employees:
In aggregate (a) 210,000 (210,000) -
In aggregate (b) 1,840,000  (1,840,000) - i

2,050,000 {2,050,000) -

6,050,000  (6,050,000) -

Notes:

(a) These options were granted on 3 March 1998, at an exercise price of HK$17.03 per share. The cash consideration
paid by each director and employee for the options granted was HK$1 per grant of options.

(b) These options were granted on 23 June 1998 at an exercise price of HK$17.03 per share. The consideration
paid by each director and employee for the options granted was HK$1 per grant of options.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEM  (continued)

The Company (continued)

The purpose of the New Schem to attract and retain the best quality personnel of the
Group for the development of - :roup’s operations; to provide additional incentives to
employees, officers and directore i@ Group; and to promote the long term financial success

of the Company by aligning the  .rests of option holders to shareholders. The directors of
the Company may, at their discre: 7, invite employees (including executive directors) and non-
executive directors of the Compal ; and any of its subsidiaries, to take up options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of the Compaﬁy at HK$1 per grant of options. The New Scheme became
effective on 17 October 2005 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under
the New Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the total number of
ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any time. No option may be granted to any one
person which if exercised in full would result in the total number of ordinary shares of the
Company issued and issuable to him/her under all the options granted to him/her in any
12-month period and the said option exceeding 1% of the total number of ordinary shares of

the Company in issue at any time.

An option granted under the New Scheme is personal to the grantee and shall not be assignable

or transferrable.

The period during which an option granted under the New Scheme may be exercised will be
determined by the directors at their discretion, save that no option may be exercised later than
10 years after the grant date. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of

approval of the New Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company's ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of ordinary share of the
Company.

At 31 December 2005, no share option has been granted under the New Scheme.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Beijing Development

Beijing Development, a subsidiary of the Company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, operates a share option scheme (the “BDHK Scheme") to give executives
and key employees of the Beijing Development group an interest in preserving and maximising
its shareholders’ value in the longer term, to enable Beijing Development and its relevant
subsidiaries to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability and to reward individuals
for future performance. Eligible participants of the BDHK Scheme include the executive directors
and employees of Beijing Development or any of its subsidiaries. The BDHK Scheme became
effective on 18 June 2001 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under {
the BDHK Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary shares |
of Beijing Development in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the BDHK Scheme is limited to 25% of the aggregate
number of shares for the time being issued and issuable under the BDHK Scheme.

|
|
|
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the 1
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise |
period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors of Beijing Development, ‘
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than five (
years from the date on which the offer of the share options is accepted or on the expiry date of

the BDHK Scheme, whichever is earlier. ‘

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors of Beijing Development,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of Beijing
Development on the Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the
average closing price of the ordinary shares of Beijing Development on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
an ordinary share of Beijing Development.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.
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35. SHARE OPTION S {EMES (cc  aued)
Beijing Development  ntinued)

ovements of L share options granted under the BDHK Scheme

cember 2005:

The following sets out th:

during the year ended 31

Number of share options

Name or category At Cancelled At
of participant 1 January during 31 December
Notes 2005 the year 2005

Director of the Company:

Mr. E Meng (a) 1,600,000 - 1,600,000

(b) 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
e 2,800,000 - 2,800,000

Other employees:

n aggregate (a), (d) 6,540,000 {(180,000) 6,360,000

in aggregate (b) 18,900,000 - 18,900,000

In aggregate (c) 2,800,000 (2,800,000) -

28,240,000 (2,980,000) 25,260,000
31,040,000 (2,980,000) 28,060,000

Notes:

(&) These options were granted on 19 June 2001 at an exercise price of HK$1.13 per share of Beijing Development.
The options may be exercised in two or three equal portions. The first portion is exercisable at any time
commencing on 1 January 2002, and each further portion becomes exercisable at any time commencing on
1 January in each of the following years. All of the options, if not otherwise exercised, will Tapse on 26 June
2006. No portion of these share options was exercised during the year.

(b) These options were granted on 18 January 2002 at an exercise price of HK$1.00 per share of Beijing

Development. The options can be exercised in three equal portions. The first portion is exercisable at any
time commencing on 18 January 2002, and each further portion becomes exercisable on 1 January in each of
the following years. All of the options, if not otherwise exercised, will lapse on 17 January 2007. No portion of

these share options was exercised during the year.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Beijing Development (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

These options were granted on 2 October 2003 at an exercise price of HK$1.05 per share of Beijing
Development. The options can be exercised in three equal portions. The first portion is exercisable at any
time commencing on 2 October 2003, and each further portion becomes exercisable on 1 January in each of
the following years. Owing to the resignation of a director of Beijing Development during the year, all of
these options were forfeited accordingly.

Owing to the resignation of certain employees of Beijing Development during the year, the share options
granted to them were forfeited accordingly.

At 31 December 2005, Beijing Development had 28,060,000 share options outstanding under
the BDHK Scheme, which represented approximately 5.7% of the shares of Beijing Development

in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of Beijing Development, result in the issue of 28,060,000 additional
ordinary shares of Beijing Development and additional share capital of HK$28,060,000 and
share premium of HK$1,035,000 (before issue expenses).

Xteam

{a)

Pre-IPO share option scheme

Xteam, a subsidiary of the Company whose shares are listed on The Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme (the "Xteam
Pre-IPO Scheme”) on 30 May 2001. The Xteam Pre-IPO Scheme was terminated on
11 December 2001 and no further options can be granted under the Xteam Pre-IPO
Scheme. However, all options granted prior to the termination of the Xteam Pre-IPO
Scheme will remain in full force and effect.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEM  (continued)

Xteam (continued)

{a)

(b)

Pre-IPO share option schem ntinued)
The following sets out the ments of the share options granted under the Xteam
Pre-IPO Scheme during the :nded 31 December 2005:
Number of share options
At Forfeited At

1 January during 31 December
Category of participant 2005 the year 2005
Other employees:
In aggregate (note) IS 80,000,000 (30,000,000) 50,000,000

Note: These options were granted on 14 November 2001 at an exercise price of HK$0.266 per share of
Xteam. The options are exercisable at any time commencing on 11 June 2002 and, if not otherwise
exercised, will lapse on 13 November 2011. No portion of these share options was exercised during
the year. Owing to the resignation of a director of Xteam during the year, the 30,000,000 share

options granted to him were forfeited accordingly.

At 31 December 2005, Xteam had 50,000,000 share options outstanding under the
Xteam Pre-IPO Scheme, which represented approximately 1.3% of Xteam's shares in
issue at that date. The exercise in full of the remaining share options under the Xteam
IPO Scheme would, under the present capital structure of Xteam, result in the issue of
50,000,000 additional ordinary shares of Xteam and additional share capital of HK$500,000
and share premium of HK$12,800,000 (before issue expenses).

Share option scheme

On 21 November 2001, Xteam adopted a share option scheme (the “Xteam Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Xteam group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Xteam Scheme
include Xteam's executive and non-executive directors, full-time employees, advisers and
consultants of the Xteam group. The Xteam Scheme became effective on 21 November
2001 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum nurnber of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and yet to be granted under the Xteam Scheme is currently limited to 30% of
the shares of Xteam in issue at any time. The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each eligible participant
in the Xteam Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of the grant is limited to 1%
of the aggregate number of issued share capital of Xteam from time to time.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Xteam (continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of
the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors of Xteam
at their discretion, and commences on the date upon which the options are deemed to
be granted and accepted.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be fess
than the higher of (i) the closing price of Xteam’s ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average closing price of Xteam’s
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

The following sets out the movements of the share options granted under the Xteam
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2005:

Number of share options

At Forfeited At
1 January during 31 December
Category of participant 2005 the year 2005
Other employees:
In aggregate (note) 30,000,000 (16,500,000) 13,500,000
Advisers and consultants:
In aggregate (note) 33,000,000 - = 33,000,000

63,000,000 (16,500,000) 46,500,000

Note: These options were granted on 19 December 2003 at an exercise price of HK$0.14 per share of
Xteam. The options are exercisable at any time commencing on 19 December 2003 and, if not
otherwise exercised, will lapse on 18 December 2013. No portion of these share options was exercised
during the year. Owing to the resignation of certain directors and employees of Xteam during the
year, the 16,500,000 share options in total granted to them were forfeited accordingly.

At 31 December 2005, Xteam had 46,500,000 share options outstanding under the
Xteam Scheme, which represented approximately 1.2% of Xteam'’s shares in issue as at
that date. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present
capital structure of Xteam, result in the issue of 46,500,000 additional ordinary shares of
Xteam and additional share capital of HK$465,000 and share premium of HK$6,045,000
(before issue expenses).

1I9%
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36. RESERVES

(a) Group
(i)  The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 42 to 43 of the financial statements.

(if) PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in accordance with the PRC Companies
Law or the Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and Foreign Investment
as applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and
associates. None of the Group’s PRC reserve funds as of 31 December 2005 was
distributable in the form of cash dividends.

(iii)  Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
in prior years remain eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve as further

explained in notes 17 and 21 to the financial statements, respectively.

(b) Company

Share
premium Retained

account profits Total

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 2004 4,839,497 321,128 5,160,625

Profit for the year 11 - 383,143 383,143

Interim 2004 dividend 12 - (62,250) {62,250)

Proposed final 2004 dividend 12 - (124,500) (124,500)
At 31 December 2004 and

1 January 2005 4,839,497 517,521 5,357,018

Loss for the year 11 - (111,190) (111,190)

Interim 2005 dividend 12 - {(62,250) (62,250)

Proposed final 2005 dividend 12 - (124,500) (124,500)

At 31 December 2005 4,839,497 219,581 5,059,078
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37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bank overdrafts, unsecured 8,068 - - -
Bank loans:
Secured 543,456 651,869 - - ‘
Unsecured 2,005,902 2,712,495 664,775 1,400,850 ‘

2,549,358 3,364,364 664,775 1,400,850

Other loans, unsecured 321,017 440,407 -~ -

Total bank and other loans 2,878,443 3,804,771 664,775 1,400,850

Bank overdrafts repayable within SRR
one year or on demand 8,068 - - : -

Bank loans repayable:

Within one year 2,335,132 1,936,928 664,775 -
In the second year 1,420 1,403,136 - 1,400,850
In the third to fifth years,
inclusive 196,746 6,339 - -
Beyond five years 16,060 17,961 - - ?

2,549,358 3,364,364 664,775 1,400,850

Other loans repayable:

Within one year 161,932 162,709 - -
In the second year 37,577 41,164 - -
In the third to fifth years,
inclusive 51,354 92,404 - ~
Beyond five years 70,154 144,130 - -
321,017 440,407 - -
Total bank and other loans 2,878,443 3,804,771 664,775 1,400,850

Less: Portion classified as current
liabilities (2,505,132) (2,099,637) (664,775) -

Non-current portion 373,311 1,705,134 - 1,400,850
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37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

(a)

{c)

The bank loans of the Group and the Company include a five-year US$180 million
syndicated loan facility obtained by the Company in 2001. The syndicated loan bears
interest at LIBOR+0.6% and is fully repayable on 12 June 2006. The Company early
repaid a principal amount of US$110 million during the year ended 31 December 2005,
resulting the principal amount outstanding under the syndicated loan facility being reduced
to US$70 million as at 31 December 2005.

The loan agreement includes certain conditions imposing specific performance obligations
on the Company's holding companies, among which are the following events which
would constitute an event of default on the loan facility:

0] f the beneficial interest in more than 50% of the entire issued capital of the
Company ceases to be owned by persons or entities controlled by the Beijing
Municipal People’'s Government of China (the "Beijing Government”); or

(i)  If any of the Company's holding companies stops or suspends payments to its
creditors generally, or is unable to or admits its inability to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due, or is declared or becomes bankrupt or insolvent.

Within the best knowledge of the directors, none of the above events took place during
the year and as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

The other loans include amortised cost of interest-free loans of HK$99,384,000 (2004:
HK$215,749,000) granted from related companies. The remaining other loans of
HK$221,633,000 (2004: HK$224,658,000) bear interest at rates ranging from 5% to 9%
(2004: 5% to 9%) per annum.

HK$188,873,000 (2004: HK$185,884,000) of the Group’s unsecured bank loans at the
balance sheet date were guaranteed by the joint venture partners of certain of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries or their associates and a jointly-controlled entity.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by the following:
(i Mortgages over the Group's buildings and plant and machinery with an aggregate
carrying amount at the balance sheet date of HK$275,857,000 (2004:

HK$519,673,000) (note 14(c)), and

(i)  Mortgages over certain of the Group’s bank balances at the balance sheet date of
HK$4,377,000 (2004: HK$23,785,000) in aggregate (note 22(a)).
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37.

38.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
(d) (continued)

Certain of the Group's bank loans as at 31 December 2004 were also secured by an
investment property with a carrying amount of HK$6,500,000 at that date (note 15(c))
and mortgages over certain of the Group's properties held for sale with an aggregate
carrying amount at that date of HK$1,250,000 (note 25).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 16 October 2002, Yanjing Brewery, a subsidiary held indirectly as to 54.46% by the Company,
issued at face value five year 1.2% convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in an aggregate
principal amount of RMB700,000,000 with a face value of RMB100 each.

The Convertible Bonds are convertible, at the option of the bondholders, into fully-paid ordinary
shares of Yanjing Brewery at an original conversion price of RMB10.59 per share, which was
adjusted to RMB7.06 per share as a result of a bonus issue made by Yanjing Brewery during the
year and is subject to further adjustments in certain events. The conversion period for the
Convertible Bonds is from 16 October 2003 to 16 October 2007 (the “Conversion Period"),
both dates inclusive. Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the
Convertible Bonds are redeemable at face value at the end of the Conversion Period, together
with any accrued interest.

Yanjing Brewery has the right to redeem the Convertible Bonds, in whole or in part, during the
Conversion Period, at a redemption price of RMB102 each, subject to adjustments in certain
events, when the closing price of the ordinary shares of Yanjing Brewery is higher than the then
conversion price of the Convertible Bonds by more than 30% for 20 consecutive days. On the
other hand, the bondholders have the right to have Yanjing Brewery redeem the Convertible
Bonds at redemption price, subject to adjustments in certain events, when the closing price of
ordinary shares of Yanjing Brewery is lower than the then conversion price of the Convertible
Bonds by more than 30% for 20 consecutive days.

The Convertible Bonds are guaranteed by the Company, which was approved by the shareholders
of the Company in an extraordinary general meeting held on 11 April 2002. 3t R R EBEEE
7> A] (Beijing Yanjing Beer Group Company) (“Yanjing Beer Group”), which has beneficial interests
in Yanjing Brewery, has undertaken to counter-indemnify the Company in respect of any
contingencies arising from the portion of the guarantee exceeding the Company’s effective
proportional equity interest of 54.46% in Yanjing Brewery.

IO
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38. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds was estimated at the
issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond without a conversion
option. The equity component of the Convertible Bonds is not material to the Group and
accordingly, the whole amount of the Convertible Bonds is accounted for as a financial liability

of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, 465,132 units (2004: 764,484 units) and 63,020
units (2004: Nil) of the Convertible Bonds issued by Yanjing Brewery with an aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$50,079,000 (2004: HK$72,020,000) were exercised by certain
bondholders in exchange for ordinary shares of Yanjing Brewery at respective conversion prices
of RMB10.59 and RMB7.06 per share (as adjusted to take into account the bonus issue made
by Yanjing Brewery during the year) and as a result of which, the Company’s effective equity
interest in Yanjing Brewery was diluted to 54.46% (2004: 54.86%) and a gain on deemed
disposal of HK$14,498,000 (2004: HK$20,715,000) is recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year.

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Group
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred income (note) 15,559 -
Others 17,123 8,466
32,682 8,466

Note: Various government grants were received by the Group for the construction of specific projects or for setting
up research activities in Mainland China and were included in deferred income in the balance sheet. Upon
completion of the construction of the specific projects or research activities and with approvals from relevant
government authorities, the relevant government grants would be released and recognised as other revenue
in the income statement over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment or the deferred
development costs to which they related. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these grants.

In addition, the Group received certain incentives from landlords of certain department stores’ operating
lease arrangements. Such incentives are included in deferred income in the balance sheet, and would be
released and recognised in the income statement as a reduction in rental expenses on the straight-line basis

over the relevant lease terms.
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40. DEFERRED TAX

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated balance sheet:

Group
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred tax assets 67,772 62,747
Deferred tax liabilities (168,527) (163,735)

(100,755) (100,988)

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities and the movements during the year are

as follows: |
1
Group - 2005
Fair value
adjustments
arising from  Accelerated Impairment
Revaluation of acquisition of tax and
properties subsidiaries depreciation  provisions Total

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
at 1 January 2005 (3,302) (134,956) 3,353 33,917 (100,988)

Arising on acquisition

of a subsidiary - note 44 - - (382) - (382)
Deferred tax credited/(charged)

to income statement

during the year ~ note 9 - - (2,469) 4,940 2,47
Exchange realignment (68) (2,790) 41 961 (1,856)

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
at 31 December 2005 (3,370) (137,746) 543 39,818 (100,755)
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40. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Group - 2004

Fair value
adjustments
arising from  Accelerated  Impairment
Revaluation of acquisition of tax and
properties  subsidiaries depreciation provisions Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

at 1 January 2004 (2,168) {149,114) (1,857) 34,534 {118,605)
Arising on acquisition

of a subsidiary - note 44 - - 4,138 - 4,138
Deferred tax credited

to income statement

during the year - note 9 - - 243 12,485 12,728
Attributable to the discontinued

operation - note 10(b) {1,134 14,158 829 (13,102) 751
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

at 31 December 2004 {3,302) (134,956) 3,353 33,917 (100,988)

At 31 December 2005, deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of unused tax
losses of HK$324,645,000 (2004: HK$280,777,000) as they have arisen in the Company and
certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not probable that
taxable profits will be available against which such tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 December 2005, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2004: Nil)
for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures as the Group has no liability to additional tax should such amounts
be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company
to its shareholders.
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41. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at the balance sheet date, based
on the invoice date, is as follows:

Group

2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 1,120,017 724,357

One to two years 25,677 18,703
Two to three years 7,313 8,141 :
Over three years 12,548 14,581 ‘

1,165,555 765,782

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables are amounts of HK$195,132,000 (2004: |
HK$153,347,000) due to related companies arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary ‘
course of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable |
within credit periods similar to those offered by the related companies to their major customers. i

Certain of the Group’s bills payables are secured by mortgages over certain of the Group’s |
bank balances with an aggregate amount of HK$28,299,000 (2004: Nil) {(note 22(c)).

42. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Accruals 295,874 212,275 47,081 47,244
Other liabilities 1,257,348 1,104,018 42,013 5,170
Due to holding companies 30 - 13,415 - 12,969
Due to fellow subsidiaries 30 8,523 8,523 8,523 8,523
Due to related companies 30 277,672 206,050 - -

1,839,417 1,544,281 97,617 73,906
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43. TAXES PAYABLE

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Income/profits tax 170,427 195,635 - -
Consumption tax 77,370 64,262 - -
Value-added tax 96,580 85,605 - -
Business tax 9,385 9,761 - -
Others 41,370 13,106 9,646 2,124
395,132 368,369 9,646 9,124
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired during the
year as at their respective dates of acquisition, which have no significant differences from their

respective carrying amounts, is as follows:

LOX Yanjing 2005 2004
Tourism Huiguan Others Total Total
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note (i)} (note (ii)) (note (iii))
Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and
equipment 14 45,917 903,995 72 949,984 354,630
Prepaid land premiums 16 3,351 16,430 - 19,781 74,368
Operating concession 18 47,596 - - 47,596 -
Non-current other receivables - 1,433 - 1,433 -
Available-for-sale financial assets - 4,375 - 4,375 282
Deferred tax assets 40 - - - - 4,138
Inventories 813 117,509 25 118,347 110,374
Trade and bills receivables - 15,191 9 15,200 16,228
Other receivables 3,302 19,531 10,007 32,840 25,903
Cash and bank balances 14,944 55,122 6,850 76,916 337,927
Trade and bills payables - {59,836) - {59,836) {106,609)
Accruals and other liabilities (24,189) (47,743) (2,813) (74,745) (243,948)
Taxes payable (372) 2,771) - (3,143) (3,679)
Bank and other borrowings (5,769) (143,468) - (149,237) (71,879)
Deferred tax liabilities 40 (382) - - (382) -
Minority interests (20,104) (430,147) {7,633) (457,884) (69,389)
Net assets 65,107 449,621 6,517 521,245 428,346
Goodwill arising on acquisition 17 - 1,544 7,372 8,916 27,052
Goodwill reclassified from
interests in jointly-controlled
entities - - - - 20,404
Excess over the cost of
a business combination
recognised as income - - - - (5,738)
65,107 451,165 13,889 530,161 470,064
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Lax Yanjing 2005 2004

Tourism Huiquan Others Total Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
{note (i) {note (i) {note {jif)

Satisfied by:
Cash - 125,013 3,849 128,862 196,615
Costs associated with the
acquisition - - 425 425 4,062

Reclassification to interests

in subsidiaries from interests

in jointly-controlled entities 65,107 - - 65,107 269,387
Reclassification to

interests in subsidiaries

from interests in associates - 326,152 - 326,152 -
Promissory note = - 9,615 9,615 -
65,107 451,165 13,889 530,161 470,064

Profit for the year since

acquisition =+ 9,585* 198 9,783 27,876

* The amounts disclosed above only included the profit for the year attributable to the additional interest

acquired by the Group during the year.
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition

of subsidiaries is as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

LoX Yanjing 2005 2004
Tourism Huiquan Others Total Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
{note (a)) {note (b)) (note (c})
Cash and bank balances acquired 14,944 55,122 6,850 76,916 337,927
Cash paid for costs associated with
the acquisition and cash consideration
payable arising from acquisitions
in the current year - (125,013) (4,274) {129,287) (200,677)
Cash consideration payable arising from
acquisitions in previous year - - (86,670} (86,670) -
Investment deposit paid at beginning
of year - note 29(b)(i) - 61,715 - 61,715 -
Outstanding payable at end of year - - - - 86,670
Net inflow/{outflow) of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the
acquisition of subsidiaries 14,944 (8,176) (84,094) (77,326) 223,920

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Details of the acquisition of LOX Tourism are set out in note 52(b){iv) to the financial statements.

On 25 March 2005, Yanjing Brewery acquired an additional 14.2244% equity interest in Yanjing Huiquan, a
then associate of the Group before the acquisition, for a cash consideration of RMB131,575,700 (approximately
HK$125,013,000) from other five ex-shareholders of Yanjing Huiquan. Yanjing Huiquan is principally engaged
in the production and sale of beer in Mainland China and the domestic A shares of which are listed on the

Shanghai Stock Exchange. Upon completion of the acquisition, Yanjing Brewery has a 52.3724% equity interest

in Yanjing Huiquan and Yanjing Huiquan became a subsidiary of the Group.

Others

(i On 1 January 2005, Beijing Development acquired a 51% equity interest in Beijing Boda from

independent third parties for a cash consideration of approximately HK$3,849,000.

(i) On 7 December 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xteam acquired 51% in Asren Holdings Limited
{(“Asren”) from independent third parties. The purchase consideration for the acquisition of Asren was
in the form of 84,134,616 new shares of Xteam at the market price of HK$0.058 per share of Xteam on
7 December 2005 and a promissory note amounting to HK$%,615,000 issued by the wholly-owned

subsidiary of Xteam to Asren.

n
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Had the above business combinations taken place on 1 January 2005, the profit for the year of
the Group and the profit for the year from continuing operations of the Group would have
been HK$714,196,000 and HK$634,209,000, respectively, and the revenue (comprising turnover,
interest income, other revenue and gains, net) for the year of the Group and revenue for the
year from continuing operations of the Group would both have been HK$11,684,491,000.

45. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment 14 18,231 88,335
Prepaid land premiums 16 - 5,059
Available-for-sale financial assets 15 3,860
Inventories 3,441 96,760
Trade and bills receivakles 7,371 2,503
Other receivables 29,468 33,249
Tax recoverable 107 -
Cash and bank balances 24,751 46,154
Trade and bills payables (989) (55,981)
Accruals and other liabilities (32,053) (92,768)
Taxes payable (180) (12,796)
Bank and other borrowings - (32,973)
Minority interests (6,287) (43,148)
Assets of a disposal group held for sale 10(b) 1,304,733 -
Liabilities directly associated ‘
with assets of a disposal
group held for sale 10(b) {493,795) -
Assets and liabilities of a disposal group
attributable to minority interests (355,099) -
Net assets 499,714 38,254
Exchange fluctuation reserve realised (4,932) -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries, net 5 81,097 (6,433)
575,879 31,821
Satisfied by cash consideration, at fair value 547,976 31,821
Reclassification to available-for-sale financial assets
form interests in subsidiaries 27,903 -

575,879 31,821
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45. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

46.

An analysis of the net inflow/outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of

subsidiaries is as follows:

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash and bank balances disposed of (24,751) (46,154)
Cash and cash equivalent attributable to
the discontinued operation — note 10(b) (134,597) -
Cash consideration, at fair value 547,976 31,821
increase in fair value of cash consideration
arising from the passage of time 11,590 -
Amortised cost of outstanding cash
consideration at end of year (319,543) -
Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposa!l of subsidiaries 80,675 (14,333)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

Save as disclosed in notes 38 and 44(c)(ii) to the financial statements, there are no other
major non-cash transactions of investing and financing activities for the year ended
31 December 2005.

In respect of the cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2004, on 16 August 2004,
Prime Technology Group Limited ("PTG") and E-tron Limited (“E-tron”), wholly owned
subsidiaries of Beijing Development, transferred the entire issued share capital of Wisdom
Elite Holdings Limited (“Wisdom Elite”, the holding company of VST Software, which is
engaged in the development of software) and 51% of the issued share capital of Astoria
Innovations Limited, respectively, to Xteam and 1,897,546,070 and 217,967,375 ordinary
shares of Xteam were issued to PTG and E-tron, respectively, as consideration for the
transactions. Upon completion of the transactions, Beijing Development held an
approximately 56.3% interest in Xteam and Xteam became a subsidiary of the Group.
Apart from the foregoing and save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements,
there were no other major non-cash transactions of investing and financing activities for
that year.

OO
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46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)

(b) Restricted cash and cash equivalent balances

Short term pledged bank balances of HK$4,377,000 (2004: HK$23,785,000) were pledged
to banks to secure certain short term bank loans (note 37 (d)(ii)).

Short term pledged bank balances of HK$1,750,000 (2004: Nil) and long term pledged
bank balances of HK$26,549,000 (2004: Nil) were pledged to secure certain trade finance
facilities granted tc the Group (note 41).

Short term pledged bank balances of HK$9,430,000 (2004: HK$21,383,000) and long
term pledged bank balances of HK$8,135,000 (2004: HK$8,743,000) and were pledged
to banks as security for mortgage loans granted to certain purchasers of the Group's
properties held for sale.

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank loans, convertible bonds, cash and

short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the

Group's operations. The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade and bills

receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks, foreign currency risk, commodity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board
of directors meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group's
exposure to these risks. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum, the Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised as follows:

(i)  Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks.
The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's long term debt obligations.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks (continued)

Bank loans, convertible bonds, cash and short term deposits are stated at amortised cost
and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and expenses are
charged to the income statement as incurred.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As a result of significant investment
operations in Mainland China, the PRC, the Group's balance sheet can be affected
significantly by movements in the RMB/HK$ exchange rate.

The Group's revenue is predominately in RMB and certain portion of the bank loans is
denominated in US$. As both US$ and HK$ are pegged to RMB, the Group does not
expect any significant movements in the RMB/HK$ exchange rate.

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure which arises from sales or

purchases by an operating unit in currencies other than the unit's measurement currency.

Commodity price risk
The Group's exposure to commodity price risk is minimal.

Credit risk

The Group is predominately engaged in cash income businesses like toll road, water
treatment, brewery sales and retail. Accordingly, the Group has very high debtor turnover
rate and low credit risk.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between the continuity of funding and the
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and convertible bonds. In
addition, banking facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes.

1WAV
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair values

The following table sets out a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of
the Group’s financial instruments that are carried in the financial statements at other than fair
values,

Carrying amount Fair value
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

Financial assets:
Non-current trade and

bills receivables 33,202 69,310 32,965 68,815

. Non-current other receivables 313,782 176,881 313,642 175,517
Non-current pledged bank

balances 34,684 8,743 33,542 8,548

Financial liabilities:
Non-current bank and
other borrowings:

Floating rate borrowing

(note (iii)) - 1,407,636 - 1,407,636
Fixed rate borrowings '
{(note (iv)) 279,773 178,868 278,456 177,496
Interest-free borrowings
(note (v)) 93,538 181,369 93,538 110,832
Convertible bonds 548,785 587,424 568,706 663,730
Other long term liabilities
{(excluding deferred income) 17,123 8,466 16,218 8,039

() The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities which are due to receive or settle
within one year are reasonable approximation of their respective fair value, and accordingly,
no disclosure of the fair values of these financial instruments is made. In addition, as
disclosed in note 23(a) to the financial statements, certain available-for-sale financial
assets of the Group are not stated at fair value but at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses because fair values of which cannot be reasonably assessed and therefore no
disclosure of the fair values of these financial instruments is made.

(i)~ The fair values of these financial instruments have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

(i)  The balance as at 31 December 2004 mainly represented the syndicated loan of US$180
million borrowed by the Company which is due for repayment in 2006 {note 37(a)). The
outstanding portion of the syndicated loan of US$70 million as at 31 December 2005 is
included in current liabilities in the balance sheet.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair values (continued)

(iv) The balance as at 31 December 2004 comprised bank and other borrowings of
HK$116,129,000 and HK$62,739,000 attributable to continuing operations and the
discontinued operation, respectively.

(v}  The balance as at 31 December 2005 represented an interest-free loan of HK$93,538,000
obtained by the Group from a joint venture partner of a subsidiary and is repayable
within 20 years.

Interest rate risk
The following tables set out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Group's financial instruments
as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 that are exposed to interest rate risk:

At 31 December 2005

More than  More than  More than  More than

1 year but 2 years but 3 years but 4 years but Effective
Within  lessthan  lessthan  lessthan  less than More than interest
fyear  2years  3years  dyears  Syears 5 years Total rate
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  RK$'000  HK$'000 % l
Floating rate:
Pledged bank balances 15,557 34,684 - - - - 50,241 0.92
Cash and cash equivalents 2,926,467 - - - - - 2,926,467 097
Bank and other barrowings {672,843) - - - - - (672,843) 495
Fixed rate:
Cash and cash equivalents 581,588 - - - - - 581,588 1.36 i
Bank and other borrowings (1,826,443)  (33151) (227,572)  (1479)  (1.511) (16,060 (2,106,216) 5.05 1

Convertible bonds - (548,785) - - - - [548,785) 1.20
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
At 31 December 2004

More than More than More than More than

1 year but 2 years but 3 years but 4 years but Effective
Within  less than  less than  less than  less than More than interest
Tyear  2years  Jyears  4years  Syears 5 years Total rate
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 %
Floating rate:
Pledged bank belances {note {i) 45324 8,743 - - - - 54,067 0.72
Cash and cash equivalents {note (i)} 3,112,259 - - - - - 3,112,259 0.69
Bank and other borrowings (58,750) (1,401,758} (936) (964) (994) (2,984) (1,466,386} 3.03
Fixed rate:
Cash and cash equivalents (note (i)} 1,163,802 - - - - - 1,163,802 1.39
Bank and other borrowings (note {iii}) (2,206,049)  (33972)  (93718)  (32,511) (1,464) (17,203} (2,384,917) 4.96
Convertible bonds - - {587,424) - - - {587,424) 1.20
Notes:

o The balance comprised pledged bank balances of HK$53,911,000 and HK$156,000 attributable to continuing
operations and the discontinued operation, respectively.

(i) The balance comprised cash and cash equivalents of HK$4,141,464,000 and HK$134,597,000 attributable to
continuing operations and the discontinued operation, respectively.

(iii) The balance comprised bank and other borrowings of HK$3,589,022,000 and HK$262,281,000 attributable to

continuing operations and the discontinued operation, respectively.
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49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

Group ‘ Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

Guarantees given in respect of |
mortgage loans granted
by banks to the Group's
purchasers of properties
held for sale 17,567 30,032 ~ -
Guarantee given for banking 1
facilities granted to |
a jointly-controlied entity 43,846 - 43,846 -
Guarantee given for the Convertible ‘
Bonds issued by Yanjing |
Brewery - note 38 - - 548,785 587,424

61,413 30,032 592,631 587,424

At 31 December 2005, the banking facilities granted to a jointly-controlled entity subject to a
guarantee given to a bank by the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately |
HK$32,885,000. |
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50. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (as included in note 15 to the financial
statements) under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for original
terms ranging from 1 to 24 years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants

to pay security deposits.

At 31 December 2005, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Within one year 27,683 13,628
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 67,868 74,050
After five years 35,491 34,703
131,042 122,381

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties, department store premises, restaurant
premises and staff quarters under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
with original terms ranging from 1 to 50 years.

At 31 December 2005, the Group and the Company had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Within one year 185,789 210,652 2,912 619
In the second to fifth years,

in¢lusive 644,481 999,102 3,883 -
After five years 2,300,509 1,795,164 - -

3,130,779 3,004,918 6,795 619
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51. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the balance sheet date:

Group ‘ Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Buildings:
Contracted, but not provided for 56,413 118,321 -~ -
Plant and machinery:
Contracted, but not provided for 91,608 109,915 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries and
capital contribution to
a jointly-controlled entity:
Contracted, but not provided for - 265,842 - -
Purchases of available-for-sale
financial assets:
Contracted, but not provided for 83,582 ' - 51,435 -

Total capital commitments 231,603 494,078 51,435 -

170
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions with related parties during the

year:
2005 2004
Name of related party Nature of transaction Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
The ultimate holding
company
BHL and its associates Rental income (i) 1,118 2,675
Rental and related expenses (i) 1,340 3,012
Joint venture partners of
subsidiaries and their
associates
Yanjing Beer Group Purchase of bottle labels (i) 61,072 65,707
and its associates Purchase of bottle caps {if) 54,778 46,574
Import of raw materials (iii) 367,472 293,351
Sale of beer (iv) 9,299 10,504
Canning service fees paid (v) - 20,21 18,498
Comprehensive support
service fees paid {vi) 14,770 14,644
Land rent expenses (vii} 1,657 1,742
Trademark licensing fees paid {viii) 16,996 20,197
Less: Refund for advertising subsidies  (viii) (2,986) (3,566)
BATEEEEES Acquisition of a 27.56% equity
EEZEE interest in Yanjing Baotou (ix) - 37,992

(Baotou State-Owned Asset
Supervision Management
Commission)
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) (continued)

2005 2004
Name of related party Nature of transaction Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FEEEEEERNA Sale of a 67% equity interest in (x) - 9,782
("Chengde Agriculture”)  BRBEAEERETLF
(Yanjing Chengde Sihai Co., Ltd.)
("Yanjing Chengde”)
San Yuan Group and Purchase of raw milk {xf} - 138,237
its associates Land use fee paid (xii) - 3,024
Sale of a hotel {xii) ' - 4,720
TRESREERLT Sale of a 35% equity interest in (xiv) - 16,104
(Beijing Jia Ming TR AREEHEREERAT
Investment Company (Beijing San Yuan Jia Ming Property
Limited) Development Company Limited) i
("Sanyuan Jia Ming")
China Major Holdings Acquisition of a 51% equity interest in~ (xv) - 1,209
Limited Ever Hot Pumps
Jointly-controlled entity
Beijing McDonald’s Sale of dairy products (iv) - 71,111
Food Co., Ltd.
Key management personnel
of subsidiaries
Mr. Xu Seng Heng Acquisition of a licence {xvi) - 12,000
Director-controlled entity
TRIRAEZER Compensation income {xvii) 24,703 -
BREERA
(Beijing Wangfujing
Dongan Group Company

Limited) ("WFJ Dongan”)

In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions were entered into by the Group in

the normal course of business.
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

0

{ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

The rentals were determined by reference to the prevailing open market rentals at the time when the

lease agreements were entered into.

The purchase prices for bottle labels and bottle caps were determined by reference to the agreed
prices for the preceding year and an annual adjustment determined by reference to the price index in

Beijing in the preceding year.

The import of certain raw materials for the Group's brewery operations were procured by Yanjing Beer
Group from overseas suppliers on behalf of Yanjing Brewery and its subsidiaries as the Group's
brewery operations do not have the licence to import commeodities from overseas suppliers. The
purchase prices for the raw materials were charged at rates equal to the costs incurred by Yanjing Beer
Group.

The selling prices of the beer and dairy products were determined by reference to the then prevailing

market rates.

The canning service fees were charged at a rate equal to the costs of the canning services incurred by

Yanjing Beer Group plus a mutually agreed profit margin.
The comprehensive support service fees paid included the following:

- fees for security and canteen services which were determined based on the annual cost of
labour, depreciation and maintenance for the preceding year and an annual adjustment by

reference to the price index in Beijing; and

- rental expenses, related to the premises occupied and used by Yanjing Brewery as its office,
canteen and staff dormitories, were determined by reference to the prevailing market rentals

at the time when the relevant agreements were entered into.

The land rent expenses were charged at a mutually agreed amount of RMB1,744,000
(2004: RMB1,849,000) per annum.

The trademark licensing fees paid were for the use of the "Yanjing” trademark and were determined
based on 1% of the annual sales of beer and mineral water products made by Yanjing Brewery and
RMBO0.008 per bottle of beer sold by the subsidiaries of Yanjing Brewery. Yanjing Beer Group would

refund 20% of the trademark licensing fees received from Yanjing Brewery to be used by Yanjing

Brewery to develop and promote the "Yanjing” trademark.
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ix)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

The equity interest in Yanjing Baotou was acquired at a mutually agreed amount of RMB40,328,000.

The equity interest in Yanjing Chengde was sold at a price of RMB10,384,000 which was mutually
agreed between the Group and Chengde Agriculture.

The purchase price for raw milk was determined by reference to the then prevailing market rate.

The land use fee was charged at a mutually agreed amount of RMB3,210,000 for the year ended 31
December 2004.

The hotel located in Wuxian, Jiangxu Province, the PRC, was sold at a price of RMB5,010,000 by

reference to the revaluation report prepared by an independent PRC valuer.

The equity interest in Sanyuan Jia Ming, a then subsidiary of the Group, was sold at a mutually agreed
amount of RMB17,094,175.

The equity interest in Ever Hot Pumps was acquired at a mutually agreed amount of US$153,000.
The consideration paid was based on a mutually agreed amount of HK$12,000,000.
The compensation income was based on the loss suffered by the Group as a result of the reduction in

operating size of a department store as requested by WFJ Dongan, a related company in which the

legal representative is a director of the Company.

Other transactions with related parties

(i)

Yanjing Beer Group has undertaken to indemnify the Group for an amount of
HK$2,700,000 (2004: HK$19,500,000) which is equivalent to the net impact to the
Group's profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company as a result
of the corporate income tax of Yanjing Brewery and certain of its subsidiaries
being in excess of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2005. The indemnification,
which would be executed if the relevant tax payment is required to be made by
Yanjing Brewery, was recognised by the Group in the current year to match with
the corporate income tax charge of Yanjing Brewery accrued by the Group.
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties (continued)

(i) In January 2005, the Company disposed of all its equity interest in BE Dairy to BHL
and San Yuan Group for a total cash consideration of RMB561,013,000, pursuant
to two separate equity transfer agreements entered into by the Company with
each of BHL and San Yuan Group on 3 December 2004 and the resolution of the
shareholders of the Company approving the transactions at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 7 January 2005. Further details of the transactions are set out in

note 10 to the financial statements.

(i) On 30 April 2005, the Group and WFJ Dongan established M EFHEREET LD
&) (Xuzhou Wangfujing Co., Limited) (“Xuzhou WFJ") with respective equity interests
of 10% and 90%, respectively. Xuzhou WFJ has a registered capital of RMB20
million and is engaged in the operation of a department store in Xu Zhou, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC.

(iv)  Pursuant to an equity transfer and share repurchase agreement entered into between
the Company, Magic Melody Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Beijing Tourism Development Company Limited ("BTDC", a then jointly-
controlled entity owned indirectly as to 32.86% by the Company) on 2 September
2005, BTDC repurchased all of its shares held by Magic Melody Limited, and 100%
equity interest in Space Express Limited held by BTDC was transferred to Magic
Melody Limited as consideration for the share repurchase. Upon completion of the

share repurchase, the Group no longer holds any equity interest in BTDC, and
Space Express became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Space Express Limited is an investment holding company and the major assets of
which at date of completion of the share repurchase included 75% equity interests
in each of Beijing Badaling Tourism Co., Ltd. (“Badaling Tourism”, which were
disposed of during the year (see paragraph (v) below)) and LOX Tourism, which are
engaged in the provision of tourism services in Badaling Great Wall and Longgingxia,
scenic areas in Beijing, the PRC, respectively.
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties (continued)

(v)  In October 2005, the Company disposed of its 63.75% equity interest in Beijing
Maglev to Canfort Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BHL and a
fellow subsidiary of the Company, for a cash consideration of RMB38,190,000
(approximately HK$36,721,000), pursuant to an equity transfer agreement (the
"Maglev Agreement”) entered into between the two parties on 6 September 2005.
Beijing Maglev is a Sino-foreign joint venture established in the PRC and principally
engaged in the research and development of magnetic levitation technology and
provision of related services. In accordance with the Maglev Agreement, the cash
consideration of RMB38,190,000 is to be settled by three instalments with the first |
and second instalments of RMB11,457,000 each and the final instalment of |
RMB15,276,000 being due on é September 2005, 31 December 2006 and (
31 December 2007, respectively. The first instalment of RMB11,457,000 had been
settled as at 31 December 2005.

In addition, Space Express Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
disposed of all of its 100% equity interest in BE Tourism to Beijing Holdings (BVI)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BHL and an intermediate holding company
of the Company, in October 2005 for a cash consideration of RMB336,835,000
(approximately HK$323,880,000), pursuant to an equity transfer agreement (the
“BE Tourism Agreement”) entered into between the two parties on 6 September
2005. BE Tourism is an investment holding company and the major asset of which

is a 75% equity interest in Badaling Tourism, which is a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC and principally engaged in the operations of tourism
businesses in Badaling Great Wall, a scenic area in Beijing, the PRC and a hotel in
Yanging County, Beijing, the PRC, and the holding of a 36.25% equity interest in
Beijing Maglev. In accordance with the BE Tourism Agreement, the cash
consideration of RMB336,835,000 is to be settled by three instalments with the
first and second instalments of RMB101,050,500 each and the final instalment of
RMB134,734,000 being due on 6 September 2005, 31 December 2006 and
31 December 2007, respectively. The first instalment of RMB101,050,500 had been
settled as at 31 December 2005.

The two transactions were duly approved by shareholders at an extraordinary
general meeting of shareholders of the Company held on 17 October 2005.

Loss on disposal of interest in Beijing Maglev and gain on disposal of interest in
Badaling Tourism amounted to HK$9,499,000 and HK$111,478,000, respectively,
which had been recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2005.
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Transactions vyith other state-owned enterprises in the PRC:

BHL, the Compainy’s sltimate holding company, is controlled by the Beijing Government
and is a PRC state-owned enterprise. The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by PRC state-owned enterprises. During the year, other than BHL and
certain of its subsidiaries, the Group had transactions with certain other PRC state-
owned enterprises (the “Other SOEs") including, but not limited to, the sale of finished
goods and purchases of raw materials. The directors consider that the transactions with
the Other SOEs are activities in the ordinary course of the Group's business, and that the
dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the
Group and the Other SOEs are ultimately controlled or owned by the PRC government.
The Group has also established pricing policies for products and such pricing policies do
not depend on whether or not the customers are Other SOEs. Having due regard to the
substance of the relationships, the directors are of the opinion that none of these
transactions are material related party transactions that require separate disclosure.

Outstanding balances with related parties

{0 Details of the Group’s balances with related parties included in deposits and other
debtors and trade and bills payables are disclosed in notes 29 and 41 to the
financial statements, respectively.

(ii) Details of the balances with jointly-controlled entities, associates, holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries and related companies are disclosed in notes 20, 21 and 30 to
the financial statements.

(i)  Details of the guarantees given by related parties in respect of the Group’s bank
and other borrowings and the Convertible Bonds issued by Yanjing Brewery are
disclosed in notes 37 and 38 to the financial statements, respectively.

(iv)  Details of the guarantee given by the Group for banking facilities granted to a
jointly-controlled entity are disclosed in note 49 to the financial statements.
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000

Short term employee benefits 7,484 9.771
Post-employment benefits 347 354
Termination benefits - -
Share-based payments - -
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 7,831 10,125

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial statements.
53. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the following significant events occurred:

(i) In February 2006, BioSino, an associate of the Company, completed a placing of

33,000,000 ordinary H shares of RMB1 each in total, comprising 30,000,000 new H shares
and 3,000,000 H shares converted from old domestic shares of BioSino, at a placing

price of HK$2.0 per H share and these H shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange since 27 February 2006. Upon completion of the placing,
the Group's interest in BioSino was diluted from 34.29% to 24.01% and the financial
impact of which to the Group is not material.

(i) On 24 March 2006, two agreements were entered into between Yanjing Brewery and
Yanjing Beer Group, pursuant to which Yanjing Brewery will transfer two investments and |
a receivable to Yanjing Beer Group at their then aggregate carrying amount of RMB42.6
million.
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53. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE (continued)

(iii)

On 31 March 2006, the Company and Yanjing Brewery announced that, pursuant to the
relevant rules and regulations issued by the government authorities of the PRC, including
“Certain opinions on Further Reform, Liquidity and Stable Development of the Capital
Market" (BREEERTHRNERHANBEZRAETER), "The Guidelines on Share
Reform Proposals of Listed Companies” (R LT ARIRESEXRENEEER) and
“Provisions on Management of Share Reform Proposals of Listed Companies” (_£ 1 2 8]
REDBEWRFEEEPE), a share reform plan on Yanjing Brewery has been initiated by
the two shareholders of the non-tradable shares of Yanjing Brewery, namely Yanjing Beer
Group and Beijing Yan Jing Brewery Co., Ltd. ("Yanjing Limited”), a 80% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Yanjing Brewery is a joint stock company established under
the laws of the PRC and the domestic A shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

Pursuant to the circular on the share reform plan issued by Yanjing Brewery on 31 March
2006, both Yanjing Beer Group and Yanjing Limited proposed to offer 2.1 non-tradable
shares of Yanjing Brewery to each shareholder of the tradable shares of Yanjing Brewery
on the register of members of Yanjing Brewery on a share registration date that has yet
to be determined, for every 10 tradable shares of Yanjing Brewery held by each of them
as a consideration for these shareholders to agree the non-tradable shares of Yanjing
Brewery to become tradable. If the share reform plan is fully implemented, the total
issued share capital of Yanjing Brewery will comprise 100% tradable shares.

As at the date of the approval of these financial statements, the terms of the share
reform plan have not yet been agreed amongst the shareholders of Yanjing Brewery.

Since the terms of the share reform plan are subject to change and finalisation, and they
do not constitute an offer and are not legally binding, in the opinion of the directors, it is
not appropriate to disclose the financial impact of this share reform plan to the Group at
this stage.
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53. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE (continued)

(iv)  On 31 March 2006, Investment Management and 1t X1 R ¥ 2835 E EE F 0 (Beijing
Jing Lian Fa Investment Management Centre) (“Jing Lian Fa”), both are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a share transfer agreement with Beijing
Enterprises Group Holdings Limited (“BE Group”, a PRC company wholly-owned by the
Beijing Municipal Government), pursuant to which, Investment Management and Jing
Lian Fa have conditionally agreed to sell their respective entire 49.52% and 0.61% equity
interests in Wangfujing to BE Group for an aggregate consideration of RMB1 billion.
Upon completion of the transaction, the Group will no longer hold any interest in
Wangfujing. As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the approval of the
transaction by shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting has yet |
to be obtained.

As the Group's retail operation, being a major separate business segment of the Group,
is solely undertaken by Wangfujing, such operation would be discontinued afterwards. |

Since the share transfer agreement was effected shortly before the date of approval of
these financial statements, the audit of the estimated financial impact of this transaction
to the Group cannot be completed and accordingly, no disclosure of the financial impact
to the Group has been made.

54. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS !

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's
presentation.

55. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
11 April 2006.




| FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY |
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and total equity of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the current year's published audited financial statements and
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2004, is set out below.

RESULTS
Year ended 31 December

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TURNOVER
Continued operations 5,280,052 5,963,550 6,966,336 8,779,956 11,000,613
Discontinued operation 947,230 1,048,148 1,003,811 885,684 -
- 6,227,282 7,011,698 7,970,147 9,665,640 11,000,613
Operating profit 683,058 666,655 775,442 786,601 894,994

Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly-controlled entities 2,083 2,835 12,959 56,453 (26,892)
Associates 168,335 38,053 33,356 51,175 21,793

Amortisation of goodwill

arising on acquisition of

jointly-controlled entities (681) (4,699) (4,699) - -
Profit before tax 852,795 702,844 817,058 894,229 889,895
Tax (129,508) (211,405) (189,361) (229,469) (175,086)
Profit/(loss) for the year

Continuing operations 639,349 389,082 635,482 785,606 634,822

Discontinued operation 83,938 102,357 (7,785) (120,846) 79,987

723,287 491,439 627,697 664,760 714,809

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the

Company:
Continuing operations 508,262 329,313 449,204 571,892 490,435
Discontinued operation 62,329 74,198 841 (68,704) 79,987
570,591 403,511 450,045 503,188 570,422
Minority interests 152,696 87,928 177,652 161,572 144,387

723,287 491,439 627,697 664,760 714,809
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY

31 December
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Total assets 16,516,634 17,366,191 18,105,664 19,389,590 19,630,268
Total liabilities (6,316,132) (7,005,904) (7,014,118) (7,788,393) (7,123,275)
NET ASSETS 10,200,502 10,360,287 11,091,546 11,601,197 12,506,993

REPRESENTED BY:

Equity attributable to |
shareholders of
the Company 7,026,105 7,260,314 7,546,138 7,881,098 8,442,941
Minority interests 3,174,397 3,099,973 3,545,408 3,720,099 4,064,052

TOTAL EQUITY 10,200,502 10,360,287 11,091,546 11,601,197 12,506,993
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Details of the Group’s major investment properties, properties under development and properties

held for sale are as follows:
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Percentage
of interest in
property attributable

Location to the Group Use Lease terms
Level 6, Levels 8 to 12 100 Commercial Medium

and Levels 17 to 19 term lease
Scriven Tower Phase Il 28/12/2043
24 Jian Guo Men Wai Avenue

Dongcheng District

Beijing

The PRC

Flat A, 23/F, Tower 2 100 Residential Medium

The Floridian term lease
No. 18 Sai Wan Terrace 18/12/2033
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

The PRC

Part of the second floor and 47.71 Office building Medium

the whole of the third floor term lease
A No. 1 Jian Guo Men Wai Avenue 15/12/2043
Chaoyang District

Beijing

The PRC

The Beijing Enterprises 98.09 Commercial Medium
Hi-Tech Tower term lease
Block No.2 of 10 Bai Fu Chuan Road 26/11/2052

Changping District
Beijing
The PRC
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Percentage
of interest in
property attributable

Location to the Group Use Lease terms

Flat F, 7/F, Kin On Mansion 100 Residential Long

Taikoo Shing term lease

Hong Kong 18/4/2899 i

The PRC 1
|

Flat F, 9/F, Kin On Mansion 100 Residential Long

Taikoo Shing term lease

Hong Kong 18/4/2899

The PRC

Unit 1010-1012 100 Commercial Long

10/F West Tower term lease

Shun Tak Centre 31/12/2130

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

The PRC

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Percentage

Percentage Expected  of interest

Gross of date of attributable

Location ' Expected use Site area  floor area  completion  completion to the Group
5q. metre $q. metre

Block 7 Residential 3,008 32,670 70 2006 50

Wan Bo Yuan Small District
72 You An Men Nei Avenue
Xuanwu District

Beijing

The PRC
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Percentage
of interest in

property

Gross attributable
Location Use floor area  to the Group
(sg. metres)
Wan Bo Yuan Small District Residential 148,000 50
72 You An Men Nei Avenue
Xuanwu District
Beijing
The PRC
Chaofeng Villas Residential 19,100 50
South of Shisanling Reservoir
Changping County
Beijing
The PRC
Lorry car park nos. 13, 16-24, 29 Industrial 270 55.81

And container space no. 30 on the ground floor
Hong Kong Worsted Mills Industrial Building
31-39 Wo Tong Tsui Street, Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong

The PRC
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65,107 451,165 13,889 530,161 470,064
BRERZERTEEELZET —+ 9,585 198 9,783 27,876 |

* R RE R EREFANRBAEENB BRI ERETR
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44. XS 6

FRRBHNBLARZABRNEERRBEZATFE REEMBERAREEYRERER FIR

3 -

mF

“8%1f C"TTME
EBERKE HRAER it 28 ey
Brax TERL FAERT FART TR TET
(Hsx) (Brazii)  (BFaEdin)
BAZEERE:

EN = 14 45,917 903,995 72 949,984 354,630
‘ EftmEe 16 3,351 16,430 - 19,781 74,368
- RITEEE 18 47,596 - - 47,596 -
i ERBELERRE - 1,433 - 1,433 -
i THEENHEE - 4,375 - 4,375 28
\ g EEHELE 40 - - - - 4,138
H FE 813 117,509 25 118,347 110,374
i ERESEERENES - 15191 9 15200 16,228
o Hib R 3,302 19,531 10,007 32,840 25,903
BeRBITES 14,944 55,122 6,850 76,916 337,927
ERNESREERENRR - (59,836) - (59.836) (106,609
B BERAMAR (24,189) (47,743) (2,813) (74,745)  (243,948)
EHEBE (372) (2,771) - (3,143) (3,679)
ROKEREE (5769)  (143,468) - (149,237) (71,879)
ERBEEE 40 (382) - - (382) -
CERFERER (20,104)  (430,147) (7,633)  (457,884) (69,389)
BEFE 65,107 449,621 6,517 521,245 428,346
WEREE2ER 17 - 1,544 7,372 8,916 27,052

HEBRYUABIZEREN
PEELCEE - - - - 20,404
BRARAZEBE RN TRE - - - - (5,738)
65,107 451,165 13,889 530,161 470,064
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43. EHNIF
TxEW | b N

—EBRE —ZENE ZBEfFE —TEENOF

FE T FHEIT FHExT FET

FR5E,/ FIBR 170,427 195,635 - -

=E- & 77,370 64,262 - -

HE 96,580 85,605 - -

CER 9,385 9,761 - -

EAth 41,370 13,106 9,646 9,124

395,132 368,369 9,646 9,124
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41. BRRAGEREEARE

AEEZENESRERENEENEERREZESHE ZRES AT

TE®

—28RE ZTTWNE

FExT FET

—F R 1,120,017 724,357
—ERE 25,677 18,703
MEZ& 7,313 8,141
=F k- 12,548 14,581
1,165,555 765,782

FREZENESRENENEEEERAEEEREERBREPETRBAESE 5%195,132,000
AT (ZFFMF:153,347,000870) 2 ENEEQETFIE-ZEEHRBEAR 2R RANEH
BRARMETEEPRERIEEEEHRNER-

TEBETERNEERAEE B THRITHESIEFER 2% 528,299,0008 T (ZSETWNE &)
(Hi5£22(c)) °

HUBEMARAEREHRAR

TEE b N

—BERE —ZETMOE ZBERE —TTNF

KiaE FET FET FHER FET

FEETEBE 295,874 212,275 47,081 47,244
HEwaE 1,257,348 1,104,018 42,013 5,170
ERIER A SIFRIE 30 - 13,415 - 12,969
FETR 2R B B 5B 30 8,523 8,523 8,523 8,523
FEMEELNRIFE 30 277,672 206,050 - -

1,839,417 1,544,281 97,617 73,906
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40. SRIERIF (Z)

FEE-—2TNF

B
MBARZ mE
EftE LFEHRE WERE BELEE k)
FET TER FTETL FET TER
R-ZZZERE—-R—B

ZERRBEEE/

(BfE)$E (2,168) (149,114) (1,857) 34,534 (118,605)
WE-RHEBERT - f1i144 - - 4,138 - 4,138
FERFAFBERLZ

RIEFRE - H39 - - 243 12,485 12,728
FENCRIEEE 55— HE10(0) (1,134) 14,158 829 (13,102 751
R-EZTOE

+ZA=+-8B2

ELEREEE/ )

(BfE) 38 (3,302) (134,956) 3,353 33,917 (100,988)
R-IEERFT-_A=T—H BEBAEHBIHIBEIE324,645000E T (ZFFHF 280,777,000
BU)ZBEERBEELNAER RREAZSHEESEELAENESBZEARARETHER
B BEEGERMEF TR EEEZENEBE-

A EERE+-RA=+—B RAEEETHELS BEARNALE QG REL BT MEN

ZREME ARMZESZREEL FRBAVEFIHRAE RAERBRZERNELEHRE
BE(CZEZTOFE E) -

ANBIRAEARRIRGERELEBELEMERER-
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40. BER R

REAEERBERERIEEHREE (RE) FH:

AEMW
—BERE _—_ZTTAF
FET FHET
BEERIEEE 67,772 62,747
EEHBEEE (168,527) (163,735)

(100,755) (100,988)

BEXERAEERBECHKBORENFRAZEDOT:

EEE-—2¥LF
Ly
MEARZ hE
EfYR LTEBEE REFE HEREE BE

TER TR FER TR TER

RIBTZRF—-A—H
JEEHEEE/
(BfE)F%8 (3,302)  (134,956) 3,353 33,917 (100,988)

BE-HHELF

~ ffit44 - - (382) - (382)
ERRFBEREHA/ (NR)

ZERERIE - 79 - - (2,469) 4,940 2,471
ELRE (68) (2,790) 41 961 (1,856)

RZBERAE+-F
ST-BZEERIE
EE/ (8B %8 (3,370)  (137,746) 543 39,818 {100,755)
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38.

39.

RS (&)

AREBEEFREBOZATE RERTHRUES ESREE) ZEERD SN RIEHKE T
BREFBRAFNEAREMSEREE BFUILRESFZASEUFEEBZHHRESE-

HE_ZEEAF A=+ —HLEEE K&#A%HA50,079,000% T (ZFFMF :72,020,000%
O HBRREERTZARRES BETESFHEAUBRARKI1059TRARKE7.067T (A
ZERRRENFABRCLIELAE)  2515465,132EFFHEU (ZTTHF 764,484 1F
HEM) R63020EEFEN (ZETEMF | ERAXRRBE ETBR: EEEN L K27R
BB EMRREREEESL46% (T TMF 54.86%) RARIEL & et 2 £%814,498,000
AL (ZETME 20,715,000870) RENGAFBERFBER-

HttRRHAR
‘ TEE
—BSRF -TTEHE
FET FiET
FELEWA (HFE) 15,559 -
it ' 17,123 8,466
32,682 8,466

iz AREDRETEAEEREN RERENFAREIDMERSSREMAAY YEFANEEABRPTRELRAR-
RERBRSHNAERARED YEFVUHABRBIER ERRAEDEED YRR BERRBZE
AERAFRREEMPRZEERRR N EFERTHEABAMRA- Y EBBZEEM I RBETHRERRA
£E-

S REERETHSER AR I ERE Y REEER BRETEE -ZSEELANEERERZE
EUMARE: RERABEESAN RERLIAESPICRETUED SEFMBARTER.
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37.

38.

HITRAMER (&)
@ ()

RIFRNET-A=Z+—R FAREETRITERTATEERZ R REE 56,500,000
RALZREADREER (HEZ15(c) RAKRERZABEAER1,250,0008 7T 2% THIE
HEZMERBIEER (AF25)

AJRERS

RIBZEZETA+ANE AR5EERBEM4%ZHB LR - RREE AR ERERTFHSF.2
BRRBEESF([AIRKES])) A2 EESAK%700,000000T BEFREERARBI100T

EFEFEATEESUAREFERARIBREZEAREAR RELEAERARE1059
T RFRAEREERTARMARAERARETOL (RETEHE-—TRHERAR) A 2K
BEHFERBHE " EE=F+ A+ AEFTELETA+RE ([EAH]) (BEEEMA) -
B SREFCNFRELD BHBOREH AIRREFINERAERBER T@ R
FEAEERR-

EERBR AR EAEERARENERRUTESE - TRRESNTRREFERES
R30%F LEEERSRARBI2T (RETELFABRR) BO2H XN RBESF 5
—HE ERREENEBEROMUAESE-_TRABERNARBRESNBREENI% KR
ERBESCGERABENROER (RETENFRAERR) BRAARES-

RIZBZE_FEAT-HOBRREINAE L ARFRRLEEFA QDR ERUAREF - BEHRK
RSN RERBEEEQS([RREEEER ) AXRAEALERUEERE BER
RAEZBERBEA AR ERR B ES4L%EFR O R FHBHBENRKABE-
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37. BITRAMER (&)

(a)

(Q)

FEBRAQFZETERBEARNR S —FME 2 AFFEE HE7180,000,000
ET-REERMNEABARTAZFEENEN0.6% UER-ZZTEF~AE+TZHE
BHE-RBZEZE_ZEZEAF+TAZ+—HLEEER AL FIRFEEL £ 110,000,000
ENBH_ZEERIETA=T—BHREEFREB TREELSSER L E70,000,000
ETo

ERMBERRAARTZERAFFTUSERREEEZE TR EFRETIHENE
HEEEFRZEE:

(i) AFETARBFB(TERBF]D)EZEHZALTXEETERABALQR M ETT
RA50% BEmiEm: 3

(i) MMEANARIZERCBFLREFHEEAGTT REXTHEARBEETTEE
HER ERICERERAENER.

MEEAFAN RFRAEMELAMERR 2 ABELR LT AEE-
EMERBRERABEBEEDL T AE9,384,000% T (ZEZTPUE 215,749,000 ) WG B E
HEEA A 8T 2 E221,633,0008 7T ( ZEZE0F 224,658,000 ) B FEHS
EEE (—ETWE 5EEE) T5-

AEENEER ZEKBETERT F188,873,000%5 7T (ZEZ VU4 :185,884,00058 7T )
BASEEFEZETHEBARISABEE 2 BE AR AL —BEBEH AT RE
R

AEEETROTEFRENTES:

(i) UAREERZE D RE#E /275,857,000 T (ZEZTME:519,673,00087T) 28
T BB RESRRBERR (FiE14(0) &

iy AEBNEEBSA54,377,0008T (Z ST WEF:23,7850008 T) 2 & FTHRITE
RIZBEERE (F13222(a)) °
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37. BT R RAMER

TEBE b /N
—RTEF —TENF ZBRIF —TTNF
FER FET FHE T FET
RTBEY - ®2IEE 8,068 - - -
RITE R
2E 543,456 651,869 - -
& I 2,005,902 2,712,495 664,775 1,400,850
2,549,358 3,364,364 664,775 1,400,850
Hib &5 @IiEge 321,017 440,407 - -
RTREMERBE 2,878,443 3,804,771 664,775 1,400,850
BER—FAFIREREE
ZHRITEX 8,068 - - -
ERTIEHEREZFRITERC
—ER 2,335,132 1,936,928 664,775 -
E-F 1,420 1,403,136 - 1,400,850
E-FEEERF
(HEMEREFEERN) 196,746 6,339 - -
hFEiE 16,060 17,961 - -
2,549,358 3,364,364 664,775 1,400,850
BERATHEHEEBZAEMER
— &R 161,932 162,709 - -
F-F 37,577 41,164 - _
EZEEFRE
(BEEMERIEERN) 51,354 92,404 - -
EE® 70,154 144,130 - -
321,017 440,407 - -~
RITREMERERE 2,878,443 3,804,771 664,775 1,400,850
B CVIERBREZE D (2,505,132) (2,099,637) (664,775) -
ERENEH 373,311 1,705,134 - 1,400,850
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36. fEfm
(a) T&HE
() AEBAEERUAEEZHAEREHZDSENRUBRREREEREZEAE
HEHRANZN-

(ii) qﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%*E%%TK%@ZqﬂBﬁ%’&ﬁéﬁﬁﬂ?@%ﬂ’&ﬂ&5%%@573@%243
DNEVERRIAERELECEFBE AR -FEER _BFAE+RA=+—82Z
FEEBEEYENREREZ A DK

(i) RAGFERBHBLRRMELAMELZHEZETEENEENGRLERHE |
ERBEGE AR EE FEL BN BRRME1I7R21 - !

(b) F2F ]‘
BORESE  REAN wm
M 3T TET FET FHET S

R_ZBEZENFE—F—H 4,839,497 321,128 5,160,625
RE E 5 ) 11 - 383,143 383,143
—TENEFERE 12 - (62,250) (62,250)
ERERE _STTHUERHARE 12 - (124,500) (124,500)

<:§§E$+:HE+—E& g

“EERE-F-8 4,839,497 517,521  5357,018

REEEIE 11 - (111,190) (111,190) |
_EERETEHRERE 12 - (62,250) (62,250)
BREEE _ZTZTRFREBRE 12 - (124,500) (124,500)

R-BZEF+=-A=+-H 4,839,497 219,581 5,059,078
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35. MRt E (2)

GRFL (B)

(b)

BRI E ()
EREATRESRELBRESEE T - RARINRBUERBE X 1BTEALES-
REBEREZTESRERTAEENERT INERERRARILRERBEHEHR

e

BREZTEERARTEESEET BTTERTHRSZ (FRTEEERNESRR
HERESHEBXAARIETE RMERFEEERNEZZRREHEREDHA
LERSEERIFIABFHRTE-
BEREYRBRTHEABRBREIARBEERGLEREZER -

REE-ZEERFT_R=1T-EBULFERN BEHRIEHERLZEREED U T:

BREZE
R-BZAHE
R-ZBERE +=A
BEEER —BA—B8B ERRW =+-—8
HiES:
B (M) 30,000,000 (16,500,000) 13,500,000
B REHEA:
A&t (M) 33,000,000 - 33,000,000

63,000,000 (16,500,000) 46,500,000

K RoERZFA A ThBRLZERTFOERETEEBASROUEBT -BRETR _FE=SF
TZATABEEANERTE HAETE BRESE_F =S+ A+ N\ FRE-ZEEREL
ERAHNHERFATE - ARERTAETRESREENFART AR THEZ 4 £16,500,0001
BRI B

RZZEERE+T_A=+—8 ERFENERICHSEETEASRTEZERRE
46,500,000 EEBERFAEETROL12% M T2 EBRBERETE RRBRER
FREBZRALRE BEHERT & BEEIN1746,500,0000% AR K& 465,000% T EE /N
BEA LARERDEE (MR ERBITHEE) 6,045,0008 T °
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35. MEERHEsIN (&)

BRYE (&)

(a)

(b)

ERRNFIHRFIBRE & (B)

BE_ZTHET A=+ RLFERN RBERTYEALCARBRAMEARL ZER
EEIHMT:

BEEBEREHSE
R-ZEERE
R-ZZHE +=A
SRERF —B—8H ERREK =+-—8H
HiES:
25 (B s 80,000,000 (30,000,000) 50,000,000
Wit RoEE~F+- A+ HARLrBRETEEATRERTARG0266ET - BRETR ST -5

RAT-SREERERTE ROTEIBEREN FEBRERE_S——F+-ATZBEE-R
SRR EATHBMERERTE-ERNERFA—REFRFARE 8% T18230,000,00003 & &
IR UL

RZBERAF+ZRA=Z+— B BRFERERTFEFRNLHERIFEBEL MBI RITE
Z R 550,000,000 HEBZEZBIEERTEBHTRDL1.3% - HERTEEARH
BEFAEETZAHTEREERSTE RRERIFBH 2REAEE BERRERYT
& FEEEHNEE1T50,000,0004% T B A% - NG A A500,00008 T MARMDEE (NBRETHEX
A7) £12,800,0007% 7T

BRIEE

RIZE-E+-AZ+—B GRYERA-EBREAE ([ERFaFTE) ENR
ARERTEEEEBRNELEMZAER2RERUABD L ER - BRY 251824
ERZEEZDEFIRTAZHNTESRINTES RV EEEAZZ2BER BERRE
AABRFEFMEN -TZE—E+—BZ+—BAERN BRISIEEUBREIIN TRINZR
ETERNER-

BREBREFRYATECRELARBRL A EEREETEMRY TETZRNFAE &
ZRERTAEAMAREANEETRHZI0% REEZRLEH LEAT EARER C
RTYREBERTERTFEMTERNBUAERSHEZBREETEMBETRANKERTZ
BROBEARTHEEBERVEINRERTRAAHRZ1%
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35. MERHEE (H) —

LtRBE (&)
B ()

() RIBR=ZE+ A ABHZERETEERERLERERRMI1.0EL -ZEBRETH R EHEHNHT
E-BHMARIFRIFTARECABEANTE MALEARNATERRFESEZ-A-RETE:-
BHARLRER-BEHEXREART R EABBRERIWK-

(d) HRLEFERETEARFEARTE HREERZAMEBRERRK.

A\ZETRE+ZR=A B ARZERERIIERBRHE B M A RITE 2B RIE S28,060,000
EREZB LI RBEBEEEITRON57% MBET ZERERREOTFE RRLFTRERS
B EE ER AL RERTEINETT28,060,0008% T 3B A% - E BB HMR A 428,060,000 7T+ M
DEE (HBRBITHZAT) A1,035000/# Te

oK

(£

S

S N

\/é‘.\

B
H

R
(a) BROEARFBRESE

BRIEGDHARBZHMEBERE ERONBIMAEZRET-FRFER_FFT—FRA
ZHERBMERCHBRABKRES:S ((ARTEERLABERAME]) -HGRFEE
RoBABRAGHENR _SFE-F+ A+ -—BR L BURTEERBERFEERLH
BEFGTERODETABRE- AT RERFEBERAFBRAFTEERLIARHZFAE
BREDATEXMOIRBR
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35. Bt (&)

ERBRE (&)
BE_STAFT A+ HULFEA RURRERFIROZBEREEHUT:

BEEREZEE
R-ZEBZEHEEF
R-BBESF +=8
SHREHEZRER Hi e —-A—H FREH =+-—H
EQAFEE: ;
ZLEE S 4 (a) 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
(b) 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
2,800,000 - 2800000 |
HitES: .
A% (a), (d) 6,540,000 (180,000) 6,360,000 @,
At (b) 18,900,000 - 18,900,000 f;
chH (c) 2,800,000  (2,800,000) - I
}
28,240,000  (2,980,000) 25,260,000 |
31,040,000  (2,980,000) 28,060,000
|
B2t %

(a) RIEE—FRATNEBEHZERETEEASRULERERBM BER - ZEERESRRA=ELSE
BOTE-ERRTR SR - F-A-PRENBARTE MEASEARCAIELRREFESEZ-A—8
REMBRNGTE-RETEZBREN FEBRERBE _FRANFRNATRAER-ZSEREZEFE
MEEREATE.

z
T

P

1

°
o

i
&

e -

B
®Be

ER-F-A+TNERHZBRECEEASRIERERRMI00ET -ZEERET N R ZANS BN

DEAR-EBRF-ATN\BEEABMAGE HECSESGNIEERFREF2 - A—HE
TEZEREN FEBREEE TR tFE AT LR ER -ZSBREZTAXOHEERFEART
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35. WERHEEN (&)

tREE

AREBERDEARFRZMERR] EROVBERAER L BRZZBEETS (TILRHE
RiT8]) EMARELIRBRREEZTRARREE. FREMRZEEMR RIER
ZRLEEBEHBLATNIRREEALBRREEZES SRKREBELRE-SERIL
RERTEZEZEBUTERLREIAMBLARZHT  EBE-URBERFEN_-ZTT—
FRATNBRER BREBUARE N TEIRZ B E I

BRI R R RSB RS BRI AR FRUARBERETASHEBENT
BERZ10% - BT TUARBRAEAZELEERSE  BOHBERZREBRUARER
BT BT RE BT Z R ER25% -

EBARRLEBRERZEEE-_ T ARANINRE EBaRXMEBELERALEST -RLEE
BREZTESHELRRREZTGRATE TXRIETER SHELR REZRBREES
ZEAHRAFEANERRRIHIZH[ (URBERE) k-

BREZTEBRLREREFCEE BETUEARMILR: tEERANEEROIBREREE
BB 2WEHE M AEREBRNEZEZEREBR ERENRER S B EB AR
ZEBHEHE RENIEAEREBRCEE-

BREZHEEASEELIREANBRAE LRE
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35. MERRHEETE (2)

FAT (&)

FEtBlE ARSI RBREAREZREFAS BNBRAEEAZEB AAEEEER THAR
REBREBENEE REACERESSAZISHBRREZMNEFTE B REFQTRERN
SUBRN -ALRZEZCNRREEZSLACARETANBEARZER (BRATEE) R EH
TESRARREREIETZER EAURBALCRERBRZBERE- MR _ZFTLF
TR+ EREM BRIFZTBZTEUHNER] TR EEREER+5F-

ERAUEREFAEARHZIARTERERE ETESIRBZROTESRARBEAKHEDE
TROHBHZ3I0% - HAALEZAETEERER EERACATREXNEAT-EEHEA
EEUR A ZBEEMERTRETRT AR ERAREBRBLAARETAKHEOHTE
BIREE 1% AT SRZUATE LB RE-

BREFTERL2BEREBARABAMBENGEEREE-

REFGEBHBREZTERHNLESERERE A BRETSERLEZBETF&
TE-BRETEENEEEZD HFURRL-

BREZTEERESEET ETBERTIMEPZESE (AR EBRAELER (&
BREB)PBRAMBRZERETE MWEZZBRERZZEFLEREE A0 EAR
RERXFIR 2 SRFHRTE: LA QR EER CHEE-

RIFFRF+_A=ZT—RB UEREFTERLERE-
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35. RN (&)

ART (F)
BHEBLAEBREER T

FRETATLEEFERRLARAEGEHE - BE-_FTFH
FTZAZ+—BLFER REE

TER L BREER T

ik

BEBREZEE

R-BBREF
R-ZZFSRE +=ZA
SHEHERBNER gz —A—8B ERTH =+—8

B=x:
FTEAEE (a) 200,000 (200,000) -
(b) 1,800,000  (1,800,000) -
2,000,000  (2,000,000) -
L e (a) 200,000 (200,000) -
(b) 1,800,000  (1,800,000) -
2,000,000  (2,000,000) -

EHES:

BF (a) 210,000 (210,000) -
= (b) 1,840,000  (1,840,000) -
2,050,000  (2,050,000) -
6,050,000  (6,050,000) -

Bt

(a) FZEBRER - ANNEZR=ZBRL TEEASRIVBEA - BUESREEHABEZEREINZR
ERERIBR-

(b) HEBRER-ANNERAZTZHEH TEERASRUVBEL-SUESRESRAMEZBRERN
ZRERBIEBT-.
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34. ¥
i
‘ /N
—E2nFE —_ETNHF
FET FET
SETERR A
2,000,000,000/% AR EHO0. 108 T 2 Z# % 200,000 200,000
BERTEBERT:
622,500,000 B EE0.10F T2 TEAR 62,250 62,250
R RE

BREARREREAERBEASHEMBTNBRENFBEARDBHERMIEIS - AFER
ARBERDSETE:.

35. Bk #EeT R

ERE
KAFRA—EERESE ((EHB]) BHER-NANEETA+RBER SEASHA |
REAMEMERZEERSEZRABRBNRD - REARARRR_FTEFTATLAR
F2REBIAS LRBY BRRER B SnR L YRR R s R HEREst a8 (TH+8)) |
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e Sy Er

3[. FIRRHHECHERHEREAF D RELREERBZAR

rEH®
—EERE —TEWNEFE
Bt st FiEBT FET
NEABEREZLEEBEE 10(b) - 1,304,733
JIRBIELEZIERGEE 19,319 -
WEBIELHEZ HESBEERERHEE 19,319 1,304,733
ERBHoBE:
IRBELECHEREEE 10(b) - 493,795
FABELREZERHEE 46,154 -
BIAAFEHEZLEEBEER
EREEEERBHM CEE 46,154 493,795

R-EEAFT AT B IRRFLEZERDEERTEERTEARZETEFRA
N E NZBZEREEESD 515,222,000/ 7T 1:4,097,0008 T A EEHEARRERE
4176923 0008 THE - ARER - EFRF+ A=+ - BUEE T RE 446,154,000 T
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404,824,000 7T) 2 RIB DA BANKAXNEER SERFVBBRRMF10R520)(v) - ZERIER
%% & B K Beijing Holdings (BVI) Limited 7 A WA E BRI AL X RARIEREEREZR
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Bl ENRAEHBATRENEER SERERTEER B—8 A% A R%24,774,0007T
(4923,821,000870) 2B BARARNEER FBERUBREWES20)V) - ZERIBBE
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Ewz ITRERE RATE 250 250 250 250 |
ELHZRERE BERA 532,758 306,238 141,187 80,212
533,008 306,488 141,437 80,462 |
WE (22,971) (21,432) - -

510,037 285,056 141,437 80,462




| AR R M

ZEERE+ZF=+—H

21.

BELEIRG (&)

TEBRSOBFBELOT:

Bt

IRAL/

HRK BERTRERRE/ KEEEY
AEER EEpY HREXEE BEREE RER BOEN ERE
TREREELEDHE B/ AE 80,000,000 2600 222 55 EEREE
ERAT REAE BRER
PEEEERHERS w8/ ARH70017 528 3429 333 35 AERBEUN
ERAT([maiE]): pEAE RERENER
TREERERERG @/ AEB135,872,209% 827 %4 38 LEREERTR
EROEr hEAE

NKEFLFRERSELBLEARAZESERAFEEBFFALT —HWELF-

i ARRREREPELEZEE REERER PELBZHRR I REARNE AL BEBRAMAIER 7F.
AGBETHBEPEUERGHEREARG TEECAUBRSZSHEH-EERA BEPELTE LTHR
ZEMRERBREFAEERTELRREREZEEETRE RES LR ER B LRE.

* SEE QB 223.44%R1483%BRBAFBARFEEBERA—M2ENBLARIEERE-

ESERR LRI ASERL ARV EAEREENERFAEREEZEXTENHZD
FrERERARAEGBELFRZEEETRBENTR




—F¥LFFR ' IS

| BF B SRR MY AL |

—EFRFF+AZA+—A
21. BELARES (&)
(0 UTAREEBEARNMBEANZEREE:

—ggrs -—TTpeE

FHERT FET
FEBEEER
EEE 186,803 446,024
H s 4,355 5,046
WmmeE 191,158 451,070 f
FX e (168,162) (391,888) |
B T AR F 22,996 59,182
I8 (1,203) (8,007)
REEFERF 21,793 51,175
FEEBEEERER
ME--REREE 181,888 454,060 §
EMIERBDEAE 73,546 88,943 |
mYEE 194,290 248,089 |
EREEE (60,083) (21,169) |
RBEE (132,884)  (201,384)
LB (3,551) (20,575) |
BEBHEEREA (THEEAEEDE) - 2,346 |

EERE

253,206

550,310




| Bt SRR BT RE |

SEFEF+-A=+-A

2. BHELTHNS

TEM PN

—2REF —TTNFE =BRIF —TERF

FH T TET FH T FE T

EETRRMG IR AK - - 46,168 141,742
EIEEEZE 253,206 550,310 - -
g N E ] 9,573 41,033 - 3,505
RN EEE A BB (8,956) - - -
253,823 591,343 46,168 145,247

AR S R EIRIBRIE (4,974) (474) - -
248,849 590,869 46,168 145,247

AR _FZT—5—H—HH

(a) BB BBRRMZ24FFL FRERBBEVBRELEIFN 2 BREN ZHXREF
AR -—FT-F-F-BlBRELAMELEZBHENARGEELRREETEHE-

BRHMELFFELYRENGEBELAERZBERELT:

TEN
—B2HEF -—TRWME
FHET FET
R—A—HBHRAREEEE 150,402 224,569
HE BB LQ3IHG - (74,167)
R A=+—HRARBEEZEE 150,402 150,402

by BUR/ENBER

AREABER 2REEEERY




—FenEfmxy | 109

| BF IS R M EE |

—EFERE+-A=+ 8
20. XARFLFRE (£)

AATNEEREZEELRAEHNARZEELT

Eol

SRAY/5H EERAL
A5 REEHE ERER  EERAE REE EANH TR ;
SRIRATEEE o8/ 594000005 % 505 8 S RATEEEER
MEEBERLE mBAE \
L REEEEERES Y B/ ARE12,000 0007 000 S0 3% BEARESER
ERAT BEAR
TETRRA-FBERLE 2@/ AR %50,000,0007T U 444 43 BREELE

REAR 5HETT

HAFER

NRIRLEEEREERLE  #E/ 12,000,000% 7 2004 4286 4 KEEH

BEAE HETELE
BEEeUS EFIyASERFRH AR AYEREELERARAE@EESATENH

ZAF EEERARHKEBARSHAAZHBESBERNTE




| Bt % ¥R R B &F |

ZEFREFTZHA=+—H

20. £FHBLEER (F)

(c) (&)

—BBRFE _—TT@EE
FERT TET

TEMELEEREE
MmE BB ER 9,172 469,528
R A RE (M) - 36,034
EMIERBEE 187,277 93,338
REEE 137,471 278,602
ERBEE (97.560) (116,410)
iR IN=Rr (47,117) (176,302)
EEBLEERS (THAEESE) 7.185 7,039
EEEE 196,428 591,829

BB RS R R MT 5 18(a) i)
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H bl as 10,350 151,648
KU 176,782 1,113,448
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FETM B R B FRIE (741,785) (813,280)
5,501,053 6,176,987

BIE (441,174) (261,751)

5,059,879 5,915,236

BUY/ BAHNBLAEREANEER 22 REECERS -EF BHEBLARZERRERES
%9 573 12,000,000 7T 238,000,000 T2 ER A EERREEF RS FIEF M EGF B
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18. Rtu\MELRE (/5)

(a)

BEEER (B)

(iii)

BREACAFEFARBUREBISB 2B LRI REERKERRAR LA ([EER
wEl) RPEEREREER ([EEREEZ D R—ANNERF TR ZES
BERERE EERREUAREARRK60,000000tMEEREEEAEILRFZ 8
BROEASHFRRARERB ZKEEN - A ANFNRTALBER BH40
FUSEINBEFLERE FHERRERRRESEMREEZLRB BE
AT Z BB R E:

EXH BHRELE
2 B A R % 35,000,000T{ET 2
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(a)

(i)

(ii)

BEARFTAIEETEFKAT (ERETK])R—AANFELA+ZBFTZ
BRI EHE AND FILAMRE A R%1,500,000,000 T4 R B EAKUE —BR L
B BEEE-NNANET-BZ+NBE-+TFHEAN L REE -8 RKFLRE
BB (ZEAKE—BH) UREEFEKARBRKBEARABRE PRNFTEEEE
BR SFHEFRNFHERBEEEBEHE ARK210,000,000 T2 RERAFE-
GEEET I EAREBMACHARREETUARIESKERAG Z2EWEBL
AARRE ATHALCEERSEERKF L REEEBMEL.

RZFFAFTZAZ+—H ZBARER G THEFHOR13F-

BEEEFEREREERAT (AR AEIRMEEB.5% B AR BRITA
BARERAR([ABELARERARR-ZZET—FLA+N\AET2EEEE
B HREARLRYBIELARERERRA (DRINEBIE]  BE QS EEE53.08%
ZHBLAR) LRBRBEBBASHZHE ABLABRERAGNERBEARYE
652,000,000 THEE-—FELLE TR B EUE - EF _FMA+AEZ-+E
HEGSLEURPBREINTZFIEEAKE-

RIBERFT A=+ B ZEHRER2RTHHEFENR16F4EAR -
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TEM (F)

—E8LFEFH

B
R REE BB AL A #E
TERL TATL TET
(K15 (a) (K b))
HE-FEME+-_FA=+-HIEE
R-_ETNE~A-H:
A 2,027,321 13,294 2,069,477
EZBERRE (401,901) (13,294) (420,018)
EEFE 1,625,420 - 1,649,459
BEFE:
R_ZTENE-F—H 1,625,420 - 1,649,459
11 - 3,642 15,642
AEZHERE (101,367} - (104,688)
R_EENE+-_A=+—8 1,524,053 1,560,413
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| BRI M A

—FERE+-RA=+—8

18. Rt AR E

TEMN
BB EZ
RTReR EREG FoRE BE 3 AL A+ k]
FAET FET TERL FET FAT
(#15(a)) (Ki3£b))
HRE-_BETE+-F=+—-ALEE
R-EENET-AZ+-HEK
“EFRF-A-H
XK 2,027,321 18,868 21,994 16,936 - 2,085,119
REBHERRE (503,268) (5,974) (2,170) (13,294) (524,706)
EEEE 1,524,053 12,894 19,824 3,642 1,560,413
REFE:
RZEZTRE-F—R 1,524,053 12,894 19,824 3,642 1,560,413
WE-EHEBLR - ftad 47,596 - - - 47,594
# 0 - - 471 2,197 2,668
FEEBERE (102,605) (1,887) (1,491) - (105,983)
ERRFIEREZIZRE - - (12,000) (5,870) (17,870)
ERAE 30,650 212 149 31 31,042
R-IBBRE+ZA=+-H 1,499,694 11,219 6,953 - 1,517,866
RZEBRRAF+ZA=1-8:
5% 2,126,925 19,231 22,681 - 2,168,837
REBERAE (627,231) (8,012) {15,728) - {650,971)
BERE 1,499,694 11,219 6,953 - 1,517,866
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BERENR (&)

() MNEBRLBRRBARBEFBECZAIRESBENERAIERAEEZFES R FER
ERERANREESRERER ABENIFHE M BREMEL ZARMTAIEHE
EREURERZNRFER-ReRETACRZIFTEERIIS%  ZHAREXDRAEAKER
BORZFONRERBEERECU CRBRARTUEBE-RERREREEACERSF
gETERB/ER-

(i) ZEEBIRUEHEL2RBEICERBEXGEMBERTERAINETIRKGE
B EBREEREMAMERAZIRAEENE R RERIRBEEEMEFENSE
ARz RBEEE - ReRERACERIFTRERR% 2 REN2BERTEZFE
TREGEMEREUZERBRARTUEE

REBE-STREET-_AZT—BULEE RAERERS9,658,000& T (ZFEFMNF:17,512,000
BLT)ZREEEAREEMBZEERE (CERNFE AN BEER 2 BEEQ) BE2BE:
FERAEE SR EE A REREN KBS LRI BEREERZERE-

REFERENS EZRREFTRALIRERTERE —SIFEHERE-
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17. B8 (&)

e 8 Rl (B R A
RSN BEEZ EAEEE SR T ASBATENEB 2 E WAL BAMETREN:

FEM
—EEFEE Z—ETWHF
Kt FER TETL
BEGS ﬁ
BEEKE (i) 34,520 33822 |
BRABBINEARKEEER (i) 21,687 21,687
BARENBREEERBRERER (iif) 132,230 132,622
HhEA R AR XK (iii) 44,625 104,283 |
Hip 42,715 37,784 L
275,777 330,198 i
BRIEEB - DA 10(b) - 2,196 |
e 275,777 332394 |
-
|

() REEEFABEFEUZITNEEEERQFHEREUZEERBEZAFERE
ERK:RORETEBRMERZATABENE MRSAERMNREEEEIE
BENSERBYBREEET - ReRABBRAEREZFTRER16% RREBBITELYF
5

BREREBEFEUZIEHER-
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17. &R (&)

BB BRI E24F R AEERANBRYBRELRREIR 2 BEFR D ZBEXBFNZ
ZE-F-A-BRREKBHBELIMELALBERENGRETRRATHE-

AR _EE-F— A -BpRBHNBAFFMELLRENGEELAERZBHEHENT:

rES
—B2REE —EENE
FRT FET
%*H—_B
; A 7S 429,693 429,693
1 ZiHRE (5,132) (5,132)
EREFE 424,561 424,561
§ BREFE:
»—H—H 424,561 424,561
! HEHBAT (79,457) -
R+ A=1+—8 345,104 424,561
R+zZA=+—8:
AR AR 345,104 429,693
EiTRE - (5,132)

REEFE 345,104 424,561




—EF¥LFF®m - 119

| B FEER R MY |
—EERF+-A=+—8H
17. & W
AWENBATRLEREEEMES INGEREEAGRRAEA LR AEEZ BB ZEED
T
XE®
—EBERE _—_TENF
Hist FET FET
R—A—8: |
X A 330,198 302,767 }
ZitR(E - (2,356) |
|
|
BREEE 330,198 300,411
BRI
w—A—E 330,198 300,411
W BE T BB 2 T 44 8,916 27,052
WELERRER 3,061 4,761
NEEBEHAREH QTR AEHNEBRT
MELZARZHERANEETSDE 20(a) - 17,682
ERRFABRERZBE (59,658) (17,5120
T EWBQRI M (7,764) - |
BEBREREREEZER 10(b) - (2,196)
ER AR 1,024 -
R+—F=+—8H 275,777 330,198
R+-A=+—8: 5
N 335,435 330,198
2 RE (59,658) -
BEEEE 275,777 330,198
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—BERE —TENE
ok FE T FET
R—A—HZEREE 438,369 445,719
WEEKTE A7) 44 19,781 74,368
00 9,569 18,771
EREREREZIIEREEE 33 (4,097) -
REFEHEEBE (12,028) (9,693)
k= (68,825) (24,787)
BEROCRIEEZER 10(b) - (60,950)
HERELQF 45 - (5,059)
ERAE 7,235 -
R+ A=+—BZEBEE 390,004 438,369
BOHERSBEEZEGD (12,684) (8,176)
SEmBE D 377,320 430,193
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(b) HREVERELKEBEOBETE=ZN EMBEFBERARTBRRMES0E) - FEEREK
RAEZEWEEREERABRBRARZSREMEZABRIHBLANT:

TEM b /N
ZEZRE —EENE Z8TLRFE —_TENWMEHE
FHE T FEIT FHEx FET
e AmEE 25,954 22,249 6,353 6,598
BEERT (4,534) (3,700) (582) (742) (
HeE WA RE 21,420 18,549 5,771 5,856

() BEER RIZEZEWNFE+_HAZT-HB AEEERRZEREER6500,000ETZ—
ERENE WER-REATAEEZRITER (FE37(d) -

d) RIFFAFTZAZ+—B LAREVFEHBUAERIXHENEBRITERA
BAREARBECBERATULHETSRABARENNFTEEE ERERLEEEN
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TEN ENTF

fieF Z—ZBBRFE —STNFE ZBBLE —ITFTOF

FEx FET FHxT FET

W—R—BZEEE 342,722 277,461 134,000 134,000
EEaEF 14 88,073 16,544 - -
WERIEER 14 - 43,793 - -
He (1,008) (6,441) - -
RERERLER 10(b) - (2,420) - -
ERATFEZUEESE 13,635 13,785 - -
ERHE | 3,398 - - -
R+ A=+—HBZEEE 446,820 342,722 134,000 134,000

a RIFTFAFFTTAZ+—B FEEZRAVERTIHEFTHHE:

rEE
58 Hihh FL R
FET FET FET
EHAE 49,650 - 49,650
thEAFE & ' 9,000 388,170 397,170
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ARBIZREMEEHURTEARERATHEAERE-
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QT (F)
RE BAKER

BF  DERE BLERE A R
TAER TER TR TET TER

BE-TEMFI=AS-BUEE

RZZERF-A-8: !
A 42,319 9,239 4,838 2,056 58,452 ‘
E2iTHE (3,286) (9,129) (4,303) (789 (17.507) |
BEFE 39,033 110 535 1,267 40,945 ’

L

BERE: 5
RZZEENE-F-R 39,033 110 535 1,267 40,945 I
#n - 769 516 - 1,285 g
TEEHERE (962) 77 (262) (261) (1,562) |
RIEEME+-F=+—8 38,071 802. 789 1,006 40,668

!
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14. MR- -BERRME (&)

() REBE-ZTNGE+_AZ+-BLFERRZAESEBEIEE RERIRARAML]H
BRETEENEFAHRETWOSEZHE (R EEEEREDER) -AIRBAESEIR
RFEREERNT U RBUAERERGENBERTERARIET ZAEET -HE

RAEEELBERBORAMEZIEEET

EQF
HE BA-#£BR

BF NEEB BLERE RE k]

FET TRER FEX FER FERT
BE_SBIF+R=+—-ALEE
R-ETMNE+-B=+-HE
“ZERE-A-7:
HA 42,319 10,008 5,354 2,056 59,737
ZitHE (4,248) (9,206) (4,565) (1,050) (19,069)
BEEE 38,071 802 789 1,006 40,668
BEEE:
RZZERE-~F—-8 38,07 802 789 1,006 40,668
B m 1,292 1,961 393 - 3,646
TEERERE ’ (972) (148) (323) (262) (1,705)
HE - (615) - - (615)
R-ZBSEE+=-R=+—H 38,391 2,000 859 744 41,994
R-BERFE+-A=T—-8"
A 43,611 5,038 5,747 2,056 56,452
257 E (5,220) (3,038) (4,888) (1,312) (14,458)
EEEE ‘ 38,391 2,000 859 744 41,994
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(a) LXHEEZSEARREHREYUREFR_ZERAE+AZ+—BDRETSH

MEFHFBE:
TE®
=58 HathF EER ]
FET THET FETT
Y7
RHBEE 51,580 - 51,580
mHEEE 43,500 5,107,728 5,151,228
95,080 5,107,728 5,202,808
b) EEIE fit
ERIRERETIN - EERE+ A+ BEHEABRIZTIEIEE: L
EEMN
BB RE AEIE6 FET
ERFHILE —EERE 189,550
EREERE ZEERE 212,932
H#IE B 28 45106 |

447,588 |

(¢) L+HRETHREEDEE EEELEE275857,0008 T (ZTBME 519,673,000/ 7T) 218
F HERERCDEER UREETEFAEE 2 BT REMER (FEE37(d)6) -

(dY AEBRARABETEFRBE-_ZZEEF T AT BUEFEREEREREE
41,000,000 BETH L ENMEPENH»E ZEETERBEY S EREXEEMEERTER
REIR—ANMNAF+Z A=+ —EBRAHTERE BUZEEFZEEAUEEL KA
RFENE BEEFER 534,380,000 T ( T T MM : 35,304,000 7T) °
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rE®E(F)

BALER fg FHo¥E
EREY BF  DEBE BELREE LEAZRE RE EBEIE EEWE #E
ik TiER TER TER Thn FEL iz &7 TER TER
(Hi8@) 08 (&) ()
(d (el
BE-FEME+-AZ+-AILEE
R-ZERE-F-5:
RASEE 1204937 2,883,608 35633 3942455 274,444 213238 556,774 17,759 9,498,848
ZHRERAE (137,603} 562917) (9232 (173513 (1360470 (134943) - - [3,001,347)
FEZE 1067334 2,320,491 53309 2,204942 138,397 138,295 556,774 1775 6,497,501
ERRE:
R-BERE-F-A 1067334 232069 53300 2204942 138,397 138,295 556,774 17759 6,497,501
WEHBLE 44 - 191,482 1,804 143,424 7,668 9267 983 - 354,630
B - 181913 23,363 158,797 47,378 31,520 816,194 - 1089465
gRakgIs 809 155,644 £4,397 22476 28,282 7,483 (529.271) - -
BREZRENE 15 - (16,544) - - - - (43,793) - (60,337}
REERERE (30068 (143992) (26,199 (311,148 (48,439) (33,119) - - (592,985
ERRFBRERIRE - 28,370} - (1,014) - - - - 29,384)
HE - 81,910} (8,481) (5.732) 1,28 9,561) {25,074} 4238 (136276)
BERERLER22E 10(b) - {292,472 - (308,554} - {17,911 {34,944) {13505 {665.408)
HEHBLA 4 - (8,598) (850} (75,838) (65) (2,162 (822) - (88,335)
R-FERE+=R=1-8 1,038,075 2,277,844 107,343 2,079.3%1 171937 123,992 540,049 - 633857
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14. R -BEREM

AEE

RELRER B2 BR-%E
BREEY BF NR%E REREE RRLERE RE  EBIE  ER4Z £8

i3 FAR FER TER THT FER T#Ex TER Tir TET
(i) ®e« (W) (W)
0 le
HE-8FR§1ZA=1-ALL4E
RoZ2ZMEL-R=T-BR
Z$E8R%-R-H:
B 1205746 2,963,825 43991 3,986,313 373732 243,089 540,049 - 9T
HHERRE (167671) (685,981) (306,648 (1906982 (201795 (119,097) - - (3,388,174
RESE 1038075 2277844 107343 2,079,331 171937 123992 540,049 - 43385
EREE:
R-ETI%E-§-8 1038075 2,207,844 107343 207933 171937 123992 540,049 - 63857
BENHERS 4 - 317,047 1,705 445,436 8,089 8572 109,135 - 949,984
#h - 48822 56,31 197,093 61,282 29,164 973935 - 1366612
BREALRIR - 625,148 9177 458739 32,829 BT (1170.230) - -
SREGENE 15 - (88,073 - - - - - - 88,073}
BEIEFLEZERDEE 3 - (15,222) - - - - - - (15.222) b
TEERERE (32,890} (95,525} 39,103 a1 (58,911) (26,315) - - 594,861
ERRHEBRED 2 HE - 3,780) - - - - - - 3,780}
BRILENERERZ
PEEERE - 12712 - - - - - - 12,712
ek - (11,303 (9,433) (7.070) 9,756) (5,590} 15,299 - (58,451)
HEHELT 45 - (11,755} - (4422) 402) (1,652) - - (18,231)
EE b - 20,226 - {36,403} 16,131 4 - - -
BLAE 21,064 56,808 2577 51,260 3488 2541 9998 - 147 756 )
R-82I£+-R=t-A 1,026,249 3,193,549 168,582 2,841,867 224,687 134,495 447,588 - 8037017
R-ESRETZAZ4-H:
Aix 1,280,672 397213 442,285 5,070,147 481,682 267,352 447,588 - 11911862 ;
ZHAERAE (204423, (778,587)  (273703) (2,228,280) (256995  (132,857) - - (3,874,845) {

EHEE 1,026,249 3,193,549 168,582 2,841,867 224,687 134,495 447,588 - 8,037,017
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BR: (&)

—BERE —TIENF

FET FET
(i) REFELLEERIZAEE
REBERELEER Bty EHEEXBMNZ
REBARDTREFE/EH- 490,435 571,892
HRBNEAFEIEE FREEy. REHZ
BEANSERZEEENE 4,526 4,819
BMEBRTERREERT TARESH
REFRSE R REE 1B
AEBAEBEIEREREE % 4 (12,466) - (14,077)
REREBECLEEN FETEERBERANZ
REERQRBRERISERF 482,495 562,634
ZEREE:
—EE2RFE —TENE

RETESREARBERNZAEE
BRATERZINEESH 622,500,000 622,500,000

REBE-TZRRER-_FROFFT A= B LFEARARRRAATNBEATNILRER
RERFEZRTEBRELBYARENZSEEZERELBNEREERE-
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13. ZLFIEREBABERET (&)
HE-TTAFT-AZ+-BLEEZEREARBEBNESEDREN THEHE:
BA:

—ERRE _—ZTTNHF

FER FE R
() REEEF |
R B SRERRN Y AFEAD BRI 570,422 503,188
|
MBSV B IS BREE 2 TRRESY |
EHBOSR2AEEHN LR 4,526 4819 |
BERMTERRRBRTIRTETRBRES
REREEY BREREENERAL KER
7R 5% (B FE 11 78 A N A R (12,466) (14,077)

BUEtEEREBRAZAEERRBIRERE G ET 562,482 493,930
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12.

FELAFIRRBEARRE RN

EARREE_ZERE+ A=+ BLEEVKBRTREEZALOFREREGEEEER
B111,190,0008 T (ZEZTWMF )& T 5383,143,0008 7T) (#77F36(b)) °

’a
—22RE —EBENE
FBT FH&ET
FHIRE -SRTRRKRIOBER (ZETNF:0.10E T) 62,250 62,250
EERERENE -SIHTER0E T
(ZEZTmEE0.20%T) 124,500 124,500
186,750 186,750

FRARBREZABBAEABALCTABRRENRBT ZIRREERG LUE AR

FATRREGASHRET

EREARNDEBAEEADIREREEFRENERITERB Y METHRE-

SREFRNDBRBRAERERALFARREEEN (BHBURREL B ZHE QBT EE A
ROARRERETIFEARFTRREERN 2EE BREJBITEXEARREE 2 K1TE
ARRES) RFACSBTERRZ METFHREE-
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10. ERLEREZRY (&)

{c)

ERE-ETHSR_TENSF+ _AZT - ALFERAVBBRRTPBREZDRILE
E2RBZRAEREFENT:

KE®
—ERRE _—_ZTTNE
FRT TET
EEEFHEFERA - 41,910
WEEHESFE RN - (47,014)
BMETEREFR - 7,183
REPHRUIEREZERZREERA - 2,079

BRIEELEZEBEREF, (BE)

—22HE —TTOF

BRIy =R B 0.138 1t (0.1 71T)
BERIEECEZER EE TEA T B

REERUBEZEBzEREFER/(BR) DRBEUTEEGE:

—EEBRE TEEUE

REERIREZEE 2 ANEERQT
BREREEEF, (E5E) 79,987,0008 T (68,704,000 7T)

FETESRERRN(BE) 2AFE
BERITEER MEFHE 622,500,000 622,500,000
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10. BRIEBBZXY ()

b) ERISEZEBNEEIZIERERBEERNET:

FTEE

“EBHE _—ZTENE
Ht&F FAEXT FET

BE:
ME- -BE RS R 14 - 665,406
WEME : 15 - 2,420
BfLwEsS 16 - 60,950
Bk 17 - 2,196
RERZEH LA 2R - 125,113
AL EMBERE - 22,892
mE - 85,280
EURESHERAREWRER - 120,424
H 8 U FRIR - 81,650
AR B IE - 3,649
BEARITER - 156
ReRRESEEY - 134,597
HIRBELEEZHERREE 33 - 1,304,733

BE:
EHESERRENEE - (64,171)
Hfh PR RRIE I FE 5T BUE - (166,592)
RITREMERK - (262,281)
RIEFHIBRE 40 - {(751)

FAHEBIEHEZHEEREE

EREMBAE 33 - (493,795)

EREEEZEBEIEEESRE - 810,938




| BF IR R BT EE |

—FEFERFE+_F=+—H

10. ERILBBEZXRT (&)

(a)

2SR EER

AT ERE B A E R EEME+ A+ - HUESERECUBREPREEY

BRITBEERZEE:
KEM

—EEEE -—ZTTNE
FExT FHET
X - 885,684
B % - (1,010,217
BRI EZEBRBRAGIEER - (124,533)
HEBRIEELE 2EB IR 79,987 -

EREEEZEBREMRN, (BE)

IR
BHRCRUEGEZERBBRYAER
FRLECRIBEZER RS

REERLEEZEB 2 AERERN,/ (BE)

79,987 (124,533)

- 3,687

79,987 (120,846)
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